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Huntington Bancshares Incorporated (NASDAQ: HBAN) is a $35 billion regional bank holding company head-

quartered in Columbus, Ohio. Its principal markets are Ohio, Michigan, West Virginia, Indiana, and Kentucky. 

Founded in 1866, Huntington serves its customers as the “local bank with national resources.” Nearly 8,000 

associates provide consumer and commercial banking, mortgage banking, automobile fi nancing, equipment 

leasing, investment management, brokerage, trust, and insurance services. Customers have convenient access 

to banking services through more than 380 regional banking offi ces; the customer service call center at 

(800) 480-BANK (2265); online at www.huntington.com; and through its network of nearly 1,000 ATMs. Non-banking 

fi nancial services are provided through selected banking offi ces, as well as other local facilities.
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“Simply the Best” service is our promise to deliver the kind of 
experience that makes customers feel special…a differentiated 
experience where they can rely on Huntington to be there for 
them, make their banking easy, and truly personalize all their 
interactions with us.

We select our associates based on their ability to relate to 
customers. From the minute they join Huntington, we invest time, 
energy, and resources to ensure our associates can deliver an 
extraordinary customer experience.

We aspire to offer “Simply the Best” service every day and in 
every customer interaction.



THOMAS E. HOAGLIN Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND FRIENDS:

February marks my fi fth anniversary as your chief executive offi cer, so I 

wanted to begin this year’s letter by refl ecting on all that has happened at 

Huntington during the past fi ve years. There have been signifi cant changes, 

progress, and success in a number of areas. There also remain challenges 

and opportunities. Above all, I want you to understand clearly what we are 

trying to accomplish at Huntington.
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5-YEAR REVIEW

In July 2001, we decided to sell our Florida banking operations. The sale allowed us to strengthen our low relative 

capital levels and return value to shareholders by using the freed-up capital to repurchase Huntington shares. 

Concurrently, we decided to focus our efforts on the Midwest markets we knew well, where we could realize higher 

returns on capital.

We adopted a business model that emphasizes decision-making in local markets by empowered local bankers. Together 

with an array of sophisticated products and services, this model enables Huntington to be viewed as “the local bank 

with national resources.”

We strengthened our leadership team in our banking regions and corporate staff functions. Our well-seasoned team 

is energized and capable of leading Huntington to our goal of becoming a high performing fi nancial services company.

We have made numerous investments to improve customer service. State-of-the-art banking offi ce platform technology 

is now in place, giving Huntington associates more comprehensive information to use in serving customers better. 

We opened 18 new banking offi ces in growing markets and consolidated others to gain effi ciencies of scale. We also 

installed a disciplined sales process to help associates deepen customer relationships.

Changing to a culture of empowerment and customer focus has not been easy. But associates have responded well to 

encouragement that they “go ahead” and make decisions on behalf of customers. We continue to improve every day 

and customers are seeing and experiencing a difference. At the end of 2005, 36% of our consumer households utilize 

four or more services, up from 31% at the end of 2003. Similarly, 15% of our small business customers use four or 

more services, up from 10%.
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To improve associate focus on our customers, we formally adopted a value proposition of service excellence. Our 

objective is to offer our customers a “Simply the Best” service experience in every transaction, every time. Making this 

behavior second nature for every associate is one of our highest priorities. We are devoting extensive time, energy, and 

training to make this not just an aspiration, but also a reality. If we are successful, it will be our strongest competitive 

advantage, and there are signs of progress. A recent outside, independent company surveyed banking customers in our 

key markets and found that Huntington ranked #1 in customer service over our six largest Midwest banking competitors.

For Huntington to be a winning competitor and reward our shareholders, all of this has to translate into improved 

fi nancial performance and above average shareholder returns. On both, we also made progress.

Earnings per common share for 2005 were $1.77, compared to $0.54 in 2001, and return on equity was 16.0%, up from 

5.8%, even with higher relative capital. Throughout this period, our net interest margin remained relatively stable, a 

notable achievement during a period of volatile interest rates and given that we operate in some of the most competitive 

loan and deposit markets in the country. Average loans grew at least 10% in each of the last three years and average 

core deposits 5% in each of the last two years. Trust services income consistently increased and was 28% higher last 

year than in 2001. Our focus on controlling expenses and growing revenues is refl ected in the improvement in our 

expense effi ciency ratio from 79% in 2001 to 60% last year.  

The efforts made to strengthen our credit underwriting, review, and workout disciplines resulted in a much improved 

credit risk profi le. We exited large, shared national credits and other large, individual non-relationship credits and 

lowered our automobile lending exposure to 18% from 33%. Our NPA ratio declined from 1.23% at the end of 2001, 

to 0.48% at the end of 2005. Over this same period, our net charge-off ratio dropped from 0.81% to 0.33%, and our 

provision for credit losses declined 68% from $257 million to $81 million.

A foundational Huntington objective is to deliver above average total returns to our shareholders. There are three 

ways to do this: (1) above average growth in earnings, (2) share repurchases, and (3) increased dividends. We believe 

that the economic and competitive environment over the next three years is going to be tougher, with slower growth. 

As such, we expect growth in earnings per share to be below our 10%-12% long-term targeted range. Given that we 

expect to continue to generate excess capital, we have looked to both share repurchases and dividend increases as a 

way to enhance shareholder returns. Since the end of 2001, we have repurchased 33.1 million shares, or 13% of the 

shares outstanding at that time.  

In July 2001, we made the diffi cult but necessary decision to cut the dividend 20%. Since that time, our fi nancial 

progress has enabled us to increase cash dividends per share by 56%, including a 16% increase declared by the board 

of directors in January 2006. This increase results in a dividend payout ratio above our long-term targeted payout 

range of 40%-50%, which is warranted in the current, slower growth environment.

From the end of 2000, we delivered a total average annual shareholder return of 11.9%, including the reinvestment of 

dividends. This is higher than the 7.2% total return for the S&P Bank Index. Our stock price at the end of 2005 was 

$23.75, and represented a 47% increase from $16.19 at the end of 2000, or an average annual increase of 8.0%.  

In sum, we have accomplished much over the last fi ve years and are well positioned for success in 2006.



2005 HIGHLIGHTS

In this annual report, you will fi nd a detailed review of our 2005 performance, and I encourage you to take the time 

to read our discussion. But here are some fi nancial highlights:

_ $1.77 earnings per common share, up 4% and a new record.

_ 16.0% return on average equity.

_ 11% growth in average total consumer loans and leases… 27% growth in residential loans and 11% growth in home  

 equity loans and lines.

_ 8% growth in average total commercial loans and leases… 8% growth in middle market commercial loans, 7%   

 growth in middle market commercial real estate loans, and 11% growth in small business loans.

_ 5% growth in average total core deposits.

_ 57% expense effi ciency ratio in the 2005 fourth quarter, down from 66% in the year-earlier quarter. 

_ Good credit quality performance including… 0.33% net charge-off ratio, 0.48% year-end non-performing asset   

 ratio, and 261% year-end credit loss reserve to non-performing asset ratio.

_ 14.5% increase in cash dividends paid.

_ Repurchased 9.6 million, or 4%, of our December 31, 2004 shares outstanding.

While last year’s total return for the S&P 500, including reinvested dividends, was a positive 4.9%, it was a diffi cult 

year for bank investors. Our stock ended the year at $23.75, down 4%. Even with the benefi t of reinvested dividends, 

our total return for shareholders was still a negative 0.5%.  Yet this was better than the negative 1.4% total return for 

the S&P Regional Bank Index.

Other accomplishments included technology investments in Business Online banking, enhanced banking offi ce 

capabilities, and loan decisioning systems. We opened four new banking offi ces and relocated two others. We signed 

ATM partnership agreements with CVS Pharmacy and Walgreens, adding more than 200 ATMs to our network.

The performance of our Private Financial and Capital Markets area was most noteworthy. Trust assets and brokerage 

assets grew 7% and 9%, respectively. Assets under management grew 10%, including 13% growth in the Huntington 

Funds, refl ecting their outstanding performance. Four of our nine equity funds received Morningstar “4 Star” ratings, 

and one fi xed income fund was rated “5 Star.”

SEC FORMAL INVESTIGATION AND
FORMAL REGULATORY SUPERVISORY AGREEMENTS

On June 2, 2005, we announced that the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the settlement of its formal 

investigation into certain accounting matters. On October 6, 2005, we announced that the Comptroller of the Currency 

lifted its formal written agreement with Huntington National Bank dated earlier in the year. While the formal written 

agreement with the Federal Reserve Board remains in effect, we are confi dent that we will be able to address compre-

hensively all of the issues raised to their full satisfaction.

I want to assure you that Huntington is now stronger in the areas of accounting policy, internal audit, regulatory 

reporting, risk management, and corporate governance. The board of directors and your management team are 

strongly committed to assuring that the highest of ethical standards are followed. We are also fully committed to 

full, fair and transparent fi nancial disclosure and to assure that our policies and practices in these areas meet all 

best-in-class standards.
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ACQUISITION

On January 26, 2006, we received regulatory approval to acquire Unizan Financial Corp., headquartered in Canton, 

Ohio. On March 1, 2006, we completed the acquisition of this $2.4 billion bank. The acquisition gives us the #1 and 

#2 deposit market share positions in Muskingum, Stark, and Licking counties and increases our market share in the 

Dayton and Columbus areas. It also resulted in the creation of a new Eastern Ohio Region, our eighth. We are pleased 

to have the Unizan associates on the Huntington team, and we are very excited about the opportunity to serve our 

new customers with expanded capabilities, while preserving our hallmark of local decision-making. We also look 

forward to our working in, and with, these communities.  

MOVING FORWARD

We enter 2006 from a position of strength. In each region and line of business, we have a strong team. We are a 

more formidable competitor. Our “local bank with national resources” business model and “Simply the Best” value 

proposition are the right ones, and they are working. We know that we have more to do to ensure that we consistently 

deliver above average earnings growth.  And we are up to the challenge!

Thanks for your continued support and encouragement. 

Thomas E. Hoaglin

Chairman, President and CEO

March 9, 2006



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS  2005  2004 % Change

NET INCOME $ 412,091 $ 398,925 3.3%

PER COMMON SHARE AMOUNTS

Net income per common share – diluted $ 1.77 $ 1.71 3.5%

Cash dividends declared per common share  0.845  0.75 12.7

Book value per share(1) 11.41  10.96 4.1

PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Return on average assets  1.26%  1.27%  

Return on average shareholders’ equity  16.0  16.8  

Net interest margin(2) 3.33  3.33  

Effi ciency ratio(3) 60.0  65.0  

Tangible equity/assets ratio(1) 7.19  7.18  

CREDIT QUALITY MEASURES

Net charge-offs (NCOs) $ 80,057 $ 78,535 1.9%

NCOs as a % of average loans and leases  0.33%  0.35%  

Non-performing loans and leases (NPLs)(1) $ 101,915 $ 63,962 59.3

Non-performing assets (NPAs)(1) 117,155  108,568 7.9

NPAs as a % of total loans and leases and other 

real estate (OREO)(1) 0.48%  0.46%  

Allowance for credit losses (ACL) 

as a % of total loans and leases(1) 1.25  1.29  

ACL as a % of NPLs(1) 300  476  

ACL as a % of NPAs(1) 261  280  

BALANCE SHEET – DECEMBER 31,

Total loans and leases $ 24,472,166 $ 23,560,277 3.9%

Total assets  32,764,805  32,565,497 0.6

Total deposits  22,409,675  20,768,161 7.9

Total shareholders’ equity  2,557,501  2,537,638 0.8

(1) AT DECEMBER 31.

(2) ON A FULLY TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS ASSUMING A 35% TAX RATE.

(3) NON-INTEREST EXPENSE LESS AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS DIVIDED BY THE SUM OF  FULLY TAXABLE EQUIVALENT NET INTEREST INCOME   
 AND NON-INTEREST INCOME EXCLUDING SECURITIES GAINS.
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OUR MIDWEST FOCUS
ADDITIONAL 

OFFICES

Dealer Sales
ARIZONA

FLORIDA

GEORGIA

NORTH CAROLINA

PENNSYLVANIA

SOUTH CAROLINA

TENNESSEE

Private Financial and 
Capital Markets 
Group
FLORIDA

Mortgage Banking
MARYLAND

NEW JERSEY

International 
Banking Services
CAYMAN ISLANDS

HONG KONG

Ohio(1)

BANKING OFFICES: 207

ATM LOCATIONS: 557

Michigan
BANKING OFFICES: 113

ATM LOCATIONS: 222

West Virginia
BANKING OFFICES: 26

ATM LOCATIONS: 110

Indiana
BANKING OFFICES: 23

ATM LOCATIONS: 74

Kentucky
BANKING OFFICES: 12

ATM LOCATIONS: 33

Total(1)

BANKING OFFICES: 386(2)

ATM LOCATIONS: 996

(1) INCLUDES 42 OFFICES
 AND 52 ATMs FROM 
 UNIZAN MERGER.

(2) INCLUDES 5 PFG 
 OFFICES IN FLORIDA.

 SOUTHERN OHIO/ KENTUCKY

R. Michael Prescott
105 E. 4th Street, Suite 200A
Cincinnati, OH 45202
(513) 762-1880
michael.prescott@huntington.com

 CENTRAL OHIO

James E. Kunk
41 South High Street
Columbus, OH 43287
(614) 480-4571
james.kunk@huntington.com

 NORTHERN OHIO

Jerry L. Kelsheimer
917 Euclid Avenue
Cleveland, OH 44115
(216) 515-6623
jerry.kelsheimer@huntington.com

 EASTERN OHIO

Roger L. Mann
220 Market Avenue, South
Canton, OH 44702
(330) 438-1212
roger.mann@huntington.com

 WESTERN MICHIGAN

James E. Dunlap
50 Monroe Avenue, Northwest
Grand Rapids, MI 49503
(616) 235-5999
jim.dunlap@huntington.com

 EASTERN MICHIGAN

Bruce E. Nyberg
801 West Big Beaver Road, Suite 600
Troy, MI 48084
(248) 269-2037
bruce.nyberg@huntington.com

 WEST VIRGINIA

Michael G. Comer
1 Huntington Square
Charleston, WV 25301
(304) 348-7172
mike.comer@huntington.com

 INDIANA

Cindy L. Keitch
201 N. Illinois Street, Suite 100
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 237-2533
cindy.keitch@huntington.com

REGION PRESIDENTS



LEADERSHIP BUILT
ON CARING

“People are looking for a relationship,” says 

Vice President, Retail Banking, Melanie Myers. 

When it comes to Retail Banking, Huntington 

has a hometown approach – it’s about caring 

and making each customer feel special. Myers 

adds, “Some of our competitors have become 

so big they have forgotten who got them there.” 

Huntington maintains its customer focus, which 

requires associates supporting each other. 

Managers lead by example, providing guidance 

and mentoring. Myers calls it “servant leader-

ship,” describing it as her responsibility to 

those who report to her. “I’m here to help them 

succeed. I work for them, not the other way 

around.” Senior Executive Vice President, Retail 

Banking, Mary Navarro adds, “Our leaders walk 

the talk, and people want to work here, do a 

good job and help the customer.”

This high-touch attitude works hand-in-hand with 

high-tech acumen. Last year, huntington.com was 

again named to the top fi ve of fi nancial web sites 

by Watchfi re® GómezPro, ahead of Chase, National 

City, Fifth Third and others. And our frontline 

customer service software, ESS, allows associates 

to do their jobs faster and easier, while providing 

“Simply the Best” service to customers. ESS cues 

bankers when to follow up with customers and 

keeps track of individual banking styles and prefer-

ences. Also helpful is a forward-thinking initiative 

to build bench strength by keeping a staff of assistant 

banking managers trained and ready. Myers confi rms 

that this helps maintain branch momentum, as 

well as staff morale. “With Huntington, there is a 

person there for you at all times.”

 MELANIE MYERS > >
 Vice President, Retail Banking 





STEVE MILLER
Vice President, Business Banking



PROGRESS THROUGH 
PARTNERSHIPS

Asking the right questions of the right people. 

Listening to the answers. Developing the 

products. Delivering the best service. This is 

how Business Banking succeeded in a particu-

larly challenging year punctuated by increased 

energy costs and decreased small business 

growth. Eric Mills, Senior Vice President, 

Business Banking, explains, “Our bankers can 

walk into a client’s offi ce and say, ‘I know your 

business and it’s refl ected in this product I 

helped develop.’ This is a very powerful state-

ment to make.” This determination to deliver 

customer-focused service not only pleased our 

clients, but also garnered awards from experts 

in customer research, Greenwich Associates. 

Huntington won a Midwest regional award in 

overall customer satisfaction, as well as two 

national awards in overall customer satisfac-

tion and branch service performance. This is 

consistent with what customers are saying 

about our business approach – they want a 

responsive banker in tune with their business.

Our bankers are winning through “people, products 

and process.” We hire candidates who exceed 

expectations and then invest in training them fully. 

Products are developed only after reaching out to 

the bankers who will sell them and the customers 

who will use them. Finally, our process is disciplined 

and streamlined, giving our bankers the ability to 

localize and accelerate decision-making. Having 

national resources provides a competitive advantage. 

According to Vice President, Business Banking, 

Steve Miller, this combination has allowed his West 

Michigan offi ce to initiate a record number of 

interest rate “swaps” for loans. These swaps allow 

a client to fi x a construction loan rate before the 

project is fi nished, resulting in a locked-in lower 

rate months before most banks can secure traditional 

fi xed rates. “We’re the only bank in town that will 

allow swaps for loans under $1 million,” says Miller. 

“This gives our client the most competitive rate, 

while we maintain a fl oating rate backed by a bond. 

It’s a win-win.” And it’s another example of how 

customer need drives personalized solutions.

BUSINESS ONLINE
“In some markets, we’re not blessed with a large number of banking offi ces,” says Senior Vice President, Business Banking, 

Lee Lemke, “which means we’ve needed to be more creative to succeed, and that takes technology.” Huntington successfully 

married creativity and our trademark customer service with the launch of Business Online, our new Business Banking web site. 

Most fi nancial institutions offer basic access and products, while Business Online provides up-to-the-minute account information

and transaction capabilities, expanded customized reporting and 24-hour access. “It started with a vision,” says Pam Erickson, 

Vice President, Enterprise Online Services, “to create a single portal so customers could access all lines of business.” The site

developers gathered customers’ initial thoughts and later collected their impressions of the site’s prototype. This feedback was

incorporated into the fi nal product and the reaction has been phenomenal: We’ve added more than 4,800 users since the site’s 

launch, received positive customer reaction and have been selected as a fi nalist for the “Outstanding Product” from Tech Columbus’ 

TOP CAT Awards, recognizing outstanding achievement in all aspects of technology.



FINDING A BETTER WAY

In Commercial Banking, the account relationship 

associates take care of client service. Once 

the relationship is established, they support 

our commercial bankers by being a single point 

of contact for customers – to solve problems, 

open accounts and process loans. Kathy Loken, 

Vice President, Commercial Banking, explains, 

“We look at what we can do to make life easier 

for the commercial banker. We also look at how 

we can make the process easier and more ef-

fi cient. If we have to ask ‘why do we do this?’, 

we can look into ways to improve the process.” 

Loken speaks enthusiastically about the confi -

dence instilled in her team as a result of these 

additional responsibilities. “One relationship 

specialist noticed her customer had $2 million 

deposited with other banks. She worked with

our Huntington Investment Company represen-

tative to improve the customer’s return, and 

the customer brought those accounts over to 

Huntington. This evolved directly out of this 

relationship specialist’s new day-to-day contact 

with her client.”

A huge initiative in 2005 involved getting commercial 

customers set up for Business Online. This has saved 

customers money, and they have expressed satisfaction 

with the user-friendly, instant access. The year also 

saw a re-engineering of the Commercial Banking 

process. Frank Capella, Executive Vice President, 

Commercial Banking, describes this as a more effi cient 

allocation of time by our relationship managers. “It 

also empowered our relationship specialists, so the 

job is more rewarding. In the future, we’ll continue 

to refi ne how we deliver service and fi nd new ways to 

get better by always considering what the customer 

wants. We’re all on a journey to deliver ‘Simply the 

Best’ service.”

KATHY LOKEN > >
Vice President, Commercial Banking





RANDY BATEMAN
Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer



INNOVATION 
DRIVES PERFORMANCE

It’s hard to believe that just fi ve years ago, the 

Private Financial and Capital Markets Group 

didn’t have much to brag about: Two equity funds 

with a mere $180,000 in total annual retail sales. 

However, a handpicked management team, an 

innovative approach, a dedicated distribution 

network and fi ve top-performing funds turned 

that all around by the end of last year. “Good 

numbers are not an accident,” says Senior Vice 

President, Private Financial and Capital Markets 

Group, Kirk Mentzer. “We’ve needed to differ-

entiate on service because with investments, 

service is the product.” We have made a point 

of developing unique funds with their own 

story to tell. For instance, Mentzer worked with 

Huntington Investment Company broker, Chris 

Elmore, on the Dividend Capture Fund to position 

it for customers who want to generate monthly 

income while keeping volatility low. It’s now one 

of Huntington’s best-selling retail funds. Unique 

thinking also resulted in our Rotating Markets 

Fund – instead of competing on price alone, we 

compete on net performance, achieving this by 

cleverly applying our investment strategies to 

“rotations” among various market segments.

Led by Senior Vice President and Chief Investment 

Offi cer, Private Financial and Capital Markets 

Group, Randy Bateman, the investment team 

members are encouraged to think outside the 

box. It’s there that incredible opportunities are 

uncovered. Each member of the investment team 

has expertise in a particular area and then shares 

that with others. It’s this kind of partnership that 

bands together individual strengths for the common 

good and, last year, resulted in a lot of positive press 

in top investment publications. Barron’s named 

the Huntington Dividend Capture Fund to its top 

100 mutual fund rankings. Investor’s Business Daily 

profi led the Huntington Mid Corp America Fund.

Kiplinger’s named the Huntington Situs Small Cap 

Fund to its top 10 list of small and midsize blend 

funds, while The Wall Street Journal named the 

same fund to its Category Kings top 10 list of small 

cap core funds as the third best performer. Bateman 

explains, “We’ve spent the past fi ve years creating, 

implementing and augmenting, and our clients 

have reaped the rewards of our hard work.”



DONNIE OLDAKER
Assistant Vice President, Dealer Sales



INVESTING TIME TO FOSTER 
STRONG ALLIANCES

C&O Motors, in St. Albans, WV, has been doing 

business with Huntington’s Assistant Vice 

President, Dealer Sales, Donnie Oldaker, for 

more than 10 years. While most banks deal 

only with a dealership’s fi nance department 

regarding customer lending, Oldaker initiated 

and fostered relationships with not only the 

fi nance department, but also with C&O’s general 

manager and its owner, too. Oldaker’s perse-

verance paid off in the form of a signifi cant fl oor 

plan deal to fi nance the dealership’s inventory. 

“I was the fi rst one the owner called. I got him 

a proposal within the week. Time is crucial in 

this business. I’ve earned their trust and won’t 

let things lay around.” Oldaker credits his 

success with a bit of the old-fashioned Golden 

Rule approach – he treats his customers as he’d 

like to be treated. “I put myself in our customer’s 

shoes…it’s a constant reminder to deliver 

‘Simply the Best’ service on a daily basis.”

Dealer Sales has long been a core business for 

Huntington. And it’s a multilayered one. Indirectly, 

the bank provides customer fi nancing with the 

dealer as middleman. More directly, the dealership 

is also the bank’s customer when it comes to 

fi nancing all other aspects of the dealer’s business – 

inventory loans, building purchases, merchant 

services, etc. According to Senior Executive Vice 

President, Dealer Sales, Nick Stanutz, Huntington 

brings unique benefi ts to the table. The fi rst is the 

ability to originate auto loans, auto leasing and 

commercial lending all under one roof. Adds Stanutz, 

“Second, our decentralized business model allows 

us to remain close to the marketplace, so each loan 

decision is made locally by an underwriter who 

understands the market. We really are the ‘local 

bank with national resources.’ ”



CONNECTION



SHARED EXPERIENCES 
CAN CHANGE LIVES

“Simply the Best” is a surprisingly straightforward 

promise to deliver a memorable experience 

that lets our customers know we care. It’s a 

big promise to make, but it’s Huntington’s all-

encompassing strategy for winning and retaining 

customers. It’s also an initiative so integral 

to our success that we’ve created a position 

designed specifi cally to help us deliver. Our 

Executive Vice President, Customer Experience, 

Jane Ashley, speaks passionately about the 

power of each customer experience to create 

emotional attachments between the bank and 

its customers.

“As we began our journey to ‘Simply the Best’ 

service, we spent a great deal of time listening 

to our customers,” explains Ashley. “We learned 

that customers demand that we do it right and 

that we are available when they need us. They 

desire a personal connection with us. We also 

learned that customers don’t think any bank 

can deliver on this promise. We are changing 

that perception.”

When customers receive “Simply the Best” 

service, we believe they will become loyal 

advocates. They won’t hesitate to refer friends 

and family members. Huntington is taking the 

steps to ensure our service philosophy is deliv-

ered by all associates and in everything they do.

Nothing creates customer loyalty like an experience 

that changes lives for the better. This year, a mortgage 

loan closer named Anthony Davis was approached 

with a unique situation. Davis’ customer, a single mom, 

needed a loan in an unusually expedited timeframe 

in order to get her son off to college. Davis pulled 

out all the stops to make it happen for his customer 

in time. Later, after receiving a photo of the student 

back in school and a heartfelt inscription attributing 

to Davis this major accomplishment, Davis posted 

the photo in his offi ce. And while he insists a simple 

thank you would have suffi ced, Davis has used that 

photo for inspiration, having added the caption, “This 

is why I do what I do.” It’s this kind of self-motivated, 

above-and-beyond attitude that is at the core of what 

Ashley calls the heart of Huntington. “There are times 

when our associates can step up and make a difference 

in our customers’ lives. And that’s ‘Simply the Best.’ ”

< < JANE ASHLEY
 Executive Vice President,
 Customer Experience



LINES OF BUSINESS

TOTAL CREDIT EXPOSURE BY LINE OF BUSINESS(1)

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005

NET INCOME BY LINE OF BUSINESS(1)

2005 FULL YEAR

Regional Banking (71%)

Dealer Sales(2) (22%)

Private Financial and
Capital Markets Group (7%)

Regional Banking (72%)

Dealer Sales (16%)

Private Financial and
Capital Markets Group (12%)

(1) Excluding Treasury/Other

(2) Includes operating lease assets and commercial loans;    
 18% excluding commercial loans

(1) Operating basis and before Treasury/Other

20

We view our operations as three distinct lines of business: Regional Banking, Dealer Sales, and the Private 

Financial and Capital Markets Group. A fourth segment includes the company’s Treasury functions and other 

unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue, and expense. We use earnings on an operating basis, rather than on 

a GAAP basis, to measure underlying performance trends for each business segment. Analyzing earnings 

on an operating basis is very helpful in assessing underlying performance trends, a critical factor to determine 

the success of strategies and future earnings capabilities. Operating earnings represent GAAP earnings 

adjusted to exclude the impact of certain signifi cant items. (See the Segment Reporting Note in the Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Information section of this Annual Report for a complete 

reconciliation between GAAP and operating earnings.)

REGIONAL BANKING

KEY FINANCIAL MEASURES 

in thousands 2005 2004

Operating Revenues (fully taxable equivalent) $ 1,092,372 $ 987,796

Operating Earnings  290,627  250,415

Total Loans and Leases (December 31)  17,551,858  16,591,964

RETAIL BANKING PROFILE

Customer base comprised of 816,000 customers, of which 69,000 are small businesses.

Products and services include home equity loans, fi rst mortgage loans, installment loans, small business loans, 

and deposit products, as well as cash management, investment, and insurance services.

COMMERCIAL BANKING PROFILE

Customer base comprised of middle-market and larger corporations with annual sales of $10-$500 million 

headquartered in our marketplace.

Products and services include commercial and industrial loans, commercial construction fi nancing, equipment 

leasing, deposit products, cash management, and international trade services, as well as alternative fi nancing 

solutions through Huntington’s Private Financial and Capital Markets Group.
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RETAIL BANKING REVIEW

Retail Banking is a core strength at Huntington. It has the largest customer base throughout our eight banking regions 

and helps fuel additional business for all other areas of the company. Retail customers own small businesses, buy houses, 

fi nance cars, open trust accounts, buy insurance, and seek investment advice and trading access. Our products meet 

these needs, and a retail banking offi ce associate is often the fi rst point of contact to develop additional relationships. 

Our associates are committed to providing “Simply the Best” customer experience, and it is becoming a way of life. We 

operate as the “local bank with national resources,” which means that decisions are made locally with all the national 

resources necessary to provide customers with a full range of fi nancial services. 

Our efforts are producing strong results. We continued to attract new customers in 2005. New consumer checking 

account households increased 2%, while new small business relationships grew 6%. In addition, our average consumer 

and small business cross-sell ratios improved 18% and 6%, respectively. We received three excellence awards from 

Greenwich Associates, two national awards for our small business banking overall customer satisfaction and branch 

service and one Midwest regional award for overall customer satisfaction. 

During the last decade, customers have been transforming the way they do business with almost everyone, including 

banks. While banking offi ces remain important, about half of our checking account customers have signed up for our 

robust online banking service. In addition, more than 4,800 small business customers have signed up for our new 

online business banking service that focuses on providing advanced cash fl ow management capabilities. Some customers 

use online banking for almost everything, including bill payment, signing up for new accounts, and verifying account 

balances. Others use it as a complement to personal service in a banking offi ce. Online banking has grown into a major 

service delivery system. This, coupled with the addition of more than 200 branded ATMs and the addition of four 

full service banking offi ces in 2005, makes banking even more convenient.

During 2005, we capitalized on the capabilities of our new Enterprise Sales and Service technology platform that 

combines all of a customer’s information on one screen. This expedites every transaction and provides a streamlined 

ability to anticipate future customer needs. Our new business loan application system enables us to provide better, 

faster, and more responsive answers to borrowers and lets us track the progress of a loan through every step of the 

process. These systems make banking easier and more convenient for our customers. Coupled with “Simply the Best” 

service, this results in an enhanced customer experience.

Our people continue to make the difference. The banking offi ce General Manager program, started in January 2005, 

provides additional career and compensation opportunities for our best performing managers. The program has been 

embraced by our staff and continues to fl ourish throughout our regions. 

Retail Banking offers excellent products with a full complement of ways customers can do their banking with us 

delivered with “Simply the Best” customer experience available anywhere.
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COMMERCIAL BANKING REVIEW

Our Commercial Banking strategy continues to build long-term partnerships with targeted Ideal Huntington Clients. 

We have a clear and distinct value proposition that is attractive to a defi ned set of businesses, and our associates are 

focused, disciplined, and relentless in client selection and development. Ideal Huntington Clients are generally com-

mercial customers with annual sales of $10 million – $500 million who can benefi t from a fi nancial relationship from 

our advisors’ innovative ideas and advice. We offer a robust range of fi nancing options. Yet, lending money is only 

one piece of the complete relationship we want to develop with new and existing customers. As partners, our purpose 

is to help them build ownership value by delivering good investment returns, effi cient cash collection and disbursement, 

fl exible borrowing alternatives, and access to capital markets.

Our structure, coupled with fully trained Commercial Banking staff, easily allows delivery of our full range of services. 

Our “local bank with national resources” model ensures decisions are made close to customers. State-of-the-art 

fi nancing and servicing options permit customized fi nancial solutions. We offer solutions in the areas of treasury and 

cash management, interest rate risk management, trade fi nancing, foreign exchange, equipment and technology leasing, 

401(k) plan services, investment management, custody services, and a full range of private banking products. 

Our standard sales process includes system-wide relationship and business banking models and requires formal sales 

training for all commercial associates. This is a continuous process. In addition, we continually update and redesign 

workfl ows for customer service and support to improve productivity and to make it easier to sell the full range of new 

products and services. We offer leading-edge products designed to provide customers access to their cash management 

needs in a secure environment, with better online self-service, through the introduction of Business Online and remote 

check capture. Corporate banking customers can track transactions on a round-the-clock basis. We continue to focus 

on sustaining and improving our “Simply the Best” service goals. Our progress is being noticed. In 2005, Greenwich 

Associates recognized several of our middle-market banking products and services. 

The combination of our focus on Ideal Huntington Clients and disciplined credit culture permit us to reduce credit 

risk while growing our customer base. We are confi dent about our ability to grow the commercial business and the 

number of Ideal Huntington Clients. We have the right people in the right place, offering the right products and 

providing “Simply the Best” customer experience.
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DEALER SALES

KEY FINANCIAL MEASURES 

in thousands 2005 2004

Operating Revenues (fully taxable equivalent) $ 315,370 $ 469,945

Operating Earnings  67,184  65,639

Total Loans and Leases (December 31)  5,241,036  5,346,214

Operating Lease Assets (December 31)  189,002  574,042

PROFILE

Automobile lending activities and relationships with more than 3,500 automobile dealers in Huntington’s fi ve banking 

states, plus Arizona, Florida, Georgia, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, and Tennessee.

Products and services include indirect consumer loans and leases, as well as dealer fl oor plan and other commercial 

fi nancing and banking services.

REVIEW

Dealer Sales has been a major Huntington line of business for more than 50 years. More than 85% of our Dealer Sales 

assets are generated through automobile dealers within our fi ve-state footprint, with the remainder originated in 

seven additional states. In order to be close to our more than 3,500 customers, we maintain seven regional sales and 

underwriting offi ces. 

Our focus is on relationships and profi tability. Last year, we maintained our top market position in all our markets, 

despite intense competition, by focusing on our essential partnership with dealers and delivering “Simply the Best” 

service. As an essential partner, we provide dealers with automobile loans and leases as well as commercial fl oor plan 

loans and a wide range of fi nancing and cash management services. Many of our competitors build temporary mar-

ket share by offering discounted pricing. In contrast, we build profi table relationships for the long term. 

The automobile business changes every year, and automobile manufacturer product offerings vary by type and price.  

Our business is accustomed to these changes, and our service is fl exible to meet the needs of the customer. While every 

car sale is a personal buyer decision, we personalize the service and make the transaction easy for both buyer and dealer.

Total U.S. auto sales in 2005 were comparable to 2004. In contrast, our production level declined due to a greater focus 

by the captive fi nance companies on new car leasing. However, in the face of elevated competition, we maintained our 

level of credit quality and reduced costs associated with operating the business.

We also maintained our objective to limit our automobile loan and lease credit exposure to 20% or less of Huntington’s 

total credit exposure. To help accomplish this objective, we entered into an agreement to sell 50%-75% of our new 

automobile loan originations. This reduces our risk profi le, while retaining the high-return servicing right for these 

credits and providing a stable source of non-interest income.

By focusing on the basics of disciplined pricing, consistent underwriting, and exceptional service, we have excellent 

future prospects for quality, profi table growth in Dealer Sales in 2006.
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PRIVATE FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL MARKETS GROUP

KEY FINANCIAL MEASURES 

in thousands 2005 2004

Operating Revenues (fully taxable equivalent) $ 208,354 $ 195,857

Operating Earnings  47,208  44,630

Total Loans and Leases (December 31)  1,719,347  1,635,367

PROFILE

Provides products and services targeted at high net worth individuals, as well as corporate and institutional customers.

Products and services include personal, institutional, and corporate trust; asset management, including 29 Huntington 

Funds (our proprietary mutual fund family); investment advisory and brokerage services; insurance; private banking; 

and a wide array of capital market fi nancial solutions for our corporate and institutional customers.

REVIEW

Our Private Financial and Capital Markets Group offers products and services targeted at high net worth individuals 

and businesses needing unique fi nancial solutions. 

For our private banking clients, our unique distribution model employs a unifi ed sales force that effi ciently delivers 

private banking and wealth management products and services through Huntington’s Regional Banking distribution 

channels. Customers have access to a single individual with the expertise to present a complete menu of investment, 

insurance, and private banking options. For our corporate and institutional customers, we also offer an array of capital 

market fi nancial solutions, including investment banking, securities sales and trading, mezzanine capital fi nancing, 

risk management products, 401(k) plans, pension, custody and corporate trust services.  

2005 was another excellent year of continued growth. At year-end, we had nearly $11 billion of assets under manage-

ment, a 10% increase over 2004. Trust assets exceeded $45 billion, a 7% increase year over year, and trust fees have 

increased for nine consecutive quarters. 

Our ability to grow assets is a direct result of a full range of innovative products that meet customer needs. For example, 

in 2004 we developed and introduced to our managed account clients highly popular enhanced option investment 

techniques tailored to current market conditions. We also expanded our distribution channel by adding two offi ces 

in Florida in 2005.

The investment performance of many of our mutual funds also fueled our success. Morningstar, a leading mutual 

fund evaluation service, rated four of our nine equity funds 4-Stars for the periods ending December 31, 2005, and 

one fi xed income fund received 5-Stars for the same periods. In 2005, our proprietary mutual fund assets grew to 

$3.5 billion, and our equity fund assets grew by 15%. 

The Private Financial and Capital Markets Group continued to produce consistent growth in loans, deposits, assets 

under management, and fee income through the sale of other banking services. Private Financial and Capital Markets 

Group associates deliver all banking, investment, insurance, and capital markets products with the objective of pro-

viding nothing less than “Simply the Best” service.

MUTUAL FUNDS: NOT A DEPOSIT. NOT FDIC INSURED. NOT INSURED BY ANY GOVERNMENT AGENCY. NO BANK GUARANTEE. MAY LOSE VALUE.
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STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

2005 CASH DIVIDEND DATA

   PER COMMON
QUARTER RECORD DATE PAYMENT DATE SHARE AMOUNT

1st March 17, 2005 April 1, 2005 $ 0.20
2nd June 16, 2005 July 1, 2005 0.215
3rd September 16, 2005 October 3, 2005 0.215
4th December 16, 2005 January 3, 2006 0.215

COMMON STOCK PRICE(1)

 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

High $ 25.41 $ 25.38 $ 22.55 $ 21.77 $ 19.28 $ 21.82
Low  20.97  20.89  17.78  16.00  12.63  12.52
Close  23.75  24.74  22.50  18.71  17.19  16.19
(1) RESTATED FOR STOCK DIVIDENDS AND STOCK SPLITS AS APPLICABLE.

20-YEAR DIVIDEND HISTORY

 CASH  DISTRIBUTION
 DIVIDENDS STOCK DATE OF STOCK 
 DECLARED(1) DIVIDEND/SPLITS DIVIDEND/SPLIT

1986 $ 0.15 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-86
1987 0.17 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-87
1988 0.18 5/4 Stock Split 7-31-88
1989 0.21 15% Stock Dividend 7-31-89
1990 0.24 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-90
1991 0.27 5% Stock Dividend 7-31-91
1992 0.29 5/4 Stock Split 7-31-92
1993 0.35 10% Stock Dividend 7-30-93
1994 0.43 5/4 Stock Split 7-29-94
1995 0.48 5% Stock Dividend 7-31-95
(1) RESTATED FOR STOCK DIVIDENDS AND STOCK SPLITS AS APPLICABLE.

 CASH  DISTRIBUTION
 DIVIDENDS STOCK DATE OF STOCK 
 DECLARED(1) DIVIDEND/SPLITS DIVIDEND/SPLIT

1996 $ 0.52 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-96
1997 0.57 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-97
1998 0.63 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-98
1999 0.69 10% Stock Dividend 7-30-99
2000 0.76 10% Stock Dividend 7-31-00
2001 0.72 – –
2002 0.64 – –
2003 0.67 – –
2004 0.75 – –
2005 0.85 – –

ANTICIPATED 2006 DIVIDEND 

PAYABLE DATES*

1st Quarter April 3, 2006
2nd Quarter July 3, 2006
3rd Quarter October 2, 2006
4th Quarter January 2, 2007
*SUBJECT TO ACTION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT DISCLOSURE

This annual report contains forward-looking statements, including certain plans, expectations, goals, and projec-

tions that are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from 

those contained in or implied by Huntington’s statements due to a variety of factors including, but not limited to, those 

described under the heading “Business Risks” in Huntington’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, and 

other factors described from time to time in Huntington’s other fi lings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

10-YEAR TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS

DECEMBER 31, 1995 TO DECEMBER 31, 2005 (ASSUMES INITIAL INVESTMENT OF $1,000 AND REINVESTMENT OF ALL DIVIDENDS)

$3,000

$2,500

$2,000

$1,500

$1,000

1996

10-Year Compound Average Annual Total Return          Huntington 8.4%          S&P 500 9.1%

$2,235

$2,381

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Table 1 — Selected Financial Data
Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Interest income $ 1,641,765 $ 1,347,315 $ 1,305,756 $ 1,293,195 $ 1,654,789
Interest expense 679,354 435,941 456,770 543,621 939,501

Net interest income 962,411 911,374 848,986 749,574 715,288
Provision for credit losses 81,299 55,062 163,993 194,426 257,326

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 881,112 856,312 684,993 555,148 457,962

Service charges on deposit accounts 167,834 171,115 167,840 153,564 165,012
Operating lease income 138,433 287,091 489,698 657,074 691,733
Gain on sales of automobile loans 1,211 14,206 40,039 — —
Gain on sale of branch offices — — 13,112 — —
Gain on sale of Florida operations — — — 182,470 —
Merchant services gain — — — 24,550 —
Securities gains (losses) (8,055) 15,763 5,258 4,902 723
Other non-interest income 332,859 330,423 353,206 319,144 342,474

Total non-interest income 632,282 818,598 1,069,153 1,341,704 1,199,942

Personnel costs 481,658 485,806 447,263 418,037 454,210
Operating lease expense 108,376 236,478 393,270 518,970 558,626
Restructuring reserve (releases) charges — (1,151) (6,666) 48,973 79,957
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — 15,250 — —
Other non-interest expense 379,786 401,111 381,042 388,167 469,634

Total non-interest expense 969,820 1,122,244 1,230,159 1,374,147 1,562,427

Income before income taxes 543,574 552,666 523,987 522,705 95,477
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 131,483 153,741 138,294 198,974 (39,319)(5)

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 412,091 398,925 385,693 323,731 134,796
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax(1) — — (13,330) — —

Net income $ 412,091 $ 398,925 $ 372,363 $ 323,731 $ 134,796

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle per common share — basic $ 1.79 $ 1.74 $ 1.68 $ 1.34 $ 0.54

Net Income per common share — basic 1.79 1.74 1.62 1.34 0.54
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle per common share — diluted 1.77 1.71 1.67 1.33 0.54
Net Income per common share — diluted 1.77 1.71 1.61 1.33 0.54
Cash dividends declared 0.845 0.750 0.670 0.640 0.720

Balance sheet highlights

Total assets (period end) $32,764,805 $32,565,497 $30,519,326 $27,539,753 $28,458,769
Total long-term debt (period end)(2) 4,597,437 6,326,885 6,807,979 4,246,801 2,739,332
Total shareholders’ equity (period end) 2,557,501 2,537,638 2,275,002 2,189,793 2,341,897
Average long-term debt(2) 5,168,959 6,650,367 5,816,660 3,613,527 3,429,480
Average shareholders’ equity 2,582,721 2,374,137 2,196,348 2,238,761 2,330,968
Average total assets 32,639,011 31,432,746 28,971,701 26,063,281 28,126,386

Key ratios and statistics

Margin analysis — as a % of average earnings assets
Interest income(3) 5.65% 4.89% 5.35% 6.23% 7.58%
Interest expense 2.32 1.56 1.86 2.61 4.29

Net interest margin(3) 3.33% 3.33% 3.49% 3.62% 3.29%

Return on average total assets 1.26% 1.27% 1.29% 1.24% 0.48%
Return on average total shareholders’ equity 16.0 16.8 17.0 14.5 5.8
Efficiency ratio(4) 60.0 65.0 63.9 65.6 79.2
Dividend payout ratio 47.7 43.9 41.6 48.1 133.3
Average shareholders’ equity to average assets 7.91 7.55 7.58 8.59 8.29
Effective tax rate 24.2 27.8 26.4 38.1 (41.2)(5)

Tangible equity to asset (period end)(6) 7.19 7.18 6.79 7.22 5.86
Tier 1 leverage ratio 8.34 8.42 7.98 8.51 7.16
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio (period end) 9.13 9.08 8.53 8.34 7.02
Total risk-based capital ratio (period end) 12.42 12.48 11.95 11.25 10.07

Other data

Full-time equivalent employees 7,602 7,812 7,983 8,177 9,743
Domestic banking offices 344 342 338 343 481

(1) Due to the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46 ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.’’

(2) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank advances, other long-term debt, and subordinated notes.

(3) On a fully taxable equivalent (FTE) basis assuming a 35% tax rate.

(4) Non-interest expense less amortization of intangibles divided by the sum of FTE net interest income and non-interest income excluding securities gains.

(5) Reflects a $32.5 million reduction related to the issuance of $400 million REIT subsidiary preferred stock, of which $50 million was sold to the public.

(6) Total equity minus intangible assets divided by total assets minus intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated (we or our) is a multi-state diversified financial holding company organized under Maryland

law in 1966 and headquartered in Columbus, Ohio. Through our subsidiaries, we provide full-service commercial and consumer

banking services, mortgage banking services, automobile financing, equipment leasing, investment management, trust services,

brokerage services, private mortgage insurance; reinsure credit life and disability insurance; and sell other insurance and financial

products and services. Our banking offices are located in Ohio, Michigan, West Virginia, Indiana, and Kentucky. Certain activities

are also conducted in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Nevada, New Jersey, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South Carolina,

and Tennessee. We have a foreign office in the Cayman Islands and another in Hong Kong. The Huntington National Bank (the

Bank), organized in 1866, is our only bank subsidiary.

The following discussion and analysis provides you with information we believe necessary for understanding our financial

condition, changes in financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows and should be read in conjunction with the

financial statements, notes, and other information contained in this report.

You should note the following discussion is divided into key segments:

– INTRODUCTION — Provides overview comments on important matters including risk factors, the now settled Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) investigation, any bank regulatory agreements, and critical accounting policies and the use of

significant estimates. These are essential for understanding our performance and prospects.

– DISCUSSION OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — Reviews financial performance from a consolidated company perspective. It

also includes a Significant Factors Influencing Financial Performance Comparisons section that summarizes key issues

helpful for understanding performance trends. Key consolidated balance sheet and income statement trends are also

discussed in this section.

– RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL — Discusses credit, market, liquidity, and operational risks, including how these are

managed, as well as performance trends. It also includes a discussion of liquidity policies, how we fund ourselves, and

related performance. In addition, there is a discussion of guarantees and/or commitments made for items such as standby

letters of credit and commitments to sell loans, and a discussion that reviews the adequacy of capital including regulatory

capital requirements.

– LINES OF BUSINESS DISCUSSION — Provides an overview of financial performance for each of our major lines of business

and provides additional discussion of trends underlying consolidated financial performance.

– RESULTS FOR THE FOURTH QUARTER — Provides a discussion of results for the 2005 fourth quarter compared with the

year-earlier quarter.

A reading of each section is important for you to understand fully the nature of our financial performance and prospects.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report, including Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, contains

forward-looking statements. These include descriptions of products or services, plans or objectives for future operations, including

any pending acquisitions, and forecasts of revenues, earnings, cash flows, or other measures of economic performance. Forward-

looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts.

By their nature, forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. A number of factors

could cause actual conditions, events, or results to differ significantly from those described in the forward-looking statements.

These factors include, but are not limited to, those set forth under Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2005, and other factors described in this report and from time to time in our other filings with the SEC.

You should understand forward-looking statements to be strategic objectives and not absolute forecasts of future performance.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. We assume no obligation to update forward-looking

statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements were made or to reflect the

occurrence of unanticipated events.

Risk Factors

We, like other financial companies, are subject to a number of risks, many of which are outside of our direct control, though

efforts are made to manage those risks while optimizing returns. Among the risks assumed are: (1) credit risk, which is the risk

that loan and lease customers or other counterparties will be unable to perform their contractual obligations, (2) market risk,
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which is the risk that changes in market rates and prices will adversely affect our financial condition or results of operation,

(3) liquidity risk, which is the risk that the parent company and/or the Bank will have insufficient cash or access to cash to meet

operating needs, and (4) operational risk, which is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people

and systems, or external events. More information on risks is set forth in Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31, 2005.

Securities and Exchange Commission Formal Investigation

On June 26, 2003, we announced that the SEC staff was conducting a formal investigation into certain financial accounting

matters, relating to fiscal years 2002 and earlier, and certain related disclosure matters.

On June 2, 2005, we announced that the SEC approved the settlement of their formal investigation. As a part of the settlement,

the SEC instituted a cease and desist administrative proceeding and entered a cease and desist order, as well as filed a civil action

in federal district court pursuant to which, without admitting or denying the allegations in the complaint, we, our chief executive

officer, former chief financial officer, and former controller, consented to pay civil money penalties. We consented to pay a

penalty of $7.5 million, which may be distributed pursuant to the Fair Fund provisions of Section 308(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002. This civil money penalty had no impact on our 2005 financial results, as reserves for this amount were established

and expensed in 2004.

Formal Regulatory Supervisory Agreements and Pending Acquisition

On March 1, 2005, we announced entering into a formal written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland (FRBC),

as well as the Bank entering into a formal written agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC),

providing for a comprehensive action plan designed to enhance corporate governance, internal audit, risk management,

accounting policies and procedures, and financial and regulatory reporting. The agreements called for independent third-party

reviews, as well as the submission of written plans and progress reports by Management, and would remain in effect until

terminated by the banking regulators.

On October 6, 2005, we announced that the OCC had terminated its formal written agreement with the Bank dated February 28,

2005, and that the FRBC written agreement remained in effect. We were verbally advised that we were in full compliance with

the financial holding company and financial subsidiary requirements under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLB Act). This

notification reflected that we and the Bank met both the ‘‘well-capitalized’’ and ‘‘well-managed’’ criteria under the GLB Act. We

believe that the changes we have already made, and are in the process of making, will address the FRBC issues fully and

comprehensively.

On January 27, 2004, we announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire Unizan Financial Corp. (Unizan), a financial

holding company based in Canton, Ohio. On November 12, 2004, the companies jointly announced entering into an amendment

to our January 26, 2004 merger agreement extending the term of the agreement for one year from January 27, 2005 to

January 27, 2006. On the same date, we also announced that we withdrew our application with the FRBC to acquire Unizan. On

October 24, 2005, we announced that, after consultation with the FRBC, we had re-filed our application to acquire Unizan. On

January 26, 2006, we announced that the Federal Reserve Board had approved our merger application. The merger is scheduled

to close March 1, 2006.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Significant Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to establish critical accounting policies and make

accounting estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect amounts recorded and reported in our financial statements. Note 1

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report lists significant accounting policies we use in the

development and presentation of our financial statements. This discussion and analysis, the significant accounting policies, and

other financial statement disclosures identify and address key variables and other qualitative and quantitative factors necessary for

an understanding and evaluation of our company, financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

An accounting estimate requires assumptions about uncertain matters that could have a material effect on the financial statements

if a different amount within a range of estimates were used or if estimates changed from period to period. You should

understand that estimates are made under facts and circumstances at a point in time, and changes in those facts and

circumstances could produce actual results that differ from when those estimates were made. The most significant accounting

estimates and their related application are discussed below. This analysis is included to emphasize that estimates are used in
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connection with the critical and other accounting policies and to illustrate the potential effect on the financial statements if the

actual amount were different from the estimated amount.

– TOTAL ALLOWANCES FOR CREDIT LOSSES — At December 31, 2005, the total allowances for credit losses (ACL) was

$305.3 million and represented the sum of the allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) and the allowance for unfunded loan

commitments and letters of credit (AULC). The amount of the ACL was determined by our judgments regarding the quality of

the loan portfolio, including loan commitments. All known relevant internal and external factors that affected loan collectibility

were considered. The ACL represents the estimate of the level of reserves appropriate to absorb inherent credit losses. We

believe the process for determining the ACL considers all of the significant potential factors that could result in credit losses.

However, the process includes judgmental and quantitative elements that may be subject to significant change. To the extent

actual outcomes differ from our estimates, additional provision for credit losses could be required, which could adversely affect

earnings or financial performance in future periods. At December 31, 2005, the ACL as a percent of total loans and leases was

1.25%. Based on the December 31, 2005 balance sheet, a 10 basis point increase in this ratio to 1.35% would require

$25.1 million in additional reserves funded by additional provision for credit losses, which would have negatively impacted

2005 net income by approximately $16.3 million, or $0.07 per share. A discussion about the process used to estimate the ACL is

presented in the Credit Risk section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis in this report.

– FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — A significant portion of our assets is carried at fair value, including securities,

derivatives, and trading assets. Additionally, a smaller portion is carried at the lower of fair value or cost, including held-for-

sale loans and mortgage servicing rights (MSRs). At December 31, 2005, approximately $4.9 billion of our assets were recorded

at either fair value or at the lower of fair value or cost.

The fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The majority of assets reported at fair value are

based on quoted market prices or on internally developed models that utilize independently sourced market parameters,

including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities, and currency rates.

We estimate the fair value of a financial instrument using a variety of valuation methods. Where financial instruments are

actively traded and have quoted market prices, quoted market prices are used for fair value. When observable market prices do

not exist, we estimate fair value. Our valuation methods consider factors such as liquidity and concentration concerns and, for

the derivatives portfolio, counterparty credit risk. Other factors such as model assumptions, market dislocations, and

unexpected correlations can affect estimates of fair value. Imprecision in estimating these factors can impact the amount of

revenue or loss recorded for a particular position.

Trading securities and securities available-for-sale
Substantially all of our securities are valued based on quoted market prices. However, certain securities are less actively

traded. These securities do not always have quoted market prices. The determination of their fair value, therefore, requires

judgment, as this determination may require benchmarking to similar instruments or analyzing default and recovery rates.

Examples include certain collateralized mortgage and debt obligations and high-yield debt securities.

Our securities available-for-sale are valued using quoted market prices. Our derivative positions are valued using internally

developed models based on observable market parameters — that is, parameters that are actively quoted and can be validated

to external sources, including industry-pricing services.

Loans held-for-sale
The fair value of loans in the held-for-sale portfolio is generally based on observable market prices of similar instruments. If

market prices are not available, fair value is based on the estimated cash flows, adjusted for credit risk. The credit risk

adjustment is discounted using a rate that is appropriate for each maturity and incorporates the effects of interest rate

changes.

MSRs and other servicing rights
MSRs and certain other servicing rights do not trade in an active, open market with readily observable prices. While sales of

MSRs occur, the precise terms and conditions are typically not readily available. Therefore, we estimate the fair value of

MSRs and certain other servicing rights using a discounted future cash flow model. For MSRs and certain other servicing

rights, the model considers portfolio characteristics, contractually specified servicing fees and assumptions related to

prepayments, delinquency rates, late charges, other ancillary revenues, costs to service, and other economic factors. Changes

in the assumptions used may have a significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments. We believe that the

fair values and related assumptions used in the models are comparable to those used by other market participants. Note 5 of
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the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contains an analysis of the impact to the fair value of MSRs resulting from

changes in the estimates used by Management.

– INCOME TAXES — The calculation of our periodic provision for income taxes is complex and requires the use of estimates and

judgments. We have two accruals for income taxes: our accrued income taxes represent the net estimated amount currently due

or to be received from taxing jurisdictions, including any reserve for potential examination issues, and is reported as a

component of ‘‘accrued expenses and other liabilities’’ in our consolidated balance sheet; and our deferred income tax liability

represents the estimated impact of temporary differences between how we recognize our assets and liabilities under GAAP, and

how such assets and liabilities are recognized under the federal tax code.

From time to time, we engage in business transactions that may have an effect on our tax liabilities. Where appropriate, we

have obtained opinions of outside experts and have assessed the relative merits and risks of the appropriate tax treatment of

business transactions taking into account statutory, judicial, and regulatory guidance in the context of our tax position.

However, changes to our estimates of accrued taxes can occur due to changes in tax rates, implementation of new business

strategies, resolution of issues with taxing authorities regarding previously taken tax positions and newly enacted statutory,

judicial, and regulatory guidance. Such changes could affect the amount of our accrued taxes and could be material to our

results of operations.
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Table 2 — Selected Annual Income Statements

Year Ended December 31,

Change from 2004 Change from 2003

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003 2002 2001

Interest income $1,641,765 $ 294,450 21.9% $1,347,315 $ 41,559 3.2% $1,305,756 $1,293,195 $1,654,789
Interest expense 679,354 243,413 55.8 435,941 (20,829) (4.6) 456,770 543,621 939,501

Net interest income 962,411 51,037 5.6 911,374 62,388 7.3 848,986 749,574 715,288
Provision for credit losses 81,299 26,237 47.7 55,062 (108,931) (66.4) 163,993 194,426 257,326

Net interest income after provision for
credit losses 881,112 24,800 2.9 856,312 171,319 25.0 684,993 555,148 457,962

Service charges on deposit accounts 167,834 (3,281) (1.9) 171,115 3,275 2.0 167,840 153,564 165,012
Operating lease income 138,433 (148,658) (51.8) 287,091 (202,607) (41.4) 489,698 657,074 691,733
Trust services 77,405 9,995 14.8 67,410 5,761 9.3 61,649 62,051 60,298
Brokerage and insurance income 53,619 (1,180) (2.2) 54,799 (3,045) (5.3) 57,844 62,109 75,013
Other service charges and fees 44,348 2,774 6.7 41,574 128 0.3 41,446 42,888 48,217
Mortgage banking 41,710 9,414 29.1 32,296 (25,884) (44.5) 58,180 32,033 54,518
Bank owned life insurance income 40,736 (1,561) (3.7) 42,297 (731) (1.7) 43,028 43,123 41,123
Gain on sales of automobile loans 1,211 (12,995) (91.5) 14,206 (25,833) (64.5) 40,039
Gain on sale of branch offices — — — — (13,112) N.M. 13,112 — —
Gain on sale of Florida operations — — — — — — — 182,470 —
Merchant services gain — — — — — — 24,550 —
Securities gains (losses) (8,055) (23,818) N.M. 15,763 10,505 N.M. 5,258 4,902 723
Other 75,041 (17,006) (18.5) 92,047 988 1.1 91,059 76,940 63,305

Total non-interest income 632,282 (186,316) (22.8) 818,598 (250,555) (23.4) 1,069,153 1,341,704 1,199,942

Personnel costs 481,658 (4,148) (0.9) 485,806 38,543 8.6 447,263 418,037 454,210
Operating lease expense 108,376 (128,102) (54.2) 236,478 (156,792) (39.9) 393,270 518,970 558,626
Outside data processing and other services 74,638 2,523 3.5 72,115 5,997 9.1 66,118 67,368 69,692
Net occupancy 71,092 (4,849) (6.4) 75,941 13,460 21.5 62,481 59,539 76,449
Equipment 63,124 (218) (0.3) 63,342 (2,579) (3.9) 65,921 68,323 80,560
Professional services 34,569 (2,307) (6.3) 36,876 (5,572) (13.1) 42,448 33,085 32,862
Marketing 28,077 1,588 6.0 26,489 (1,001) (3.6) 27,490 27,911 31,057
Telecommunications 18,648 (1,139) (5.8) 19,787 (2,192) (10.0) 21,979 22,661 27,984
Printing and supplies 12,573 110 0.9 12,463 (546) (4.2) 13,009 15,198 18,367
Amortization of intangibles 829 12 1.5 817 1 0.1 816 2,019 41,225
Restructuring reserve (releases) charges — 1,151 N.M. (1,151) 5,515 (82.7) (6,666) 48,973 79,957
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — — — (15,250) N.M. 15,250 — —
Other 76,236 (17,045) (18.3) 93,281 12,501 15.5 80,780 92,063 91,438

Total non-interest expense 969,820 (152,424) (13.6) 1,122,244 (107,915) (8.8) 1,230,159 1,374,147 1,562,427

Income before income taxes 543,574 (9,092) (1.6) 552,666 28,679 5.5 523,987 522,705 95,477
Provision (benefit) for income taxes(3) 131,483 (22,258) (14.5) 153,741 15,447 11.2 138,294 198,974 (39,319)

Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 412,091 13,166 3.3 398,925 13,232 3.4 385,693 323,731 134,796

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of tax(1) — — — — 13,330 N.M. (13,330) — —

Net income $ 412,091 $ 13,166 3.3% $ 398,925 $ 26,562 7.1% $ 372,363 $ 323,731 $ 134,796

Average common shares — basic 230,142 229 0.1% 229,913 512 0.2% 229,401 242,279 251,078
Average common shares — diluted 233,475 (381) (0.2) 233,856 2,274 1.0 231,582 244,012 251,716

Per common share:
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle — basic $ 1.79 $ 0.05 2.9% $ 1.74 $ 0.06 3.6% $ 1.68 $ 1.34 $ 0.54
Net income — basic 1.79 0.05 2.9 1.74 0.12 7.4 1.62 1.34 0.54

Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle — diluted 1.77 0.06 3.5 1.71 0.04 2.4 1.67 1.33 0.54

Net income — diluted 1.77 0.06 3.5 1.71 0.10 6.2 1.61 1.33 0.54

Cash dividends declared 0.845 0.10 12.7 0.750 0.08 11.9 0.670 0.640 0.720

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 962,411 $ 51,037 5.6% $ 911,374 $ 62,388 7.3% $ 848,986 $ 749,574 $ 715,288
FTE adjustment 13,393 1,740 14.9 11,653 1,969 20.3 9,684 5,205 6,352

Net interest income(2) 975,804 52,777 5.7 923,027 64,357 7.5 858,670 754,779 721,640
Non-interest income 632,282 (186,316) (22.8) 818,598 (250,555) (23.4) 1,069,153 1,341,704 1,199,942

Total revenue(2) $1,608,086 $ (133,539) (7.7)% $1,741,625 $(186,198) (9.7)% $1,927,823 $2,096,483 $1,921,582

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Due to adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46 for variable interest entities.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.

(3) 2001 reflects a $32.5 million reduction related to the issuance of $400 million REIT subsidiary preferred stock, of which $50 million was sold to the public.
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DISCUSSION OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section provides a review of financial performance from a consolidated perspective. It also includes a Significant Factors

Influencing Financial Performance Comparisons section that summarizes key issues important for a complete understanding of

performance trends. Key consolidated balance sheet and income statement trends are discussed in this section. All earnings per

share data are reported on a diluted basis. For additional insight on financial performance, this section should be read in

conjunction with the Lines of Business Discussion.

Summary

2005 versus 2004

Earnings for 2005 were $412.1 million, or $1.77 per common share, up 3% and 4%, respectively, from $398.9 million, or $1.71

per common share, in 2004. The $13.2 million increase in net income primarily reflected:

– $152.4 million, or 14%, decline in non-interest expense, primarily reflecting a $128.1 million decline in operating lease

expenses, a $9.9 million decline in SEC-related expenses, a $4.8 million decline in net occupancy expense, a $4.1 million

decline in personnel costs, and a $2.9 million decline in Unizan system conversion expenses.

– $51.0 million, or 6%, increase in net interest income, reflecting a 6% increase in average earning assets, as the net interest

margin of 3.33% was unchanged from the prior year. The increase in average earning assets reflected 10% growth in

average total loans and leases, including 11% growth in average total consumer loans and 8% growth in average total

commercial loans, partially offset by a 14% decline in average investment securities.

– $22.3 million decline in income tax expense as the effective tax rate for 2005 was 24.2%, down from 27.8% in 2004. The

lower 2005 income tax expense reflected a combination of factors including the benefit of a federal tax loss carry back,

partially offset by the net impact of repatriating foreign earnings.

Partially offset by:

– $186.3 million, or 23%, decline in non-interest income. Contributing to the decrease were a $148.7 million decline in

operating lease income, a $23.8 million decline in securities gains as the current year had $8.1 million of securities losses

and the prior year had $15.8 million of securities gains, a $13.0 million decline in gains on sales of automobile loans, a

$17.0 million decline in other income reflecting primarily MSR-hedge related trading losses, and a $3.3 million decline in

service charges on deposit accounts. These declines were partially offset by a $10.0 million increase in trust services

income, a $9.4 million increase in mortgage banking income, and a $2.8 million increase in other service charges and fees.

– $26.2 million, or 48%, increase in the provision for credit losses, reflecting higher levels of non-performing assets and

problem credits, as well as growth in the loan portfolio.

The ROA and ROE for 2005 were 1.26% and 16.0%, respectively, down slightly from 1.27% and 16.8%, respectively, in 2004.

2004 versus 2003

Earnings for 2004 were $398.9 million, or $1.71 per common share, up 7% and 6%, respectively, from $372.4 million, or $1.61

per common share, in 2003. The $26.6 million increase in net income primarily reflected:

– $108.9 million, or 66%, decline in the provision for credit losses, reflecting lower levels of non-performing assets and

problem credits, only partially offset by the impact of loan growth.

– $107.9 million, or 9%, decline in non-interest expense, primarily reflecting a $156.8 million decline in operating lease

expenses, a $15.3 million loss on early extinguishment of debt expense in 2003, a $5.6 million decline in professional

services, and declines in equipment, marketing, telecommunications, and printing and supplies. These declines were

partially offset by a $38.5 million increase in personnel costs, a $13.5 million increase in net occupancy expense, a

$6.7 million increase in SEC/regulatory-related expenses, and $3.6 million of Unizan system conversion expenses, as the

prior year did not have these expenses.

– $62.4 million, or 7%, increase in net interest income, reflecting a 13% increase in average earning assets, partially offset by

the negative impact of a 16 basis point, or an effective 5%, decline in the net interest margin to 3.33% from 3.49%. The

increase in average earning assets reflected 11% growth in average total loans and leases, including 16% growth in average

total consumer loans, 4% growth in average total commercial loans, and a 25% increase in average investment securities.
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Partially offset by:

– $250.6 million, or 23%, decline in non-interest income. Contributing to the decrease were a $202.6 million decline in

operating lease income, a $25.9 million decline in mortgage banking income, a $25.8 million decline in gains on sales of

automobile loans, and the fact that 2003 benefited from a $13.1 million gain on sale of branch offices. Partially offsetting

these declines were $10.5 million of higher securities gains, a $5.8 million increase in trust income, and a $3.3 million

increase in service charges on deposits.

– $15.4 million increase in income tax expense as the effective tax rate for 2004 was 27.8%, up from 26.4% in 2003.

The ROA and ROE for 2004 were 1.27% and 16.8%, respectively, down from 1.29% and 17.0%, respectively, in 2003.

Results Of Operations

Significant Factors Influencing Financial Performance Comparisons

Earnings comparisons from 2003 through 2005 were impacted by a number of factors, some related to changes in the economic

and competitive environment, while others reflected specific management strategies or changes in accounting practices. Those key

factors are summarized below.

1. AUTOMOBILE LEASES ORIGINATED THROUGH APRIL 2002 ARE ACCOUNTED FOR AS OPERATING LEASES. —  Automobile leases

originated before May 2002 are accounted for using the operating lease method of accounting because they do not

qualify as direct financing leases. Operating leases are carried in other assets with the related rental income, other

revenue, and credit recoveries reflected as operating lease income, a component of non-interest income. Under this

accounting method, depreciation expenses, as well as other costs and charge-offs, are reflected as operating lease expense,

a component of non-interest expense. With no new operating leases originated since April 2002, the operating lease

assets have declined rapidly. It is anticipated that the level of operating lease assets and related operating lease income

and expense will decline to a point of diminished materiality sometime in 2006. However, until that point is reached,

and since operating lease income and expense represented a significant percentage of total non-interest income and

expense, respectively, throughout these reporting periods, their downward trend influenced total revenue, total non-

interest income, and total non-interest expense trends.

In contrast, automobile leases originated since April 2002 are accounted for as direct financing leases, an interest earning

asset included in total loans and leases with the related income reflected as interest income and included in the

calculation of the net interest margin. Credit charge-offs and recoveries are reflected in the ALLL, with related changes

in the ALLL reflected in the provision for credit losses. The relative newness and rapid growth of the direct financing

lease portfolio resulted in higher reported automobile lease growth rates than in a more mature portfolio, especially in

2002 through 2004. To better understand overall trends in automobile lease exposure, it is helpful to compare trends in

the combined total of direct financing leases plus operating leases.

2. MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS (MSRS) AND RELATED HEDGING. — Interest rate levels throughout this period have

remained low by historical standards, though they have generally been rising in 2004 and 2005. They have also been

volatile, with increases in one quarter followed by declines in another and vice versa. This has impacted the valuation of

MSRs, which can be volatile when rates change.

– Since the second quarter of 2002, we have generally retained the servicing on mortgage loans we originate and sell.

MSR values are very sensitive to movements in interest rates as expected future net servicing income depends on

the projected outstanding principal balances of the underlying loans, which can be greatly reduced by prepayments.

Prepayments usually increase when mortgage interest rates decline and decrease when mortgage interest rates rise.

Thus, as interest rates decline, less future income is expected and the value of MSRs declines. We recognize

impairment when the valuation is less than the recorded book value. We recognize temporary impairment due to

changes in interest rates through a valuation reserve and record a direct write-down of the book value of MSRs for

other-than-temporary declines in valuation. Changes and fluctuations in interest rate levels between quarters

resulted in some quarters reporting an MSR temporary impairment, with others reporting a recovery of previously

recognized MSR temporary impairment. Such swings in MSR valuations have significantly impacted quarterly

mortgage banking income trends throughout this period.

– Prior to 2004, we used investment securities as the primary method of offsetting MSR temporary valuation changes.

Beginning in 2004, we have used trading account assets. The valuations of trading and investment securities

generally react to interest rate changes in an opposite direction compared with changes in MSR valuations. As a
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result, changes in interest rate levels that impacted MSR valuations also resulted in securities or trading gains or

losses. As such, in quarters where an MSR impairment was recognized, investment securities and/or trading account

assets were sold, typically resulting in a gain on sale or trading income, and vice versa. Investment securities gains

or losses are reflected in the income statement in a single non-interest income line item, whereas trading gains or

losses are a component of other non-interest income on the income statement (see Tables 3 and 7).

3. THE SALE OF AUTOMOBILE LOANS. — Beginning in 2003, a key strategy has been to lower our credit exposure to

automobile loans and leases to 20% or less of total credit exposure, primarily by selling automobile loans. This objective

was achieved during the 2005 first quarter. These sales of loans impacted results in a number of ways including: lower

growth rates in automobile, total consumer, and total loans; and lower net interest income than otherwise would be the

case if the loans were not sold. In addition, during 2004 such sales resulted in the generation of significant gains as large

pools of automobile loans were sold in order to achieve the objective, with such gains reflected in non-interest income.

In the 2005 second quarter, we entered into an arrangement to sell 50%-75% of automobile loan production to a third

party on an on-going basis and retain the loan servicing as part of a strategy to maintain automobile loans and leases

total credit exposure. While this flow-sale program resulted in modest gains in 2005, we view such gains as recurring

given their on-going nature (see Table 3).

4. SIGNIFICANT C&I AND CRE CHARGE-OFFS AND RECOVERIES. — A single commercial credit recovery in the 2004 second

quarter on a loan previously charged off in the 2002 fourth quarter, favorably impacted the 2004 second quarter and full

year provision expense (see Table 17), as well as middle-market commercial and industrial, total commercial, and total

net charge-offs for the 2004 second quarter and full year period (see Table 19). In addition, in the 2005 first quarter, a

single large commercial credit was charged-off. This impacted 2005 first quarter and full year period total net charge-offs

and provision expense (see Tables 3, 17, and 19).

5. EXPENSES AND ACCRUALS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SEC FORMAL INVESTIGATION AND BANKING REGULATORY FORMAL WRITTEN

AGREEMENTS. — On June 26, 2003, we announced that the SEC staff was conducting a formal investigation into certain

financial accounting matters, relating to fiscal years 2002 and earlier, and certain related disclosure matters. In addition,

on March 1, 2005, we announced entering into a formal written agreement with the FRBC, as well as the Bank entering

into a formal written agreement with the OCC, providing for a comprehensive action plan designed to enhance

corporate governance, internal audit, risk management, accounting policies and procedures, and financial and regulatory

reporting. On June 2, 2005, we announced that the SEC approved the settlement of their formal investigation. As a part

of the settlement, we consented to pay a penalty of $7.5 million. This civil money penalty had no impact on our 2005

financial results, as reserves for this amount were established and expensed in 2004. These matters resulted in certain

expenses and accruals as detailed below:

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

First quarter $ 2.0 $ 0.7 $ —

Second quarter 1.7 0.9 0.4

Third quarter — 5.5 4.7

Fourth quarter — 6.5 1.8

Full year $ 3.7 $13.6 $6.9

6. EFFECTIVE TAX RATE. — In each quarter of 2005, the effective tax rate included the after-tax positive impact on net

income due to a federal tax loss carry back, tax exempt income, bank owned life insurance, asset securitization activities,

and general business credits from investment in low income housing and historic property partnerships. In addition, the

2005 third quarter and full-year effective tax rates reflected a $5.0 million after-tax negative net impact, primarily in

increased income tax expense, resulting from the repatriation of foreign earnings. In 2006, the effective tax rate is

anticipated to increase to a more typical rate just below 30%.
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7. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ITEMS INFLUENCING EARNINGS PERFORMANCE COMPARISONS. — From the first quarter of 2003 through

the fourth quarter of 2005, and in addition to other items discussed separately in this section, a number of significant

items impacted financial results. These included:

2005

– $8.1 million pre-tax of investment securities losses related to a decision made during the 2005 fourth quarter to

restructure a portion of the investment portfolio to replace lower rate securities with higher rate securities. This

item lowered non-interest income.

– $5.1 million pre-tax of severance and consolidation expenses associated with the consolidation of certain operations

functions, including the closing of an item-processing center in Michigan. This item increased non-interest expense.

– $2.1 million pre-tax write-off of an equity investment in the 2005 second quarter. This item lowered non-interest

income.

2004

– $7.8 million pre-tax of property lease impairments. This item increased non-interest expense.

– $3.6 million pre-tax of Unizan system conversion expense. This item increased non-interest expense.

– $3.7 million pre-tax one-time funding cost adjustment for a securitization structure consolidated in a prior period,

which lowered interest expense and increased net interest income, as well as the net interest margin.

– $1.2 million pre-tax restructuring reserve release related to reserves established in conjunction with the 2002 sale of

the Florida banking and insurance operations that were no longer needed. This item lowered non-interest expense.

2003

– $15.3 million pre-tax non-interest expense due to the early termination of long-term debt. This item increased non-

interest expense.

– $13.1 million pre-tax gain from the sale of our Martinsburg, West Virginia area branches. This item increased non-

interest income.

– $13.3 million after-tax cumulative effect of adopting FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest

Entities. This item lowered net income.

– $6.7 million pre-tax restructuring reserve release related to reserves that were no longer needed, which were

established in conjunction with the sale of the Florida banking and insurance operations. This item lowered non-

interest expense.
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Table 3 — Significant Items Influencing Earnings Performance Comparison(1)

2005 2004 2003

(in thousands of dollars) After-tax EPS After-tax EPS After-tax EPS

Net income — GAAP $ 412,091 $398,925 $372,363
Earnings per share, after tax $ 1.77 $ 1.71 $ 1.61

Change from prior year — $ 0.06 0.10 0.28
Change from prior year — % 3.5% 6.2% 21.1%

Earnings(3) EPS Earnings(3) EPS Earnings(3) EPSSignificant items — favorable (unfavorable) impact:

MSR valuation (impairment) recovery, net of hedge-related
trading activity $ (7,318) $ (0.02) $ (7,174) $(0.02) $ 14,957 $ 0.04

Gain on sale of automobile loans — — 14,206 0.04 40,039 0.11
Single commercial credit net charge-off net of allocated reserves (6,449) (0.02) — — — —
Single commercial credit recovery — — 11,095 0.03 — —
SEC/regulatory related expenses (3,715) (0.01) (13,597) (0.05) (6,859) (0.02)
Net impact of federal tax loss carry back(4) 26,936 0.12 — — — —
Securities gains (losses) (8,055) (0.02) 15,763 0.04 5,258 0.01
Net impact of repatriating foreign earnings(4) (5,040) (0.02) — — — —
Severance and consolidation expenses (5,064) (0.01) — — — —
Write-off of equity investment (2,098) (0.01) — — — —
Property lease impairment — — (7,846) (0.02) — —
One-time adjustment to consolidated securitization — — 3,682 0.01 — —
Unizan system conversion expense — — (3,610) (0.01) — —
Restructuring releases — — 1,151 N.M. 6,666 0.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle(2) — — — — N/A (0.06)
Gain on sale of branch offices — — — — 13,112 0.04
Long-term debt extinguishment — — — — (15,250) (0.04)

N.M., not a meaningful value.

N/A, not applicable.

(1) See Significant Factors Influencing Financial Performance discussion.

(2) Only reflected in the income statement on an after tax basis of $13.3 million.

(3) Pre-tax unless otherwise noted.

(4) After-tax.

Net Interest Income

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 1-3 and 7.)

Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which is the difference between interest income on earning assets

(primarily loans, direct financing leases, and securities) and interest expense on funding sources (including interest bearing

deposits and borrowings.) Earning asset balances and related funding, as well as changes in the levels of interest rates, impact net

interest income. The difference between the average yield on earning assets and the average rate paid for interest bearing liabilities

is the net interest spread. Non-interest bearing sources of funds, such as demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, also support

earning assets. The impact of the non-interest bearing sources of funds, often referred to as ‘‘free’’ funds, is captured in the net

interest margin, which is calculated as net interest income divided by average earning assets. Given the ‘‘free’’ nature of non-

interest bearing sources of funds, the net interest margin is generally higher than the net interest spread. Both the net interest

spread and net interest margin are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis, which means that tax-free interest income has

been adjusted to a pre-tax equivalent income, assuming a 35% tax rate.

Table 4 shows changes in fully taxable equivalent interest income, interest expense, and net interest income due to volume and

rate variances for major categories of earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. The change in interest income or expense not

solely due to changes in volume or rates has been allocated in proportion to the absolute dollar amount of the change in volume

and rate.
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Table 4 — Change in Net Interest Income Due to Changes in Average Volume and Interest Rates(1)

2005 2004

Increase (Decrease) From Increase (Decrease) From
Previous Year Due To Previous Year Due To

Yield/ Yield/Fully tax equivalent basis(2)

(in millions of dollars) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Loans and direct financing leases $ 118.6 $ 177.7 $296.3 $ 110.8 $(75.7) $ 35.1
Securities (29.8) 19.9 (9.9) 42.1 (24.7) 17.4
Other earning assets 3.8 6.2 10.0 1.4 (10.5) (9.1)

Total interest income in earning assets 92.6 203.8 296.4 154.3 (110.9) 43.4

Deposits 41.7 148.1 189.8 21.5 (52.7) (31.2)
Short-term borrowings (0.3) 21.6 21.3 (1.8) (0.9) (2.7)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (4.7) 6.1 1.4 0.3 8.6 8.9
Subordinated notes and other long-term debt, including capital securities (39.0) 66.4 27.4 21.6 (13.9) 7.7

Total interest expense in interest-bearing liabilities (2.3) 242.2 239.9 41.6 (58.9) (17.3)

Net interest income before funding cost adjustment 94.9 (38.4) 56.5 112.7 (52.0) 60.7
Funding cost adjustment — (3.7) (3.7) — 3.7 3.7

Net interest income $ 94.9 $ (42.1) $ 52.8 $ 112.7 $(48.3) $ 64.4

(1) The change in interest rates due to both rate and volume has been allocated between the factors in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Fully taxable equivalent net interest income increased $52.8 million, or 6%, from 2004, reflecting the favorable impact of a

$1.6 billion, or 6%, increase in average earning assets, as the fully taxable equivalent net interest margin remained unchanged at

3.33%.

The stability of the net interest margin reflected a combination of factors including the benefit of a shift in the earning asset mix

from lower-yielding investments to higher-yielding loans as a result of decreasing the level of excess liquidity and redirecting part

of the proceeds of securities sales to fund loan growth. In addition, the margin also benefited from an increase in non-interest

bearing funds. These benefits were partially offset by the negative impact of intense loan and deposit price competition and share

repurchases.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Fully taxable equivalent net interest income increased $64.4 million, or 7%, in 2004 from 2003. This reflected the benefit of a

13% increase in average earning assets, partially offset by the negative impact of an effective 5% decline in the net interest margin

to 3.33% from 3.49%.

The net interest margin declined in the first half of 2004, primarily reflecting the sale of higher-margin automobile loans. Such

sales totaled $1.4 billion in the first half of 2004 but only $0.2 billion in the second half of 2004. The decline in the net interest

margin in the first half of the year also reflected, to a lesser degree, the growth in lower-margin investment securities, as well as

the impact of rising interest rates. The net interest margin stabilized in the second half of the year as automobile loan sales

diminished and lower cost deposit growth was strong.

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET

Table 5 shows average annual balance sheets and net interest margin analysis for the last five years. It details average balances for

total assets and liabilities, as well as shareholders’ equity, and their various components, most notably loans and leases, deposits,

and borrowings. It also shows the corresponding interest income or interest expense associated with each earning asset and

interest bearing liability category along with the average rate, with the difference resulting in the net interest spread. The net

interest spread plus the positive impact from the non-interest bearing funds represent the net interest margin.
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Table 5 — Consolidated Average Balance Sheet and Net Interest Margin Analysis
Average Balances 

Change from 2004 Change from 2003
Fully taxable equivalent basis(1)

(in millions of dollars) 2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003 2002 2001

Assets
Interest bearing deposits in banks $ 53 $ (13) (19.7)% $ 66 $ 29 78.4% $ 37 $ 33 $ 7
Trading account securities 207 102 97.1 105 91 N.M. 14 7 25
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under

resale agreements 262 (57) (17.9) 319 232 N.M. 87 72 107
Loans held for sale 318 75 30.9 243 (321) (56.9) 564 322 360

Investment securities:
Taxable 3,683 (742) (16.8) 4,425 892 25.2 3,533 2,859 3,144
Tax-exempt 475 63 15.3 412 78 23.4 334 135 174

Total investment securities 4,158 (679) (14.0) 4,837 970 25.1 3,867 2,994 3,318
Loans and leases:(3)

Commercial:
Middle market commercial and industrial(4) 4,817 361 8.1 4,456 (177) (3.8) 4,633 4,810 5,075

Construction 1,678 258 18.2 1,420 201 16.5 1,219 1,151 1,040
Commercial(4) 1,908 (14) (0.7) 1,922 122 6.8 1,800 1,670 1,522

Middle market commercial real estate 3,586 244 7.3 3,342 323 10.7 3,019 2,821 2,562
Small business commercial and industrial and

commercial real estate 2,224 221 11.0 2,003 216 12.1 1,787 1,642 2,574

Total commercial 10,627 826 8.4 9,801 362 3.8 9,439 9,273 10,211

Consumer:
Automobile loans 2,043 (242) (10.6) 2,285 (975) (29.9) 3,260 2,744 N.M.
Automobile leases 2,422 230 10.5 2,192 769 54.0 1,423 452 N.M.

Automobile loans and leases 4,465 (12) (0.3) 4,477 (206) (4.4) 4,683 3,196 2,839
Home equity 4,636 449 10.7 4,187 746 21.7 3,441 3,029 3,334
Residential mortgage 4,081 869 27.1 3,212 1,186 58.5 2,026 1,438 1,048
Other loans 501 51 11.3 450 15 3.4 435 481 654

Total consumer 13,683 1,357 11.0 12,326 1,741 16.4 10,585 8,144 7,875

Total loans and leases 24,310 2,183 9.9 22,127 2,103 10.5 20,024 17,417 18,086
Allowance for loan and lease losses (268) 30 (10.1) (298) 32 (9.7) (330) (344) (286)

Net loans and leases 24,042 2,213 10.1 21,829 2,135 10.8 19,694 17,073 17,800

Total earning assets 29,308 1,611 5.8 27,697 3,104 12.6 24,593 20,845 21,903

Operating lease assets 372 (525) (58.5) 897 (800) (47.1) 1,697 2,602 2,970
Cash and due from banks 845 2 0.2 843 69 8.9 774 757 912
Intangible assets 218 2 0.9 216 (2) (0.9) 218 293 736
All other assets 2,164 86 4.1 2,078 58 2.9 2,020 1,910 1,891

Total Assets $ 32,639 $ 1,206 3.8% $31,433 $2,461 8.5% $28,972 $26,063 $28,126

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits:

Demand deposits — non-interest bearing $ 3,379 $ 149 4.6% $ 3,230 $ 150 4.9% $ 3,080 $ 2,902 $ 3,304
Demand deposits — interest bearing 7,658 451 6.3 7,207 1,014 16.4 6,193 5,161 5,005
Savings and other domestic time deposits 3,155 (276) (8.0) 3,431 (31) (0.9) 3,462 3,583 4,381
Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 2,952 535 22.1 2,417 (285) (10.5) 2,702 3,619 4,980

Total core deposits 17,144 859 5.3 16,285 848 5.5 15,437 15,265 17,670
Domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more 1,292 427 49.4 865 63 7.9 802 851 1,280
Brokered time deposits and negotiable CDs 3,119 1,282 69.8 1,837 418 29.5 1,419 731 128
Deposits in foreign offices 457 (51) (10.0) 508 8 1.6 500 337 283

Total deposits 22,012 2,517 12.9 19,495 1,337 7.4 18,158 17,184 19,361
Short-term borrowings 1,379 (31) (2.2) 1,410 (190) (11.9) 1,600 1,856 2,099
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,105 (166) (13.1) 1,271 13 1.0 1,258 279 19
Subordinated notes and other long-term debt 4,064 (1,315) (24.4) 5,379 820 18.0 4,559 3,335 3,411

Total interest bearing liabilities 25,181 856 3.5 24,325 1,830 8.1 22,495 19,752 21,586

All other liabilities 1,496 (8) (0.5) 1,504 303 25.2 1,201 1,170 905
Shareholders’ equity 2,583 209 8.8 2,374 178 8.1 2,196 2,239 2,331

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 32,639 $ 1,206 3.8% $31,433 $2,461 8.5% $28,972 $26,063 $28,126

Net interest income

Net interest rate spread
Impact of non-interest bearing funds on margin

Net Interest Margin

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Fully taxable equivalent (FTE) yields are calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.

(2) Loan and lease and deposit average rates include impact of applicable derivatives and non-deferrable fees.

(3) For purposes of this analysis non-accrual loans are reflected in the average balances of loans.

(4) 2005 reflects a net reclassification of $500 million from middle market commercial real estate to middle market commercial and industrial, on November 1, 2005.
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Interest Income/Expense Average Rate(2)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

$ 1.1 $ 0.7 $ 0.6 $ 0.8 $ 0.2 2.16% 1.05% 1.53% 2.38% 3.43%
8.5 4.4 0.6 0.3 1.3 4.08 4.15 4.02 4.11 5.13

6.0 5.5 1.6 1.1 4.5 2.91 1.73 1.80 1.56 4.19
17.9 13.0 30.0 20.5 25.0 5.64 5.35 5.32 6.35 6.95

158.7 171.7 159.6 173.0 206.9 4.24 3.88 4.52 6.06 6.58
31.9 28.8 23.5 10.1 13.0 6.71 6.98 7.04 7.42 7.49

190.6 200.5 183.1 183.1 219.9 4.52 4.14 4.73 6.12 6.63

279.0 196.5 224.1 262.0 353.4 5.79 4.41 4.95 5.45 6.96
101.0 58.0 52.1 52.6 72.7 6.01 4.09 4.09 4.57 6.99
110.6 85.3 88.0 98.7 113.3 5.79 4.44 4.84 5.91 7.44

211.6 143.3 140.1 151.3 186.0 5.90 4.29 4.54 5.36 7.26

137.5 110.3 105.6 110.6 204.8 6.18 5.50 5.91 6.73 7.96

628.1 450.1 469.8 523.9 744.2 5.91 4.59 5.00 5.65 7.29

133.3 165.1 242.1 237.9 253.8 6.52 7.22 7.38 8.67 N.M
119.6 109.6 72.8 23.2 1.2 4.94 5.00 5.09 5.14 N.M

252.9 274.7 314.9 261.1 255.0 5.66 6.14 6.68 8.17 8.94
297.2 205.4 174.1 180.6 274.5 6.41 4.91 5.14 5.96 8.23
222.3 175.9 111.4 91.4 81.6 5.45 5.48 5.85 6.55 8.19

30.6 28.7 29.5 35.6 54.9 6.13 6.38 6.71 7.40 8.40

803.0 684.7 629.9 568.7 666.0 5.87 5.56 5.93 6.98 8.44

1,431.1 1,134.8 1,099.7 1,092.6 1,410.2 5.89 5.11 5.49 6.27 7.79

1,655.2 1,358.9 1,315.6 1,298.4 1,661.1 5.65 4.89 5.35 6.23 7.58

— — — — — — — — — —
135.5 74.1 73.0 88.9 133.5 1.77 1.03 1.18 1.71 2.64

42.9 44.1 67.7 80.2 154.9 1.36 1.28 1.94 2.24 3.54
105.0 81.2 100.4 165.6 281.5 3.56 3.36 3.68 4.58 5.65

283.4 199.4 241.1 334.7 569.9 2.06 1.53 1.94 2.70 3.95
44.5 20.5 18.5 28.8 66.8 3.44 2.37 2.50 3.39 5.22

109.4 33.1 24.1 17.3 6.6 3.51 1.80 1.70 2.36 5.12
9.6 4.1 4.6 4.9 10.8 2.10 0.82 0.92 1.47 3.82

446.9 257.1 288.3 385.7 654.1 2.40 1.58 1.91 2.69 4.06
34.3 13.0 15.7 29.0 95.8 2.49 0.93 0.98 1.56 4.57
34.7 33.3 24.4 5.6 1.2 3.13 2.57 1.94 2.00 6.17

163.5 132.5 128.5 123.3 188.4 4.02 2.46 2.82 3.70 5.52

679.4 435.9 456.9 543.6 939.5 2.70 1.79 2.03 2.75 4.34

$ 975.8 $ 923.0 $ 858.7 $ 754.8 $ 721.6

2.95 3.10 3.32 3.48 3.24
0.38 0.23 0.17 0.14 0.05

3.33% 3.33% 3.49% 3.62% 3.29%
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET — LOANS, LEASES, AND OTHER EARNING ASSETS

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Average total loans and leases increased $2.2 billion, or 10%, from 2004, reflecting growth in consumer loans and, to a lesser

degree, growth in commercial loans. Average total consumer loans increased $1.4 billion, or 11%, from 2004 primarily due to a

$0.9 billion, or 27%, increase in average residential mortgages as mortgage loan rates remained at attractive levels. Average home

equity loans increased $0.4 billion, or 11%. Growth in both residential mortgages and home equity loans slowed over the second

half of the year as rising short-term interest rates dampened customer demand.

Average total automobile loans decreased $0.2 billion, or 11%, from 2004 reflecting the sale of automobile loans, loan pay downs,

and slowing production. Partially offsetting the decline in automobile loans was $0.2 billion, or 10%, growth in direct financing

leases due to the continued migration from operating lease assets, which have not been originated since April 2002.

Average total commercial loans increased $0.8 billion, or 8%, from 2004. This reflected a $0.4 billion, or 8%, increase in middle

market commercial and industrial (C&I) loans, a $0.2 billion, or 7%, increase in middle market commercial real estate

(CRE) loans, and a $0.2 billion, or 11%, increase in average small business C&I and CRE loans.

Average total investment securities declined $0.7 billion, or 14%, from 2004. This decline reflected a combination of factors

including lowering the level of excess liquidity, a decision to sell selected lower yielding securities, and partially funding loan

growth with the proceeds from the sale of securities. We also made a decision in the fourth quarter of 2005 to reposition a

segment of the portfolio to replace lower yield securities with higher yield securities. This resulted in $8.8 million of securities

losses in the fourth quarter, but should position the portfolio for better future performance.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Growth in average total loans and leases accounted for most of the 13% increase in earning assets, though investment securities

also increased as a portion of the proceeds from automobile loan sales was reinvested.

Average total loans and leases increased 11% from the prior year. Most of this reflected growth in average total consumer loans

where the strong growth in residential mortgage and home equity loans was only partially offset by a decline in automobile

loans, reflecting the sale of $1.5 billion of automobile loans in 2004. Average total commercial loans increased 4%, reflecting

growth in middle market CRE and small business loans, partially offset by a decline in average middle market C&I loans.

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET — DEPOSITS AND OTHER FUNDING

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Average total core deposits in 2005 were $17.1 billion, up $0.9 billion, or 5%, from 2004, reflecting a $0.5 billion, or 22%,

increase in certificates of deposit less than $100,000, a $0.5 billion, or 6%, increase in average interest bearing demand deposit

accounts, primarily money market accounts, and a $0.1 billion, or 5%, increase in non-interest bearing deposits. These increases

were partially offset by a $0.3 billion, or 8%, decline in savings and other domestic time deposits. With interest rates rising

throughout the year, demand for certificates of deposit less than $100,000 increased as customers transferred funds from lower-

rate savings and other domestic time deposits into higher fixed-rate term deposit accounts.

We use the non-core funding ratio (total liabilities less core deposits and accrued expenses and other liabilities divided by total

assets) to measure the extent to which funding is dependent on wholesale deposits and borrowing sources. For 2005, the average

non-core funding ratio was 35%, down from 36% in 2004. The average non-core funding ratio reached a peak of 38% in the first

quarter of 2004 as strong loan growth outpaced core deposit growth. Subsequent loan sales, as well as successful core deposit

growth initiatives, reduced average non-core funding requirements to 35% by the 2004 fourth quarter.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Average total deposits in 2004 increased 7% from the prior year, primarily reflecting 5% growth in average core deposits. Growth

in interest bearing demand deposits, and to a lesser degree non-interest bearing deposits, accounted for virtually all of the growth

in average core deposits, as average certificates of deposit (CDs) less than $100,000 declined. With interest rates near historical

low levels, demand for CDs less than $100,000 greatly diminished in the first half of 2004. However, CDs less than $100,000 grew

in the second half of the year as interest rates and customer demand for CDs less than $100,000 increased. In addition to growth

in average core deposits, the increase in average total deposits also reflected a 29% increase in brokered time deposits and

negotiable CDs, which, in comparison with rates on CDs less than $100,000, remained a relatively low cost of funds.

For 2004, the average non-core funding ratio was 36%, up from 35% in 2003.
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Provision for Credit Losses

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factor 4 and the Credit Risk section.)

The provision for credit losses is the expense necessary to maintain the ALLL and the AULC at a level adequate to absorb our

estimate of probable inherent credit losses in the loan and lease portfolio and the portfolio of unfunded loan commitments.

Provision expense for 2005 was $81.3 million, up $26.2 million, or 48%, from 2004. The increase in 2005 reflected a combination

of factors including loan growth and higher levels of problem assets, most notably downgrades in certain commercial credits late

in the fourth quarter. Given our highly quantitative loan loss reserve methodology, these downgrades required a meaningful

increase in our ALLL. We believe these downgrades reflect weakness in certain credit situations rather than the beginning of a

trend of material weakening in general credit quality.

Provision expense for 2004 was $55.1 million, down $108.9 million, or 66%, from the prior year. This reflected significant

improvement in overall credit quality as reflected by a combination of factors, including lower net charge-offs and a single C&I

recovery of $11.1 million in 2004, as well as the overall lower risk inherent in the loan and lease portfolio resulting from

strategies to lower the overall risk profile of the balance sheet, partially offset by additional provision expense related to loan

growth.

Non-Interest Income

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 1, 2, 3, and 7.)

Non-interest income for the three years ended December 31, 2005, was as follows:

Table 6 — Non-Interest Income

Year Ended December 31, 

Change from 2004 Change from 2003

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 167,834 $ (3,281) (1.9)% $171,115 $ 3,275 2.0% $ 167,840
Trust services 77,405 9,995 14.8 67,410 5,761 9.3 61,649
Brokerage and insurance income 53,619 (1,180) (2.2) 54,799 (3,045) (5.3) 57,844
Other service charges and fees 44,348 2,774 6.7 41,574 128 0.3 41,446
Mortgage banking 41,710 9,414 29.1 32,296 (25,884) (44.5) 58,180
Bank owned life insurance income 40,736 (1,561) (3.7) 42,297 (731) (1.7) 43,028
Securities gains (losses) (8,055) (23,818) N.M. 15,763 10,505 N.M. 5,258
Other 75,041 (17,006) (18.5) 92,047 988 1.1 91,059

Sub-total before operating lease income 492,638 (24,663) (4.8) 517,301 (9,003) (1.7) 526,304
Operating lease income 138,433 (148,658) (51.8) 287,091 (202,607) (41.4) 489,698

Sub-total including operating lease income 631,071 (173,321) (21.5) 804,392 (211,610) (20.8) 1,016,002

Gain on sales of automobile loans 1,211 (12,995) (91.5) 14,206 (25,833) (64.5) 40,039
Gain on sale of branch offices — — — — (13,112) N.M. 13,112

Total non-interest income $ 632,282 $ (186,316) (22.8)% $818,598 $(250,555) (23.4)% $1,069,153

N.M., not a meaningful value.

Table 7 details mortgage banking income and the net impact of MSR hedging activity. We record MSR temporary impairment

valuation changes in mortgage banking income, whereas MSR hedge-related trading activity is recorded in other non-interest

income, as well as in net interest income. Striking a mortgage banking income sub-total before MSR recoveries or impairments,

provides a clearer understanding of the underlying trends in mortgage banking income associated with the primary business

activities of origination, sales, and servicing. The net impact of MSR hedging analysis presents all of the MSR impairment

valuation changes and related hedging activity.
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Mortgage banking income and the net impact of MSR hedging activities for the three years ended December 31, 2005, was as

follows:

Table 7 — Mortgage Banking Income and Net Impact of MSR Hedging

Year Ended December 31, 

Change from 2004 Change from 2003

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

Mortgage Banking Income
Origination fees $ 10,781 $ (1,596) (12.9)% $ 12,377 $ (4,895) (28.3)% $ 17,272
Secondary marketing 10,986 2,646 31.7 8,340 (15,267) (64.7) 23,607
Servicing fees 22,181 485 2.2 21,696 4,790 28.3 16,906
Amortization of capitalized servicing (18,359) 660 (3.5) (19,019) 6,947 (26.8) (25,966)
Other mortgage banking income 11,750 4,226 56.2 7,524 (3,880) (34.0) 11,404

Sub-total 37,339 6,421 20.8 30,918 (12,305) (28.5) 43,223
MSR recovery 4,371 2,993 N.M. 1,378 (13,579) (90.8) 14,957

Total mortgage banking income $ 41,710 $ 9,414 29.1% $ 32,296 $(25,884) (44.5)% $ 58,180

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights(1) $ 91,259 $14,152 18.4% $ 77,107 $ 6,020 8.5% $ 71,087
MSR allowance(1) (404) 4,371 (91.5) (4,775) 1,378 (22.4) (6,153)
Total mortgages serviced for others(1) 7,276,000 415,000 6.0 6,861,000 467,000 7.3 6,394,000

Net Impact of MSR Hedging
MSR recovery $ 4,371 $ 2,993 N.M.% $ 1,378 $(13,579) (90.8)% $ 14,957
Net trading losses related to MSR hedging(2) (13,377) (7,867) N.M. (5,510) (5,510) N.M. —
Net interest income related to MSR hedging 1,688 238 16.4 1,450 1,450 N.M. —
Other MSR hedge activity(4) — 4,492 N.M. (4,492) (4,492) N.M. —

Net impact of MSR hedging(3) $ (7,318) $ (144) 2.0% $ (7,174) $(22,131) N.M.% $ 14,957

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) At period end.

(2) Included in other non-interest income.

(3) The tables above exclude securities gains or losses related to the investment securities portfolio.

(4) Included in other mortgage banking income.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Non-interest income decreased $186.3 million, or 23%, from 2004 with $148.7 million of the decline reflecting the decrease in

operating lease income. Of the remaining $37.7 million decline from 2004, the primary drivers were:

– $23.8 million decline in net securities gains, as the current year reflected $8.1 million of securities losses, primarily related

to $8.8 million of securities losses due to the fourth quarter restructuring of a part of the securities portfolio, compared

with $15.8 million of gains in 2004 taken to mitigate the net impact of the MSR impairment.

– $17.0 million, or 18%, decline in other income reflected a combination of factors including an increase in MSR hedge-

related trading losses, lower income from automobile lease terminations, the $2.1 million write-off of an equity investment

in the 2005 second quarter, lower investment banking income, and lower equity investment gains.

– $13.0 million decline in gains on sale of automobile loans as the year-ago period included $14.2 million of such gains.

– $3.3 million, or 2%, decline in service charges on deposit accounts, all driven by a decline in commercial service charges,

reflecting a combination of lower activity and a preference by commercial customers to pay for services with higher

compensating balances rather than fees as interest rates increased. Consumer service charges increased slightly reflecting

higher activity-related personal service charges, mostly offset by lower maintenance fees on deposit accounts, as well as

lower personal NSF and overdraft service charges.

– $1.6 million, or 4%, decline in bank owned life insurance income.

– $1.2 million, or 2%, decline in brokerage and insurance income, reflecting lower annuity sales.

Partially offset by:

– $10.0 million, or 15%, increase in trust services due to higher personal trust and mutual fund fees, reflecting a

combination of higher market value of assets, as well as increased activity.
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– $9.4 million, or 29%, increase in mortgage banking income, reflecting a $6.9 million increase in secondary marketing and

other mortgage banking income, as well as a $3.0 million increase in MSR temporary impairment recoveries.

– $2.8 million, or 7%, increase in other service charges and fees, due to higher debit card fees, partially offset by lower bill

pay fees as a result of a decision to eliminate fees for this service beginning in the 2004 fourth quarter.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Non-interest income for 2004 declined $250.6 million, or 23%, from 2003. Reflecting the run-off of the operating lease portfolio,

operating lease income declined $202.6 million, or 41%, from 2003. Of the remaining $47.9 million decline from a year ago, the

primary drivers were:

– $25.9 million decline in mortgage banking income reflected a combination of factors, all basically related to the lower level

of mortgage originations as interest rates increased during 2004. Such factors included lower net secondary marketing

revenue, as sales declined, and a 91% reduction in MSR recovery.

– $25.8 million decline in gains on the sale of automobile loans, reflecting both a decline in loan sales ($1.5 billion in 2004,

$2.1 billion in 2003), as well as lower relative gains on the sales as the loans sold in 2003 were older and originated at

higher rates.

– $13.1 million decline in gains on sale of branch offices, reflecting no such sales in 2004.

– $3.0 million decline in brokerage and insurance income primarily due to lower title insurance-related fees and reduced

credit life insurance revenue, as well as a decline in annuity fee income due to a 7% decline in annuity sales volume.

Partially offset by:

– $10.5 million increase in securities gains primarily related to MSR temporary impairment hedging activity.

– $5.8 million increase in trust services income primarily due to higher personal trust income and proprietary mutual fund

fees.

– $3.3 million increase in service charges on deposit accounts, reflecting higher NSF and overdraft fees, partially offset by

lower personal and commercial account maintenance charges.
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Non-Interest Expense

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 1, 5, and 7.)

Non-interest expense for the three years ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Table 8 — Non-Interest Expense

Year Ended December 31,

Change from 2004 Change from 2003

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

Salaries $ 379,589 $ 3,321 0.9% $ 376,268 $ 14,826 4.1% $ 361,442
Benefits 102,069 (7,469) (6.8) 109,538 23,717 27.6 85,821

Personnel costs 481,658 (4,148) (0.9) 485,806 38,543 8.6 447,263
Net occupancy 71,092 (4,849) (6.4) 75,941 13,460 21.5 62,481
Outside data processing and other services 74,638 2,523 3.5 72,115 5,997 9.1 66,118
Equipment 63,124 (218) (0.3) 63,342 (2,579) (3.9) 65,921
Professional services 34,569 (2,307) (6.3) 36,876 (5,572) (13.1) 42,448
Marketing 28,077 1,588 6.0 26,489 (1,001) (3.6) 27,490
Telecommunications 18,648 (1,139) (5.8) 19,787 (2,192) (10.0) 21,979
Printing and supplies 12,573 110 0.9 12,463 (546) (4.2) 13,009
Amortization of intangibles 829 12 1.5 817 1 0.1 816
Other 76,236 (17,045) (18.3) 93,281 12,501 15.5 80,780

Sub-total before operating lease expense 861,444 (25,473) (2.9) 886,917 58,612 7.1 828,305
Operating lease expense 108,376 (128,102) (54.2) 236,478 (156,792) (39.9) 393,270

Sub-total including operating lease expense 969,820 (153,575) (13.7) 1,123,395 (98,180) (8.0) 1,221,575

Restructuring reserve releases — 1,151 N.M. (1,151) 5,515 (82.7) (6,666)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — — — (15,250) N.M. 15,250

Total non-interest expense $ 969,820 $ (152,424) (13.6)% $1,122,244 $(107,915) (8.8)% $1,230,159

N.M., not a meaningful value.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Non-interest expense decreased $152.4 million, or 14%, from 2004 with $128.1 million of the decline reflecting the decrease in

operating lease expense. Of the remaining $24.3 million decline, the primary drivers were:

– $17.0 million, or 18%, decrease in other expense, reflecting $7.5 million of SEC/regulatory-related expenses in 2004,

$5.8 million of costs related to investments in partnerships generating tax benefits in the year-ago period, and lower

litigation related expense accruals and lower insurance costs in the current period.

– $4.8 million, or 6%, decline in net occupancy expense, as 2004 included a $7.8 million loss caused by property lease

impairments, partially offset by lower rental income and higher depreciation expense in 2005.

– $4.1 million, or 1%, decline in personnel costs, mainly due to lower commission and benefit expense, partially offset by

higher salaries and severance.

– $2.3 million, or 6%, decline in professional services, reflecting lower SEC/regulatory-related expense.

Partially offset by:

– $2.5 million, or 3%, increase in outside data processing and other services, reflecting mostly higher debit card processing

expense and system conversion expense.

– $1.6 million, or 6%, increase in marketing expense.

– $1.2 million increase in the restructuring reserve charges line item, reflecting a restructuring reserve release in 2004 with

no release in 2005.

SEC-related expenses and accruals, as well as expenses related to Unizan integration planning and systems conversions,

contributed to the change in expense from 2004. Specifically, SEC/regulatory-related expenses and accruals totaled $3.7 million in

2005, down from $13.6 million in 2004. These expenses and accruals impacted the professional services and other expense

categories. Unizan integration planning and systems conversion expenses totaled $0.7 million in 2005, down from $3.6 million in
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2004. In addition to impacting the data processing and other services expense category, a portion of these expenses was also

spread across various other expense categories.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Non-interest expense declined $107.9 million, or 9%, from 2003. Comparisons with prior-period results were significantly

influenced by the decline in operating lease expense as previously noted. Operating lease expense declined $156.8 million, or

40%, from 2003. All other components of non-interest expense increased a net $48.9 million from 2003 reflecting:

– $38.5 million increase in personnel costs primarily related to higher retirement and insurance benefit expenses, and to a

lesser degree, higher salaries.

– $13.5 million increase in net occupancy expense, reflecting a $7.8 million property lease impairment, as well as higher

depreciation and lower rental income.

– $12.5 million increase in other expense impacted by SEC-related expenses and accruals. (See discussion below.)

– $6.0 million increase in outside data processing expenses, including Unizan-related expenses. (See discussion below.)

– $5.5 million decline in restructuring reserve releases, as such releases totaled $1.2 million in 2004, down from $6.7 million

in 2003.

Partially offset by:

– $15.3 million related to the loss on the early extinguishment of debt in 2003.

– $5.6 million decline in professional services, primarily reflecting lower consulting expenses.

SEC-related expenses and accruals, as well as expenses related to Unizan integration planning and systems conversions,

contributed to the change in expense from 2003. Specifically, SEC-related expenses and accruals totaled $13.6 million in 2004

compared with $6.9 million in 2003. These expenses and accruals impacted the professional services and other expense categories.

Unizan integration planning and systems conversion expenses totaled $3.6 million in 2004. In addition to impacting the data

processing and other services expense category, a portion of these expenses was also spread across various other expense

categories.

Operating Lease Assets

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factor 1 and the Market Risk section.)

Operating lease assets represent automobile leases originated before May 2002. This operating lease portfolio is running-off over

time since all automobile lease originations after April 2002 have been recorded as direct financing leases and are reported in the

automobile loan and lease category in earning assets. As a result, the non-interest income and non-interest expenses associated

with the operating lease portfolio has declined.
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Operating lease assets performance for the five years ended December 31, 2005, was as follows:

Table 9 — Operating Lease Performance
Year Ended December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Balance Sheet:

Average operating lease assets outstanding $ 372,132 $896,773 $1,696,535 $2,601,666 $2,969,902

Income Statement:

Net rental income $ 126,519 $267,202 $ 458,644 $ 615,453 $ 654,625

Fees 6,531 13,457 21,623 28,542 27,573

Recoveries — early terminations 5,383 6,432 9,431 13,079 9,535

Total operating lease income 138,433 287,091 489,698 657,074 691,733

Depreciation and residual losses at termination 99,342 216,445 350,550 463,783 506,267

Losses — early terminations 9,034 20,033 42,720 55,187 52,359

Total operating lease expense 108,376 236,478 393,270 518,970 558,626

Net earnings contribution $ 30,057 $ 50,613 $ 96,428 $ 138,104 $ 133,107

Earnings ratios(1)

Net rental income 34.0% 29.8% 27.0% 23.7% 22.0%

Depreciation and residual losses at termination 26.7 24.1 20.7 17.8 17.0

(1) As a percent of average operating lease assets.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Average operating lease assets in 2005 were $0.4 billion, down $0.5 billion, or 59% from a year-ago.

The net earnings contribution from operating leases was $30.1 million in 2005, down 41% from $50.6 million in 2004. Operating

lease income, which totaled $138.4 million in 2005, and represented 22% of non-interest income, declined 52% from 2004,

reflecting the decline in average operating leases. The majority of this decline was reflected in lower net rental income, down 53%

from 2004. Lower fees and recoveries from early terminations also contributed to the decline in total operating lease income, but

to a much lesser degree. Operating lease expense totaled $108.4 million for 2005, down 54% from a year ago, also reflecting the

continued decline in operating lease assets, with the decline related to lower depreciation and residual losses at termination

expenses.

The ratio of operating lease credit losses, net of recoveries, to average operating lease assets was 0.98% in 2005, down from 1.52%

in 2004.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Average operating lease assets in 2004 declined 47% from the prior year. The net earnings contribution from operating leases was

$50.6 million in 2004, down 48% from $96.4 million in 2003. Operating lease income, which totaled $287.1 million in 2004, and

represented 35% of non-interest income, declined 41% from 2003 reflecting the decline in average operating leases. The majority

of this decline was reflected in lower net rental income, down 42% from 2003. Lower fees and recoveries from early terminations

also contributed to the decline in total operating lease income, but to a much lesser degree. Operating lease expense totaled

$236.5 million, down 40% from a year ago, also reflecting the continued decline in operating lease assets, with the decline

primarily related to lower depreciation and residual losses at termination expenses.

The ratio of operating lease asset credit losses to average operating lease assets, net of recoveries, was 1.52% in 2004, down from

1.96% in 2003.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $131.5 million in 2005, $153.7 million in 2004, and $138.3 million in 2003. The effective tax

rate was 24.2%, 27.8%, and 26.4% in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The lower effective tax rate in 2005 compared with 2004

reflected an increasing benefit from tax-exempt income and a federal tax loss carryback, partially offset by the effect of the

repatriation of foreign earnings. The higher effective tax rate in 2004 compared with 2003 reflected a reduction in tax benefits

(credits) from investments in partnerships and the impact of higher non-deductible expenses.
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As noted in our 2004 Form 10-K, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 introduced a special one-time dividends received

deduction of 85% on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer. During 2005, we had $109.4 million of

foreign earnings eligible for repatriation, and in the third quarter of 2005, we received cash dividends in the amount of these

previously undistributed foreign earnings. During the third quarter of 2005, our board of directors resolved to adopt our

Domestic Reinvestment Plan, signed by our chairman, president, and chief executive officer. In the third quarter of 2005, income

tax expense of $5.7 million, associated with the repatriation, was recorded. We have reinvested in the United States the cash

dividend received through expenditures on infrastructure and capital investments with respect to the opening of new branches,

qualified pension and 401(k) contributions, and funding of worker hiring, training, and other compensation.

The cost of qualifying investments in low income housing partnerships, along with the related tax credit, is recognized in the

financial statements as a component of income taxes under the effective yield method. The cost of the investment in historic

property partnerships is reported in non-interest expense and the related tax credit is recognized in the financial statements as a

component of income taxes.

In the ordinary course of business, we operate in various taxing jurisdictions and are subject to income and non-income taxes.

The effective tax rate is based in part on our interpretation of the relevant current tax laws. We believe the aggregate liabilities

related to taxes are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements. We review the appropriate tax treatment of all

transactions taking into consideration statutory, judicial, and regulatory guidance in the context of our tax positions. In addition,

we rely on various tax opinions, recent tax audits, and historical experience.

During the first quarter of 2005, the Internal Revenue Service commenced an audit of our consolidated federal income tax

returns for tax years 2002 and 2003.

We expect the 2006 effective tax rate to increase to a more typical rate just below 30%. (See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements.)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL

Risk identification and monitoring are key elements in overall risk management. We believe the primary risk exposures are credit,

market, liquidity, and operational risk. Credit risk is the risk of loss due to adverse changes in borrowers’ ability to meet their

financial obligations under agreed upon terms. Market risk represents the risk of loss due to changes in the market value of assets

and liabilities due to changes in interest rates, exchange rates, residual values, and equity prices. Liquidity risk arises from the

possibility that funds may not be available to satisfy current or future commitments based on external macro market issues,

investor perception of financial strength, and events unrelated to the company such as war, terrorism, or financial institution

market specific issues. Operational risk arises from the inherent day-to-day operations of the company that could result in losses

due to human error, inadequate or failed internal systems and controls, and external events.

We follow a formal policy to identify, measure, and document the key risks facing the company, how those risks can be

controlled or mitigated, and how we monitor the controls to ensure that they are effective. Our chief risk officer is responsible

for ensuring that appropriate systems of controls are in place for managing and monitoring risk across the company. Potential

risk concerns are shared with the board of directors, as appropriate. Our internal audit department performs ongoing

independent reviews of the risk management process and ensures the adequacy of documentation. The results of these reviews are

reported regularly to the audit committee of the board of directors.

Some of the more significant processes used to manage and control credit, market, liquidity, and operational risks are described

in the following paragraphs.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to adverse changes in borrowers’ ability to meet their financial obligations under agreed upon

terms. We are subject to credit risk in lending, trading, and investment activities. The nature and degree of credit risk is a

function of the types of transactions, the structure of those transactions, and the parties involved. The majority of our credit risk

is associated with lending activities, as the acceptance and management of credit risk is central to profitable lending. Credit risk is

incidental to trading activities and represents a limited portion of the total risks associated with the investment portfolio. Credit

risk is mitigated through a combination of credit policies and processes, and portfolio diversification.

The maximum level of credit exposure to individual commercial borrowers is limited by policy guidelines based on the risk of

default associated with the credit facilities extended to each borrower or related group of borrowers. All authority to grant
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commitments is delegated through the independent credit administration function and is monitored and regularly updated in a

centralized database.

Concentration risk is managed via limits on loan type, geography, industry, loan quality factors, and country limits. We have

focused on extending credit to commercial customers with existing or expandable relationships within our primary markets. As a

result, shared national credit exposure declined in 2002 and 2003. The on-going sale of automobile loans is an example of the

proactive management of concentration risk.

The checks and balances in the credit process and the independence of the credit administration and risk management functions

are designed to accurately assess the level of credit risk being accepted, facilitate the early recognition of credit problems when

they do occur, and to provide for effective problem asset management and resolution.

Credit Exposure Mix

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 1 and 3.)

An overall corporate objective is to avoid undue portfolio concentrations. As shown in Table 10, at December 31, 2005, total

credit exposure from the loan and lease portfolio was $24.7 billion. Of this amount, $13.6 billion, or 55%, represented total

consumer loans and leases, $10.8 billion, or 44%, total commercial loans and leases, and $0.2 billion, or 1%, operating lease

assets.

A specific portfolio concentration objective has been to reduce the relative level of total automobile exposure (the sum of

automobile loans, automobile leases, securitized automobile loans, and operating lease assets) from 33% at the end of 2002. As

shown in Table 10, such exposure was 18% at December 31, 2005.

In contrast, another specific portfolio concentration objective has been to increase the relative level of lower-risk residential

mortgages and home equity loans. At December 31, 2005, such loans represented 36% of total credit exposure, up from 22% at

the end of 2002.

Since the end of 2002, the level of total commercial loans and leases has remained relatively constant at 42%-44% of total credit

exposure. However, middle market C&I loans declined to 19% at year-end 2004 from 22% at December 31, 2002, reflecting weak

demand, but also a specific objective to reduce exposure to large individual credits, as well as a strategy to focus on commercial

lending to customers with existing or potential relationships within our primary markets. During 2005, that concentration

increased to 21%, reflecting increased customer demand. Conversely, since the end of 2002, small business loans increased to 9%

from 8%, reflecting strategies to grow this important targeted business segment. (See Table 10.)
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Table 10 — Loan and Lease Portfolio Composition

At December 31, 

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Commercial(1)

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 5,084 20.6% $ 4,666 19.3% $ 4,416 19.7% $ 4,757 21.7% $ 4,922 21.7%
Construction 1,522 6.2 1,602 6.6 1,264 5.7 983 4.5 1,150 5.1
Commercial 2,015 8.2 1,917 7.9 1,919 8.6 1,896 8.7 1,575 6.9

Total middle market real estate 3,537 14.4 3,519 14.5 3,183 14.3 2,879 13.2 2,725 12.0
Small business commercial and industrial

and commercial real estate 2,224 9.0 2,118 8.8 1,887 8.4 1,695 7.7 2,607 11.5

Total commercial 10,845 44.0 10,303 42.6 9,486 42.4 9,331 42.6 10,254 45.2

Consumer:
Automobile loans 1,985 8.0 1,949 8.1 2,992 13.4 3,042 13.9 2,853 12.6
Automobile leases 2,289 9.3 2,443 10.1 1,902 8.5 874 4.0 110 0.5
Home equity 4,639 18.8 4,555 18.9 3,734 16.7 3,142 14.3 3,518 15.5
Residential mortgage 4,193 17.0 3,829 15.9 2,531 11.3 1,746 8.0 1,129 5.0
Other loans 521 2.0 481 2.0 430 1.9 452 2.1 607 2.6

Total consumer 13,627 55.1 13,257 55.0 11,589 51.8 9,256 42.3 8,217 36.2

Total loans and direct financing leases 24,472 99.1 23,560 97.6 21,075 94.2 18,587 84.9 18,471 81.4

Operating lease assets 229 0.9 587 2.4 1,260 5.6 2,201 10.0 3,006 13.2
Securitized loans — — — — 37 0.2 1,119 5.1 1,225 5.4

Total credit exposure $ 24,701 100.0% $24,147 100.0% $22,372 100.0% $21,907 100.0% $22,702 100.0%

Total automobile exposure(2) $ 4,503 18.2% $ 4,979 20.6% $ 6,191 27.7% $ 7,236 33.0% $ 7,194 31.7%

(1) There were no commercial loans outstanding that would be considered a concentration of lending to a particular industry or group of industries.

(2) Total automobile loans and leases, operating lease assets, and securitized loans.

Commercial Credit

Commercial credit approvals are based on the financial strength of the borrower, assessment of the borrower’s management

capabilities, industry sector trends, type of exposure, transaction structure, and the general economic outlook. While these are the

primary factors considered, there are a number of other factors that may be considered in the decision process. There are two

processes for approving credit risk exposures. The first involves a centralized loan approval process for the standard products and

structures utilized in small business lending. In this centralized decision environment, individual credit authority is granted to

certain individuals on a regional basis to preserve our local decision-making focus. The second, and more prevalent approach,

involves individual approval of exposures. These approvals are consistent with the authority delegated to officers located in the

geographic regions who are experienced in the industries and loan structures over which they have responsibility.
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Commercial and industrial loan commitments and balances outstanding by industry classification code as of December 31, 2005,

were as follows:

Table 11 — Commercial and Industrial Loans by Industry Classification Code

At December 31, 2005 

Commitments Loans Outstanding

(in thousands of dollars) Amount % Amount %

Industry Classification:

Services $3,017,705 26.2% $1,955,613 28.7%

Manufacturing 2,084,924 18.1 1,152,619 16.9

Retail trade 1,932,962 16.8 1,245,250 18.3

Finance, insurance, and real estate 1,837,506 16.0 1,005,204 14.8

Contractors and construction 699,719 6.1 272,041 4.0

Wholesale trade 905,919 7.9 534,289 7.8

Transportation, communications, and utilities 565,961 4.9 342,806 5.0

Agriculture and forestry 147,972 1.3 107,924 1.6

Energy 191,953 1.7 117,784 1.7

Public administration 94,362 0.8 42,783 0.6

Other 32,950 0.2 32,895 0.6

Total $11,511,933 100.0% $6,809,208 100.0%

Commercial real estate loans at December 31, 2005, were predominantly for properties located in our primary banking markets.

These loans, including both middle market and small business commercial real estate loans, were well diversified by the type of

property, as reflected in the following table:

Table 12 — Commercial Real Estate Loans by Property Type and Location

At December 31, 2005

Geographic Region

West Total Percent of
(in thousands of dollars) Ohio Michigan Virginia Indiana Other Amount Total

Retail properties $ 341,059 $ 174,265 $ 45,659 $ 80,006 $ — $ 640,989 15.9%

Single family development 322,292 170,232 24,056 8,628 6,102 531,310 13.2

Industrial and warehouse 226,361 181,135 14,263 34,005 2,689 458,453 11.4

Office 203,712 115,706 40,438 76,647 1,277 437,780 10.8

Unsecured lines to real estate companies 270,757 79,308 12,889 54,788 2,287 420,029 10.4

Multi family 229,998 56,873 40,840 84,470 1,702 413,883 10.3

Raw land 180,614 94,810 19,568 9,870 5,131 309,993 7.7

Other land uses 86,527 45,117 11,194 12,875 — 155,713 3.9

Single family land development 103,201 14,357 987 6,063 1,379 125,987 3.1

Other land development 92,260 15,952 1,771 15,655 — 125,638 3.1

Health care 39,748 48,107 9,088 12,468 — 109,411 2.7

Recreational 68,766 21,940 13,387 2,470 — 106,563 2.6

Condominium construction 59,877 32,596 8,403 2,204 — 103,080 2.6

Hotel 38,001 45,180 5,150 5,514 3,497 97,342 2.4

Total $2,263,173 $1,095,578 $247,693 $405,663 $24,064 $4,036,171 100.0%

All C&I and CRE credit extensions are assigned internal risk ratings, reflecting the borrower’s probability-of-default and loss-in-

event-of-default. This two-dimensional rating methodology, which has 192 individual loan grades, provides granularity in the

portfolio management process. The probability-of-default is rated on a scale of 1-12 and is applied at the borrower level. The

loss-in-event-of-default is rated on a scale of 1-16 and is associated with each individual credit exposure based on the type of

credit extension and the underlying collateral.
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In commercial lending, ongoing credit management is dependent on the type and nature of the loan. In general, quarterly

monitoring is normal for all significant exposures. The internal risk ratings are revised and updated with each periodic

monitoring event. There is also extensive macro portfolio management analysis on an ongoing basis to continually update default

probabilities and to estimate future losses.

In addition to the initial credit analysis initiated by the portfolio manager during the underwriting process, the loan review group

performs independent credit reviews. The loan review group reviews individual loans and credit processes and conducts a

portfolio review at each of the regions on a 15-month cycle, and the loan review group validates the risk grades on a minimum

of 50% of the portfolio exposure. During the previous 15 months, 61% of the total commercial portfolio was reviewed by our

independent loan review function.

Borrower exposures may be designated as ‘‘watch list’’ accounts when warranted by individual company performance, or by

industry and environmental factors. Such accounts are subjected to additional quarterly reviews by the business line Management,

the loan review group, and credit administration in order to adequately assess the borrower’s credit status and to take appropriate

action.

A specialized credit workout group manages problem credits and handles commercial recoveries, workouts, and problem loan

sales, as well as the day-to-day management of relationships rated substandard or lower. The group is responsible for developing

an action plan, assessing the risk rating, and determining the adequacy of the reserve, the accrual status, and the ultimate

collectibility of the credits managed.

Consumer Credit

Consumer credit approvals are based on, among other factors, the financial strength of the borrower, type of exposure, and the

transaction structure. Consumer credit decisions are generally made in a centralized environment utilizing decision models. There

is also individual credit authority granted to certain individuals on a regional basis to preserve our local decision-making focus.

Each credit extension is assigned a specific probability-of-default and loss-in-event-of-default. The probability-of-default is

generally a function of the borrower’s credit bureau score, while the loss-in-event-of-default is related to the type of collateral and

the loan-to-value ratio associated with the credit extension.

In consumer lending, credit risk is managed from a loan type and vintage performance analysis. All portfolio segments are

continuously monitored for changes in delinquency trends and other asset quality indicators. We make extensive use of portfolio

assessment models to continuously monitor the quality of the portfolio and identify under-performing segments. This

information is then incorporated into future origination strategies. The independent risk management group has a consumer

process review component to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the consumer credit processes.

Collection action is initiated on an ‘‘as needed’’ basis through a centrally managed collection and recovery function. The

collection group employs a series of collection methodologies designed to maintain a high level of effectiveness while maximizing

efficiency. In addition to the retained consumer loan portfolio, the collection group is responsible for collection activity on all

sold and securitized consumer loans and leases.

Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factor 4.)

NPAs consist of loans and leases that are no longer accruing interest, loans and leases that have been renegotiated to below

market rates based upon financial difficulties of the borrower, and real estate acquired through foreclosure. C&I, CRE, and small

business loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when collection of principal or interest is in doubt or when the loan is

90 days past due. When interest accruals are suspended, accrued interest income is reversed with current year accruals charged to

earnings and prior-year amounts generally charged-off as a credit loss. Consumer loans and leases, excluding residential

mortgages and home equity lines and leases, are not placed on non-accrual status but are charged-off in accordance with

regulatory statutes, which is generally no more than 120 days past due. Residential mortgages and home equity lines and leases,

while highly secured, are placed on non-accrual status within 180 days past due as to principal and 210 days past due as to

interest, regardless of collateral. When we believe the borrower’s ability and intent to make periodic interest and principal

payments resume and collectibility is no longer in doubt, the loan is returned to accrual status. A charge-off on a residential

mortgage loan is recorded when the loan has been foreclosed and the loan balance exceeds the fair value of the real estate. The

fair value of the collateral, less the cost to sell, is then recorded as real estate owned.
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At September 30, 2004, we adopted a new policy of placing home equity loans and lines on non-accrual status when they exceed

180 days past due. Such loans were previously classified as accruing loans and leases past due 90 days or more. This policy

change conforms the home equity loans and lines classification to that of other consumer loans secured by residential real estate.

Total NPAs were $117.2 million at December 31, 2005, up $8.6 million, or 8%, from $108.6 million at December 31, 2004, which

was up $21.2 million, or 24%, from the end of 2003. Expressed as a percent of total loans and leases and other real estate, the

year-end positions for 2005, 2004, and 2003 were 0.48%, 0.46%, and 0.41%, respectively. Total non-performing loans and leases

increased throughout 2005, from a historically low point at the end of 2004, to a more normal level at the end of 2005.

All of the increase in 2004 related to the workout of a troubled mezzanine financing relationship. During the 2004 fourth

quarter, OREO reflected $35.7 million for properties related to the workout of $5.9 million of non-performing mezzanine loans

to a real estate partnership as we took ownership of the partnership, which required consolidation of the partnership’s assets and

liabilities including these properties.

Table 13 — Non-Performing Assets and Past Due Loans and Leases
At December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Non-accrual loans and leases:

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 28,888 $ 24,179 $33,745 $ 79,691 $143,140

Middle market commercial real estate 15,763 4,582 18,434 19,875 35,848

Small business commercial and industrial and commercial real estate 28,931 14,601 13,607 19,060 29,009

Residential mortgage 17,613 13,545 9,695 9,443 11,836

Home equity 10,720 7,055 — — —

Total non-accrual loans and leases 101,915 63,962 75,481 128,069 219,833

Renegotiated loans — — — — 1,276

Total non-performing loans and leases 101,915 63,962 75,481 128,069 221,109

Other real estate, net:

Residential 14,214 8,762 6,918 7,915 4,915

Commercial(1) 1,026 35,844 4,987 739 1,469

Total other real estate, net 15,240 44,606 11,905 8,654 6,384

Total non-performing assets $ 117,155 $108,568 $87,386 $136,723 $227,493

Non-performing loans and leases as a % of total loans and leases 0.42% 0.27% 0.36% 0.69% 1.20%

Non-performing assets as a % of total loans and leases and other real estate 0.48 0.46 0.41 0.74 1.23

Accruing loans and leases past due 90 days or more $ 56,138 $ 54,283 $55,913 $ 61,526 $ 76,013

Accruing loans and leases past due 90 days or more as a percent of total loans

and leases 0.23% 0.23% 0.27% 0.33% 0.41%

Total allowances for credit losses (ACL) as % of:

Total loans and leases 1.25 1.29 1.59 1.81 2.00

Non-performing loans and leases 300 476 444 263 167

Non-performing assets 261 280 384 246 162

(1) At December 31, 2004, other real estate owned included $35.7 million of properties that related to the workout of $5.9 million of mezzanine loans. These properties were subject to
$29.8 million of non-recourse debt to another financial institution. Both properties were sold in 2005.

Non-performing asset activity for the five years ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Table 14 — Non-Performing Asset Activity
Year Ended December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Non-performing assets, beginning of year $ 108,568 $ 87,386 $ 136,723 $ 227,493 $ 105,397

New non-performing assets(1) 171,150 137,359 222,043 260,229 329,882

Returns to accruing status (7,547) (3,795) (16,632) (17,124) (2,767)

Loan and lease losses (38,819) (37,337) (109,905) (152,616) (67,491)

Payments (64,861) (43,319) (83,886) (136,774) (106,889)

Sales(1) (51,336) (31,726) (60,957) (44,485) (30,639)

Non-performing assets, end of year $ 117,155 $108,568 $ 87,386 $ 136,723 $ 227,493

(1) In 2004, new non-performing assets included $35.7 million of properties that relate to the workout of $5.9 million of mezzanine loans. These properties were subject to $29.8 million of non-
recourse debt to another financial institution. Both properties were sold in 2005.
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Allowances for Credit Losses (ACL)

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 1, 3, and 4.)

We maintain two reserves, both of which are to absorb probable credit losses: the allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) and

the allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit (AULC). When summed together, these reserves constitute

the total ACL. Our credit administration group is responsible for developing the methodology and determining the adequacy of

the ACL.

The ALLL represents the estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. Additions to the

ALLL result from recording provision expense for loan losses or recoveries, while reductions reflect charge-offs, net of recoveries,

or the sale of loans. The AULC is determined by applying the transaction reserve process to the unfunded portion of the

portfolio adjusted by an applicable funding percentage.

We have an established process to determine the adequacy of the ACL that relies on a number of analytical tools and

benchmarks. No single statistic or measurement, in itself, determines the adequacy of the allowance. For determination purposes,

the allowance is comprised of two components: the transaction reserve and the economic reserve. The continued use of

quantitative methodologies for the transaction reserve and the introduction of the quantitative methodology for the economic

component may have the impact of more period to period fluctuation in the absolute and relative level of the reserves.

Transaction Reserve
The transaction reserve component of the ACL includes both (a) an estimate of loss based on characteristics of each

commercial and consumer loan, lease, or loan commitment in the portfolio and (b) an estimate of loss based on an

impairment review of each loan greater than $500,000 that is considered to be impaired. The latter was formerly

referred to as the specific reserve.

For middle market commercial and industrial, middle market commercial real estate, and small business loans, the

estimate of loss is based on characteristics of each loan through the use of a standardized loan grading system, which is

applied on an individual loan level and updated on a continuous basis. The reserve factors applied to these portfolios

were developed based on internal credit migration models that track historical movements of loans between loan ratings

over time and a combination of long-term average loss experience of our own portfolio and external industry data.

In the case of more homogeneous portfolios, such as consumer loans and leases and residential mortgage loans, the

determination of the transaction reserve is conducted at an aggregate, or pooled, level. For such portfolios, the

development of the reserve factors includes the use of forecasting models to measure inherent loss in these portfolios.

We analyze each middle market commercial and industrial, middle market commercial real estate, or small business

loan over $500,000 for impairment when the loan is non-performing or has a grade of substandard or lower. The

impairment tests are done in accordance with applicable accounting standards and regulations. For loans that are

determined to be impaired, an estimate of loss is reserved for the amount of the impairment.

Models and analyses are updated frequently to capture the recent behavioral characteristics of the subject portfolios, as

well as any changes in the loss mitigation or credit origination strategies. Adjustments to the reserve factors are made as

needed based on observed results of the portfolio analytics.

Economic Reserve
Changes in the economic environment are a significant judgmental factor we consider in determining the appropriate

level of the ACL. The economic reserve incorporates our determination of the impact on the portfolio of risks

associated with the general economic environment. The economic reserve is designed to address economic uncertainties

and is determined based on a variety of economic factors that are correlated to the historical performance of the loan

portfolio. Because of this more quantitative approach to recognizing risks in the general economy, the economic reserve

may fluctuate from period-to-period.

In an effort to be as quantitative as possible in the ACL calculation, we implemented a revised methodology for

calculating the economic reserve portion of the ACL in 2004. The revised methodology is specifically tied to economic

indices that have a high correlation to our historic charge-off variability. The indices currently in the model consist of

the U.S. Index of Leading Economic Indicators, U.S. Profits Index, U.S. Unemployment Index, and the University of

Michigan Current Consumer Confidence Index. Beginning in 2004, the calculated economic reserve was determined

based upon the variability of credit losses over a credit cycle. The indices and time frame may be adjusted as actual
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portfolio performance changes over time. Management has the capability to judgmentally adjust the calculated

economic reserve amount by a maximum of +/– 20% to reflect, among other factors, differences in local versus national

economic conditions. This adjustment capability is deemed necessary given the newness of the model and the

continuing uncertainty of forecasting economic environment changes. This methodology allows for a more meaningful

discussion of our view of the current economic conditions and the potential impact on credit losses.

The table below presents the components of the ACL expressed as a percent of total period end loans and leases as of

December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003:

Table 15 — ACL as % of Total Period End Loans and Leases

At December 31, 

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Transaction reserve 0.89% 0.83% 1.02% N.A.% N.A.%

Economic reserve 0.21 0.32 0.40 N.A. N.A.

Total ALLL 1.10 1.15 1.42 1.62 1.87

Total AULC 0.15 0.14 0.17 0.19 0.13

Total ACL 1.25% 1.29% 1.59% 1.81% 2.00%

N.A., not applicable.

Table 16 — Allocation of Allowances for Credit Losses(1)

At December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Commercial:

Middle market commercial and

industrial $ 82,963 20.8% $ 87,485 19.8% $103,237 21.0% $106,998 25.6% $131,489 26.6%

Middle market commercial real estate 60,667 14.4 54,927 14.9 63,294 15.1 35,658 15.5 43,574 14.8

Small business commercial and

industrial and commercial real estate 40,056 9.1 32,009 9.0 30,455 8.9 26,914 9.1 31,582 14.1

Total commercial 183,686 44.3 174,421 43.7 196,986 45.0 169,570 50.2 206,645 55.5

Consumer:

Automobile loans and leases 33,870 17.5 41,273 18.6 58,375 23.2 51,621 21.1 38,799 16.0

Home equity 30,245 19.0 29,275 19.3 25,995 17.7 16,878 16.9 24,054 19.0

Residential mortgage 13,172 17.1 18,995 16.3 11,124 12.0 8,566 9.4 6,013 6.1

Other loans 7,374 2.1 7,247 2.1 7,252 2.1 8,085 2.4 19,757 3.4

Total consumer 84,661 55.7 96,790 56.3 102,746 55.0 85,150 49.8 88,623 44.5

Total unallocated(2) — — — — — — 45,783 — 50,134 —

Total allowance for loan and

lease losses $ 268,347 100.0% $271,211 100.0% $299,732 100.0% $300,503 100.0% $345,402 100.0%

Allowance for unfunded loan

commitments and letters of credit 36,957 33,187 35,522 36,145 23,930

Total allowances for credit losses $ 305,304 $304,398 $335,254 $336,648 $369,332

(1) Percentages represent the percentage of each loan and lease category to total loans and leases.

(2) Prior to 2003, an unallocated component of the ALLL was maintained.

58



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Table 17 — Summary of Allowances for Credit Losses and Related Statistics

Year Ended December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Allowance for loan and lease losses, beginning of year $ 271,211 $ 299,732 $ 300,503 $ 345,402 $ 246,758

Loan and lease charge-offs
Commercial:

Middle market commercial and industrial (22,247) (21,095) (86,217) (112,430) (48,788)
Construction (534) (2,477) (3,092) (4,343) (824)
Commercial (4,311) (5,650) (6,763) (13,383) (1,959)

Middle market commercial real estate (4,845) (8,127) (9,855) (17,726) (2,783)
Small business commercial and industrial and commercial real estate (16,707) (10,270) (16,311) (18,587) (18,693)

Total commercial (43,799) (39,492) (112,383) (148,743) (70,264)

Consumer:
Automobile loans (25,780) (45,335) (57,890) (57,675) (72,054)
Automobile leases (12,966) (11,690) (5,632) (1,335) 416

Automobile loans and leases (38,746) (57,025) (63,522) (59,010) (71,638)
Home equity (20,129) (17,514) (14,166) (13,395) (13,201)
Residential mortgage (2,561) (1,975) (915) (888) (879)
Other loans (10,613) (10,109) (10,548) (12,316) (18,558)

Total consumer (72,049) (86,623) (89,151) (85,609) (104,276)

Total charge-offs (115,848) (126,115) (201,534) (234,352) (174,540)

Recoveries of loan and lease charge-offs
Commercial:

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 8,669 $ 19,175 $ 10,414 $ 7,727 $ 3,450
Construction 399 12 164 127 35
Commercial 401 144 1,744 1,415 539

Middle market commercial real estate 800 156 1,908 1,542 574
Small business commercial and industrial and commercial real estate 4,756 4,704 4,686 4,071 2,943

Total commercial 14,225 24,035 17,008 13,340 6,967

Consumer:
Automobile loans 13,792 16,761 17,603 18,559 16,630
Automobile leases 1,302 853 (75) (95) (63)

Automobile loans and leases 15,094 17,614 17,528 18,464 16,567
Home equity 2,510 2,440 2,052 1,555 1,743
Residential mortgage 229 215 83 16 94
Other loans 3,733 3,276 3,054 4,065 2,900

Total consumer 21,566 23,545 22,717 24,100 21,304

Total recoveries 35,791 47,580 39,725 37,440 28,271

Net loan and lease charge-offs (80,057) (78,535) (161,809) (196,912) (146,269)

Provision for loan and lease losses 83,782 57,397 164,616 182,211 251,567
Economic reserve transfer (6,253) — — — —
Allowance for assets sold and securitized (336) (7,383) (3,578) (30,198) (6,654)

Allowance for loan and lease losses, end of year $ 268,347 $ 271,211 $ 299,732 $ 300,503 $ 345,402

Allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit,
beginning of year $ 33,187 $ 35,522 $ 36,145 $ 23,930 $ 18,171

Provision for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit losses (2,483) (2,335) (623) 12,215 5,759
Economic reserve transfer 6,253 — — — —

Allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit,
end of year 36,957 33,187 35,522 36,145 23,930

Allowance for credit losses, end of year $ 305,304 $ 304,398 $ 335,254 $ 336,648 $ 369,332

Net loan and lease losses as a % of average total loans and leases 0.33% 0.35% 0.81% 1.13% 0.81%
Allowance for credit losses as a % of total period end loans and leases 1.25 1.29 1.59 1.81 2.00
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Net Charge-offs

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factor 4.)

Total net charge-offs as a percent of average total loans and leases were 0.33% in 2005, down from 0.35% in 2004, and 0.81% in

2003. (See Table 19.)

Total net charge-offs for 2005 were $80.1 million, or an annualized 0.33% of average total loans and leases. While the dollar

amount of net charge-offs increased 2% from 2004, on a relative basis, net charge-offs declined slightly from the annualized

0.35% ratio a year ago.

Total commercial net charge-offs in 2005 were $29.6 million, or an annualized 0.28%, up from $15.5 million, or 0.16%, in 2004,

which included a $11.1 million one-time recovery on a previously charged-off loan.

Total consumer net charge-offs in the current year were $50.5 million, or an annualized 0.37% of related loans, down from

$63.1 million, or 0.51%, in 2004. Total automobile loan and lease net charge-offs in 2005 were $23.7 million, or an annualized

0.53% of related loans and leases, down from $39.4 million, or 0.88%, in 2004. This reduction reflected the impact of previous

loan sales. Home equity net charge-offs in the current year were $17.6 million, or an annualized 0.38% of related loans, up from

$15.1 million, or 0.36%, in 2004.

We have established the following long-term net charge-off ratio targets for certain portfolio segments, and for the total portfolio,

assuming a comparable portfolio mix, as well as a stable economic environment:

Table 18 — Long-term Net Charge-off Ratio Targets

Long-term Targets(1)

Middle market C&I 0.20% - 0.30%

Middle market CRE 0.15% - 0.25%

Small business C&I and CRE 0.50% - 0.60%

Automobile loans 0.75% - 0.85%

Automobile direct financing leases 0.50% - 0.60%

Home equity loans and lines 0.35% - 0.45%

Residential loans 0.10% +/–

Total portfolio 0.35% - 0.45%

(1) Assumes loan and lease portfolio mix comparable to December 31, 2005, and stable economic environment.
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Table 19 — Net Loan and Lease Charge-offs

At December 31, 

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Net charge-offs by loan and lease type:
Commercial:

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 13,578 $ 1,920 $ 75,803 $104,703 $ 45,338
Construction 135 2,465 2,928 4,216 789
Commercial 3,910 5,506 5,019 11,968 1,420

Middle market commercial real estate 4,045 7,971 7,947 16,184 2,209
Small business commercial and industrial and commercial real estate 11,951 5,566 11,625 14,516 15,750

Total commercial 29,574 15,457 95,375 135,403 63,297

Consumer:
Automobile loans 11,988 28,574 40,266 39,115 N.M.
Automobile leases 11,664 10,837 5,728 1,431 N.M.

Automobile loans and leases 23,652 39,411 45,994 40,546 55,071
Home equity 17,619 15,074 12,114 11,840 11,458
Residential mortgage 2,332 1,760 832 872 785
Other loans 6,880 6,833 7,494 8,251 15,658

Total consumer 50,483 63,078 66,434 61,509 82,972

Total net charge-offs $ 80,057 $78,535 $161,809 $196,912 $146,269

Net charge-offs — annualized percentages:
Commercial:

Middle market commercial and industrial 0.28% 0.04% 1.64% 2.18% 0.89%
Construction 0.01 0.17 0.24 0.37 0.08
Commercial 0.20 0.29 0.28 0.72 0.09

Middle market commercial real estate 0.11 0.24 0.26 0.57 0.09
Small business commercial and industrial and commercial real estate 0.54 0.28 0.65 0.88 0.61

Total commercial 0.28 0.16 1.01 1.46 0.62

Consumer:
Automobile loans 0.59 1.25 1.24 1.43 N.M.
Automobile leases 0.48 0.49 0.40 0.32 N.M.

Automobile loans and leases 0.53 0.88 0.98 1.27 1.94
Home equity 0.38 0.36 0.35 0.39 0.34
Residential mortgage 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.07
Other loans 1.37 1.52 1.72 1.72 2.39

Total consumer 0.37 0.51 0.63 0.76 1.05

Net charge-offs as a % of average loans 0.33% 0.35% 0.81% 1.13% 0.81%

N.M., not a meaningful value.

Investment Portfolio

Investment decisions that incorporate credit risk require the approval of the independent credit administration function. The

degree of initial due diligence and subsequent review is a function of the type, size, and collateral of the investment. Performance

is monitored on a regular basis and reported to the Market Risk Committee (MRC) and the Executive Credit Risk Committee.

Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss due to changes in market values of assets and liabilities. We incur market risk in the

normal course of business through exposures to market interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads, and

expected lease residual values. We have identified three primary sources of market risk: interest rate risk, price risk, and lease

residual risk. Interest rate risk is our primary market risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk results from timing differences in the repricings and maturities of assets and liabilities, and changes in

relationships between market interest rates and the yields on assets and rates on liabilities, as well as from the impact of
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embedded options, such as borrowers’ ability to prepay residential mortgage loans at any time and depositors’ ability to terminate

CDs before maturity.

Our board of directors establishes broad policies with respect to interest rate risk. The Market Risk Committee (MRC) establishes

specific operating guidelines within the parameters of the board of directors’ policies. In general, we seek to minimize the impact

of changing interest rates on net interest income and the economic values of assets and liabilities. Our MRC regularly monitors

the level of interest rate risk sensitivity to ensure compliance with board of directors approved risk limits.

Interest rate risk management is a dynamic process that encompasses monitoring loan and deposit flows, investment and funding

activities, and assessing the impact of the changing market and business environments. Effective management of interest rate risk

begins with understanding the interest rate characteristics of assets and liabilities and determining the appropriate interest rate

risk posture given market expectations and policy objectives and constraints.

Interest rate risk modeling is performed monthly. Two broad approaches to modeling interest rate risk are employed: income

simulation and economic value analysis. An income simulation analysis is used to measure the sensitivity of forecasted net

interest income to changes in market rates over a one-year time horizon. Although bank owned life insurance and automobile

operating lease assets are classified as non-interest earning assets, and the income from these assets is in non-interest income,

these portfolios are included in the interest sensitivity analysis because both have attributes similar to fixed-rate interest earning

assets. The economic value of equity (EVE) is calculated by subjecting the period-end balance sheet to changes in interest rates,

and measuring the impact of the changes on the values of the assets and liabilities. EVE serves as a complement to income

simulation modeling as it provides risk exposure estimates for time periods beyond the one-year simulation horizon. Similar to

income simulation modeling, EVE analysis also includes the risks of bank owned life insurance and the mortgage servicing asset.

The models used for these measurements take into account prepayment speeds on mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities,

and consumer installment loans, as well as cash flows of other loans and deposits. Balance sheet growth assumptions are also

considered in the income simulation model. The models include the effects of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, interest rate

caps, floors, and other types of interest rate options, and account for changes in relationships among interest rates (basis risk).

The baseline scenario for income simulation analysis, with which all other scenarios are compared, is based on market interest

rates implied by the prevailing yield curve as of the period end. Alternative interest rate scenarios are then compared with the

baseline scenario. These alternative market rate scenarios include parallel rate shifts on both a gradual and immediate basis,

movements in rates that alter the shape of the yield curve (i.e., flatter or steeper yield curve), and spot rates remaining

unchanged for the entire measurement period. Scenarios are also developed to measure basis risk, such as the impact of LIBOR-

based rates rising or falling faster than the prime rate.

The simulations for evaluating short-term interest rate risk exposure are scenarios that model gradual 100 and 200 basis point

increasing and decreasing parallel shifts in interest rates over the next 12-month period beyond the interest rate change implied

by the current yield curve. The table below shows the results of the scenarios as of December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004.

All of the positions were well within the board of directors’ policy limits.

Table 20 — Net Interest Income at Risk

Net Interest Income at Risk (%) 

Basis point change scenario –200 –100 +100 +200

Board policy limits –4.0% –2.0% –2.0% –4.0%

December 31, 2005 –1.3% –0.5% +0.1% +0.3%

December 31, 2004 –1.2% –0.5% +0.2% +0.2%

The primary simulations for EVE at risk assume an immediate and parallel increase in rates of +/– 100 and +/– 200 basis points

beyond any interest rate change implied by the current yield curve. The table below outlines the results compared with the

previous year-end and policy limits. All of the positions were well within the board of directors’ policy limits.
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Table 21 — Economic Value of Equity at Risk

Economic Value of Equity at Risk (%) 

Basis point change scenario –200 –100 +100 +200

Board policy limits –12.0% –5.0% –5.0% –12.0%

December 31, 2005 –0.8% +0.5% –2.5% –6.2%

December 31, 2004 –1.9% –0.2% –1.5% –4.5%

Price Risk

Price risk represents the risk of loss arising from adverse movements in the prices of financial instruments that are carried at fair

value and are subject to mark-to-market accounting. We have price risk from mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) and trading

securities, which includes the instruments to hedge MSRs. We also have price risk from securities owned by our broker-dealer

subsidiaries, foreign exchange positions, investments in private equity limited partnerships, and marketable equity securities held

by our insurance subsidiaries. We have established loss limits on the trading portfolio and on the amount of foreign exchange

exposure that can be maintained and the amount of marketable equity securities that can be held by the insurance subsidiaries.

Lease Residual Risk

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factor 1 and the Operating Lease Assets section.)

Lease residual risk associated with retail automobile and commercial equipment leases is the potential for declines in the fair

market value of the vehicle or equipment below the maturity value estimated at origination. Most of our lease residual risk is in

our automobile leases. Used car values are the primary factor in determining the magnitude of the risk exposure. Since used car

values are subject to many factors, lease residual risk has been extremely volatile throughout the history of automobile leasing.

We mitigate lease residual risk by purchasing residual value insurance. Residual value insurance provides for the recovery of a

decline in the vehicle residual value, as specified at the inception of the lease by the Automotive Lease Guide (ALG), an

authoritative industry source. As a result, the risk associated with market driven declines in used car values is mitigated. Market

driven declines include economic factors, environmental factors, and consumer sentiment, but not vehicle condition or accrued

mileage.

As of December 31, 2005, three distinct residual value insurance policies were in place to address the residual risk in the

automobile lease portfolio. One residual value insurance policy covered all vehicles leased between October 1, 2000 and April 30,

2002 and had a total payment cap of $50 million. Any losses above the cap result in additional operating lease depreciation

expense. It is our assessment that the $50 million cap remains sufficient to cover any expected losses. A second residual insurance

policy covers all originations from May 2002 through June 2005, and does not have a payment cap. A third policy went into

effect July 1, 2005, and covers all originations for a period of one year with no payment cap.

Liquidity Risk

The objective of effective liquidity management is to ensure that cash flow needs can be met on a timely basis at a reasonable

cost under both normal operating conditions and unforeseen circumstances. The liquidity of the Bank is used to originate loans

and leases and to repay deposit and other liabilities as they become due or are demanded by customers. Liquidity risk arises from

the possibility that funds may not be available to satisfy current or future commitments based on external macro market issues,

asset and liability activities, investor perception of financial strength, and events unrelated to the company such as war, terrorism,

or financial institution market specific issues.

Liquidity policies and limits are established by our board of directors, with operating limits set by our MRC, based upon analyses

of the ratio of loans to deposits, the percentage of assets funded with non-core or wholesale funding, and the amount of liquid

assets available to cover non-core funds maturities. In addition, guidelines are established to ensure diversification of wholesale

funding by type, source, and maturity and provide sufficient balance sheet liquidity to cover 100% of wholesale funds maturing

within a six-month time period. A contingency funding plan is in place, which includes forecasted sources and uses of funds

under various scenarios in order to prepare for unexpected liquidity shortages, including the implications of any credit rating

changes. Our MRC meets monthly to identify and monitor liquidity issues, provide policy guidance, and oversee adherence to,

and the maintenance of, an evolving contingency funding plan. We believe that sufficient liquidity exists to meet the funding

needs of the Bank and the parent company.
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Sources of Liquidity

Our primary source of funding is core deposits from retail and commercial customers. As of December 31, 2005, these core

deposits, of which 93% were provided by our Regional Banking line of business, funded 53% of total assets. The types and

sources of deposits by business segment at December 31, 2005, are detailed in Table 22. At December 31, 2005, total core deposits

represented 78% of total deposits, down slightly from 83% at the end of the prior year.

Core deposits are comprised of interest bearing and non-interest bearing demand deposits, savings and other domestic time

deposits, and certificates of deposit less than $100,000. Other domestic time deposits are comprised primarily of IRA deposits.

Brokered time deposits represent funds obtained by or through a deposit broker. At December 31, 2005, $2.1 billion of brokered

deposits were issued in denominations of $100,000 or more and, in turn, participated by the broker to their customers in

denominations of $100,000 or less. Foreign deposits are interest bearing and all mature in one year or less.

Domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more and brokered deposits and negotiable CDs totaled $4.5 billion at the end of 2005

and $3.2 billion at the end of 2004. The contractual maturities of the deposits at December 31, 2005 were as follows: $1.4 billion

in three months or less, $0.3 billion in three months through six months, $0.5 billion after six months through twelve months,

and $2.3 billion after twelve months.

Demand deposit overdrafts that have been reclassified as loan balances were $11.9 million and $12.8 million at December 31,

2005 and 2004, respectively.

Sources of wholesale funding include domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more, brokered deposits and negotiable CDs, deposits

in foreign offices, short-term borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances, other long-term debt, and subordinated

notes. At December 31, 2005, total wholesale funding was $11.5 billion, an increase of $0.4 billion, or 3%, from December 31,

2004. The $11.5 billion portfolio at December 31, 2005, had a weighted average maturity of 3.5 years. We are a member of the

FHLB of Cincinnati, which provides funding to members through advances. These advances carry maturities from one month to

20 years. At December 31, 2005, our wholesale funding included $1.2 billion of advances from the FHLB. All FHLB borrowings

are collateralized with mortgage-related assets such as residential mortgage loans and home equity loans. To provide further

liquidity, we have a $6.0 billion domestic bank note program with $3.0 billion available for future issuance under this program as

of December 31, 2005. This program enables us to issue notes with maturities from one month to 30 years.
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Table 22 — Deposit Composition

At December 31,

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

By Type

Demand deposits — non-interest bearing $ 3,390 15.1% $ 3,392 16.3% $ 2,987 16.2% $ 3,058 17.5% $ 3,607 17.9%

Demand deposits — interest bearing 7,380 32.9 7,786 37.5 6,411 34.7 5,390 30.8 5,752 28.5

Savings and other domestic time deposits 3,094 13.8 3,503 16.9 3,591 19.4 3,546 20.3 4,362 21.6

Certificates of deposit less than $100,000 3,526 15.7 2,467 11.9 2,462 13.3 3,261 18.6 4,970 24.6

Total core deposits 17,390 77.5 17,148 82.6 15,451 83.6 15,255 87.2 18,691 92.6

Domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more 1,349 6.0 1,082 5.2 789 4.3 732 4.2 1,131 5.6

Brokered deposits and negotiable CDs 3,200 14.3 2,097 10.1 1,772 9.6 1,093 6.2 140 0.7

Deposits in foreign offices 471 2.2 441 2.1 475 2.5 419 2.4 225 1.1

Total deposits $ 22,410 100.0% $20,768 100.0% $18,487 100.0% $17,499 100.0% $20,187 100.0%

Total core deposits:

Commercial $ 5,352 30.8% $ 5,294 30.9% $ 4,255 27.5% $ 3,981 26.1% $ 4,192 22.4%

Personal 12,038 69.2 11,854 69.1 11,196 72.5 11,274 73.9 14,499 77.6

Total core deposits $ 17,390 100.0% $17,148 100.0% $15,451 100.0% $15,255 100.0% $18,691 100.0%

By Business Segment(1)

Regional Banking:

Central Ohio $ 4,526 20.2% $ 4,501 21.7%

Northern Ohio 4,071 18.2 4,068 19.6

Southern Ohio/Kentucky 1,951 8.7 1,742 8.4

West Michigan 2,795 12.5 2,644 12.7

East Michigan 2,272 10.1 2,222 10.7

West Virginia 1,463 6.5 1,375 6.6

Indiana 727 3.2 664 3.2

Mortgage and equipment leasing groups 162 0.7 195 0.9

Regional Banking 17,967 80.1 17,411 83.8

Dealer Sales 66 0.3 75 0.4

Private Financial and Capital Markets Group 1,169 5.2 1,176 5.7

Treasury/Other(2) 3,208 14.4 2,106 10.1

Total deposits $ 22,410 100.0% $20,768 100.0%

(1) Prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period business segment structure.

(2) Comprised largely of brokered deposits and negotiable CDs.

Table 23 — Federal Funds Purchased and Repurchase Agreements

At December 31,

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Balance at year end $ 1,820 $1,124 $1,378 $2,459 $1,914

Weighted average interest rate at year-end 3.46% 1.31% 0.73% 1.49% 2.24%

Maximum amount outstanding at month-end during the year $ 1,820 $1,671 $2,439 $2,504 $3,095

Average amount outstanding during the year 1,319 1,356 1,707 2,072 2,259

Weighted average interest rate during the year 2.41% 0.88% 1.22% 1.98% 4.11%

Other potential sources of liquidity include the sale or maturity of investment securities, the sale or securitization of loans, and

the issuance of common and preferred securities. The Bank also has access to the Federal Reserve’s discount window. At

December 31, 2005, a total of $2.4 billion of commercial loans had been pledged to secure potential future borrowings through

this facility.
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Table 24 — Investment Securities

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

U.S. Treasury $ 23,675 $ 25,136 $ 308,370
Federal agencies 1,615,488 1,945,762 2,977,546
Other 2,887,357 2,268,047 1,643,144

Total investment securities $4,526,520 $4,238,945 $4,929,060

Amortized
Cost Fair Value Yield(1)

U.S. Treasury
Under 1 year $ — $ — —%
1-5 years 23,446 22,893 3.54
6-10 years 753 782 5.45
Over 10 years — — —

Total U.S. Treasury 24,199 23,675 3.61

Federal agencies
Mortgage backed securities

Under 1 year — — —
1-5 years 31,058 30,047 3.99
6-10 years — — —
Over 10 years 1,278,540 1,248,975 4.63

Total mortgage-backed Federal agencies 1,309,598 1,279,022 4.61

Other agencies
Under 1 year — — —
1-5 years 296,945 286,754 3.38
6-10 years 52,440 49,712 3.71
Over 10 years — — —

Total other Federal agencies 349,385 336,466 3.43

Total Federal agencies 1,658,983 1,615,488 4.37

Municipal securities
Under 1 year 65 65 8.64
1-5 years 145 145 7.69
6-10 years 144,415 143,597 5.83
Over 10 years 400,156 401,043 6.63

Total municipal securities 544,781 544,850 6.42

Private label CMO
Under 1 year — — —
1-5 years — — —
6-10 years — — —
Over 10 years 402,959 393,569 4.67

Total private label CMO 402,959 393,569 —

Asset backed securities
Under 1 year — — —
1-5 years 31,663 31,659 5.22
6-10 years — — —
Over 10 years 1,757,031 1,757,121 5.37

Total asset backed securities 1,788,694 1,788,780 5.37

Other Under
1 year 1,700 1,700 3.80
1-5 years 10,997 11,051 4.70
6-10 years 2,062 2,063 5.75
Over 10 years 44 43 —
Non-marketable equity securities 89,661 89,661 —
Marketable equity securities 55,058 55,640 2.51

Total other 159,522 160,158 2.98

Total investment securities $4,579,138 $4,526,520 5.02%

(1) Weighted average yields were calculated using amortized cost on a fully taxable equivalent basis assuming a 35% tax rate.
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At December 31, 2005, the investment securities portfolio totaled $4.5 billion, of which $1.4 billion was pledged to secure public

and trust deposits, interest rate swap agreements, U.S. Treasury demand notes, and securities sold under repurchase agreements.

The composition and maturity of these securities are presented in Table 24. Another source of liquidity is non-pledged securities,

which increased to $3.1 billion at December 31, 2005, from $2.1 billion at December 31, 2004.

The relatively short-term nature of our loans and leases also provides significant liquidity. As shown in Table 25, of the

$10.8 billion total commercial loans at December 31, 2005, approximately 38% mature within one year. In addition, during 2005

and 2004, $0.4 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively, in indirect automobile loans were sold, with such sales representing another

source of liquidity.

Table 25 — Maturity Schedule of Commercial Loans

At December 31, 2005

One Year One to After Percent
(in millions of dollars) or Less Five Years Five Years Total of total

Commercial and industrial $ 2,819 $ 2,804 $ 1,186 $ 6,809 62.8%

Commercial real estate — construction 581 925 32 1,538 14.2

Commercial real estate — commercial 710 1,329 459 2,498 23.0

Total $ 4,110 $ 5,058 $ 1,677 $10,845 100.0%

Variable interest rates $ 3,992 $ 3,992 $ 1,467 $ 9,451 87.1%

Fixed interest rates 118 1,066 210 1,394 12.9

Total $ 4,110 $ 5,058 $ 1,677 $10,845 100.0%

Percent of total 37.9% 46.6% 15.5% 100.0%

Parent Company Liquidity

The parent company’s funding requirements consist primarily of dividends to shareholders, income taxes, funding of non-bank

subsidiaries, repurchases of our stock, debt service, and operating expenses. The parent company obtains funding to meet

obligations from dividends received from direct subsidiaries, net taxes collected from subsidiaries included in the Federal

consolidated tax return, fees for services provided to subsidiaries, and the issuance of debt securities.

We intend to maintain the Bank’s risk-based capital ratios at levels considered to be ‘‘well capitalized’’ by regulators. As a result,

the amount of dividends that can be paid to the parent company depends on the Bank’s capital needs. At December 31, 2005,

the bank was ‘‘well capitalized’’ according to guidelines established by the Bank’s primary regulator, the OCC. At December 31,

2005, the Bank could declare and pay dividends to the parent company of $163.0 million and still be considered ‘‘well

capitalized.’’ The Bank could declare an additional $230.6 million of dividends without regulatory approval at December 31, 2005,

although such dividends would take the Bank below ‘‘well capitalized’’ levels.

At December 31, 2005, the parent company had no debt outstanding under its medium-term note program, with $195 million

available for future funding needs. In January 2006, we filed an open-ended automatic shelf registration statement, which permits

us to issue debt or equity securities as needed.

At December 31, 2005, the parent company had $227 million in cash or cash equivalents. We believe that the parent company

has sufficient liquidity to meet its cash flow obligations in 2006, including anticipated annual dividend payments.

Credit Ratings

Credit ratings by the three major credit rating agencies are an important component of our liquidity profile. Among other

factors, the credit ratings are based on financial strength and profitability, credit quality and concentrations in the loan portfolio,

the level and volatility of earnings, capital adequacy, the quality of management, the liquidity of the balance sheet, the availability

of a significant base of core retail and commercial deposits, and our ability to access a broad array of wholesale funding sources.

Adverse changes in these factors could result in a negative change in credit ratings and impact not only the ability to raise funds

in the capital markets, but also the cost of these funds. In addition, certain financial on- and off-balance sheet arrangements

contain credit rating triggers that could increase funding needs if a negative rating change occurs. Letter of credit commitments

for marketable securities, interest rate swap collateral agreements, and certain asset securitization transactions contain credit rating

provisions.
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As a result of the then-pending formal SEC investigation and banking regulatory supervisory agreements announced on

November 3, 2004, the following rating agency actions were taken (1) Moody’s reaffirmed their Negative outlook and placed all

the ratings on review for possible downgrade, (2) Standard and Poor’s lowered their outlook from Stable to Negative, and

(3) Fitch lowered their outlook from Stable to Negative. As a precautionary measure, we increased the volume of long-term

wholesale borrowings, while reducing overnight Federal Funds borrowings. The cost of short-term borrowings was not materially

affected by these actions, although at least one investor reduced exposure limits.

On February 8, 2005, Moody’s announced the following rating actions:

From To

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated

Senior Unsecured Notes A2 A3

Subordinated Notes A3 Baa1

Short Term P-1 P-2

Outlook Negative Stable

The Huntington National Bank

Senior Unsecured Notes A1 A2

Subordinated Notes A2 A3

Short Term (reaffirmed ) P-1 P-1

Outlook Negative Stable

On April 6, 2005, Standard and Poor’s announced the following rating actions:

From To

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated

Senior Unsecured Notes A– BBB+

Subordinated Notes BBB+ BBB

Short Term (reaffirmed ) A-2 A-2

Outlook Negative Stable

The Huntington National Bank

Senior Unsecured Notes A A–

Subordinated Notes A– BBB+

Short Term A-1 A-2

Outlook Negative Stable

These two rating agency actions had no adverse impact on rating triggers inherent in financial markets or our ability to raise and

maintain core deposits or access the capital markets for funding.

On October 3, 2005, Fitch Ratings affirmed their current ratings and changed the outlook to Stable from Negative. Credit ratings

as of December 31, 2005 for the parent company and the Bank were:

Table 26 — Credit Ratings

December 31, 2005

Senior Unsecured Subordinated
Notes Notes Short-Term Outlook

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated
Moody’s Investor Service A3 Baal P-2 Stable
Standard and Poor’s BBB+ BBB A-2 Stable
Fitch Ratings A A– F1 Stable

The Huntington National Bank
Moody’s Investor Service A2 A3 P-1 Stable
Standard and Poor’s A– BBB+ A-2 Stable
Fitch Ratings A A– F1 Stable
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we enter into various off-balance sheet arrangements. These arrangements include financial

guarantees contained in standby letters of credit issued by the Bank and commitments by the Bank to sell mortgage loans.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. These

guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond

financing, and similar transactions. Most of these arrangements mature within two years. Approximately 48% of standby letters of

credit are collateralized and most are expected to expire without being drawn upon. There were $1.1 billion and $0.9 billion of

outstanding standby letters of credit at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Non-interest income was recognized from the

issuance of these standby letters of credit of $11.1 million and $11.3 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The carrying amount

of deferred revenue related to standby letters of credit at December 31, 2005, was $4.0 million. Standby letters of credit are

included in the determination of the amount of risk-based capital that we and the Bank are required to hold.

The Bank enters into forward contracts relating to the mortgage banking business. At December 31, 2005 and 2004,

commitments to sell residential real estate loans totaled $348.3 million and $311.3 million, respectively. These contracts mature in

less than one year.

The parent company and/or the Bank may also have liabilities under certain contractual agreements contingent upon the

occurrence of certain events. A discussion of significant contractual arrangements under which the parent company and/or the

Bank may be held contingently liable, including guarantee arrangements, is included in Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements.

Through our credit process, we monitor the credit risks of outstanding standby letters of credit. When it is probable that a

standby letter of credit will be drawn and not repaid in full, losses are recognized in provision for credit losses. We do not believe

that off-balance sheet arrangements will have a material impact on our liquidity or capital resources.

Table 27 — Contractual Obligations

At December 31, 2005

One Year 1 to 3 3 to 5 More than
(in millions of dollars) or Less Years Years 5 years Total

Deposits without a stated maturity $ 14,047 $ — $ — $ — $14,047

Certificates of deposit and other time deposits 4,102 3,034 656 571 8,363

Other long-term debt 775 325 450 868 2,418

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 159 995 — 2 1,156

Short-term borrowings 1,889 — — — 1,889

Subordinated notes — — — 1,023 1,023

Operating lease obligations 32 59 52 158 301

Operational Risk

As with all companies, there is risk inherent in the day-to-day operations that could result in losses due to human error,

inadequate or failed internal systems and controls, and external events. We, through a combination of business units and

centralized processes, have the responsibility to manage the risk for the company through a process that assesses the overall level

of risk on a regular basis and identifies specific risks and the steps being taken to control them. Furthermore, a system of

committees is established to provide guidance over the process and escalate potential concerns to senior management on the

operational risk committee, executive management on the risk management committee and the risk committee of the board of

directors, as appropriate.

We continue to develop and enhance policies and procedures to control the elements of risk found in our processes. While we are

not able to eliminate risk completely, our goal is to minimize the impact of a risk event and to be prepared to cover the result of

it through insurance, earnings, and capital.

Certain overarching operational risk activities are performed by an enterprise risk group. These include monitoring adherence to

corporate policies governing risk, business continuity programs to assure that operations to serve our customers continue during

emergency situations, and information security to monitor and address electronic and sensitive information threats for the

company.
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Capital

Capital is managed both at the Bank and on a consolidated basis. Capital levels are maintained based on regulatory capital

requirements and the economic capital required to support credit, market, liquidity, and operational risks inherent in our

business, and to provide the flexibility needed for future growth and new business opportunities. We place significant emphasis

on the maintenance of a strong capital position, which promotes investor confidence, provides access to the national markets

under favorable terms, and enhances business growth and acquisition opportunities. The importance of managing capital is also

recognized, and we continually strive to maintain an appropriate balance between capital adequacy and providing attractive

returns to shareholders.

Shareholders’ equity totaled $2.6 billion at December 31, 2005. This balance represented a $19.9 million increase during 2005.

Growth in shareholders’ equity primarily reflected a $218.2 million increase from the retention of net income after the

declaration of dividends and a $39.2 million increase from stock option exercises during 2005. These increases were partially

offset by the repurchase of 9.6 million shares during 2005, which reduced shareholders’ equity by $231.7 million.

At December 31, 2005, we had unused authority to repurchase up to 9.8 million common shares. All purchases under the current

authorization are expected to be made from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions,

depending on market conditions.

On April 27, 2005, the quarterly common stock dividend was increased 7.5% to $0.215 per share, up from $0.20 per share. Total

dividends declared on our common stock in 2005 were $0.845 per common share, up 12.7% from total dividends declared in

2004 of $0.75 per share. On January 18, 2006, the quarterly common stock dividend was increased 16.3% to $0.25 per share, up

from $0.215 per share. The increase, assuming it is maintained throughout 2006, would result in a dividend payout ratio above

our long-term targeted payout range of 40%-50%, but we believe this is warranted in the current, slow growth environment.

We evaluate several measures of capital, along with the customary three primary regulatory ratios: Tier 1 Risk-based Capital, Total

Risk-based Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage. The Federal Reserve Board, which supervises and regulates us, sets minimum capital

requirements for each of these regulatory capital ratios. In the calculation of these risk-based capital ratios, risk weightings are

assigned to certain asset and off-balance sheet items such as interest rate swaps, loan commitments, and securitizations. Our

Tier 1 Risk-based Capital, Total Risk-based Capital, Tier 1 Leverage ratios, and risk-adjusted assets for five years are shown in

Table 28 and are well in excess of minimum levels established for ‘‘well capitalized’’ institutions. The Bank is primarily supervised

and regulated by the OCC which establishes regulatory capital guidelines for banks similar to those established for bank holding

companies by the Federal Reserve Board. At December 31, 2005, the Bank had regulatory capital ratios in excess of ‘‘well

capitalized’’ regulatory minimums.

Table 28 — Capital Adequacy

‘‘Well-
At December 31,Capitalized’’

(in millions of dollars) Minimums 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Total risk-weighted assets $ 29,599 $29,542 $28,164 $27,030 $27,736
Ratios:

Tier 1 leverage ratio 5.00% 8.34% 8.42% 7.98% 8.51% 7.16%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 6.00 9.13 9.08 8.53 8.34 7.02
Total risk-based capital ratio 10.00 12.42 12.48 11.95 11.25 10.07
Tangible equity ratio / asset ratio 7.19 7.18 6.79 7.22 5.86
Tangible equity / risk-weighted assets ratio 7.91 7.86 7.31 7.29 5.86

Our tangible equity ratio at December 31, 2005, was 7.19%, up from 7.18% at the end of 2004. This improvement in tangible

equity was largely due to the retention of earnings in excess of dividends paid to shareholders, offset partially by the impact of a

$0.2 billion increase in period-end assets and share repurchases. We have targeted a longer-term tangible common equity to asset

ratio of 6.25%-6.50%, given the current portfolio risk profile.

Another measure of capital adequacy favored by one of the rating agencies is tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets.

This measurement utilizes risk-weighted assets, as defined in the regulatory capital ratio. The tangible common equity to risk-

weighted assets ratio at December 31, 2005, was 7.91%, up from 7.86% at the end of 2004. The ratio was favorably impacted by

the addition of lower risk-weighted assets during the year, e.g., residential mortgages, home equity loans, and investment

securities, partially offset by the impact of share repurchases.
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LINES OF BUSINESS DISCUSSION

This section reviews financial performance from a line of business perspective and should be read in conjunction with the

Discussion of Results of Operations and other sections for a full understanding of consolidated financial performance.

We have three distinct lines of business: Regional Banking, Dealer Sales, and the Private Financial and Capital Markets Group

(PFCMG). A fourth segment includes our Treasury function and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue, and expense. Lines

of business results are determined based upon our management reporting system, which assigns balance sheet and income

statement items to each of the business segments. The process is designed around our organizational and management structure

and, accordingly, the results below are not necessarily comparable with similar information published by other financial

institutions. During the second quarter of 2005, the Capital Markets Group was removed from the Treasury/Other segment and

combined with the Private Financial Group to form the Private Financial and Capital Markets Group segment. Since the Capital

Markets Group is now managed through the Private Financial Group, combining these two segments better reflects the

management accountability and decision making structure. Prior periods reflect this change. An overview of this system is

provided below, along with a description of each segment and discussion of financial results.

FUNDS TRANSFER PRICING

We use a centralized funds transfer pricing (FTP) methodology to attribute appropriate net interest income to the business

segments. The Treasury/Other business segment charges (credits) an internal cost of funds for assets held in (or pays for funding

provided by) each line of business. The FTP rate is based on prevailing market interest rates for comparable duration assets (or

liabilities). Deposits of an indeterminate maturity receive an FTP credit based on vintage-based pool rate. Other assets, liabilities,

and capital are charged (credited) with a four-year moving average FTP rate. The intent of the FTP methodology is to eliminate

all interest rate risk from the lines of business by providing matched duration funding of assets and liabilities. The result is to

centralize the financial impact and management of interest rate and liquidity risk in Treasury/Other where it can be monitored

and managed.

The FTP methodology also provides for a charge (credit) to the line of business when a fixed-rate loan is sold and the internal

funding associated with the loan is extinguished. The charge (credit) to the line of business represents the cost (or benefit) to

Treasury/Other of the early extinguishment of the internal fixed-rate funding. This charge (credit) has no impact on consolidated

financial results.

USE OF OPERATING EARNINGS

We use earnings on an operating basis, rather than on a GAAP basis, to measure underlying performance trends for each

business segment. Operating earnings represent GAAP earnings adjusted to exclude the impact of certain items discussed in the

Significant Factors Influencing Financial Performance Comparisons section, Table 3, and Table 29. (Also, see Note 26 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements.) Analyzing earnings on an operating basis is very helpful in assessing underlying

performance trends, a critical factor used to determine the success of strategies and future earnings capabilities.
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Table 29 — Lines of Business — GAAP Earnings vs. Operating Earnings Reconciliation(1)

(in thousands of dollars) Regional Banking Dealer Sales PFCMG Treasury/Other Total

2005

Net income — GAAP $ 290,627 $ 67,184 $ 47,208 $ 7,072 $412,091
Change from prior year — $ 40,212 (7,053) 2,578 (22,571) 13,166
Change from prior year — % 16.1% (9.5)% 5.8% (76.1)% 3.3%

Net income — operating $ 290,627 $ 67,184 $ 47,208 $ 7,072 $412,091
Change from prior year — $ 40,212 1,545 2,578 (21,187) 23,148
Change from prior year — % 16.1% 2.4% 5.8% (75.0)% 6.0%

2004

Net income — GAAP $ 250,415 $ 74,237 $ 44,630 $ 29,643 $398,925
Change from prior year — $ 79,180 9,866 14,491 (76,975) 26,562
Change from prior year — % 46.2% 15.3% 48.1% (72.2)% 7.1%

Restructuring releases — — — (748) (748)
Gain on sale of automobile loans — (8,598) — (636) (9,234)

Net income — operating $ 250,415 $ 65,639 $ 44,630 $ 28,259 $388,943
Change from prior year — $ 79,180 3,873 14,491 (65,326) 32,218
Change from prior year — % 46.2% 6.3% 48.1% (69.8)% 9.0%

2003

Net income — GAAP $ 171,235 $ 64,371 $ 30,139 $ 106,618 $372,363
Restructuring releases — — — (4,333) (4,333)
Gain on sale of automobile loans — (13,493) — (12,532) (26,025)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting — 10,888 — 2,442 13,330
Gain on sale of branch offices — — — (8,523) (8,523)
Long-term debt extinguishment — — — 9,913 9,913

Net income — operating $ 171,235 $ 61,766 $ 30,139 $ 93,585 $356,725

(1) See Significant Factors Influencing Financial Performance section.
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Regional Banking

(This section should be read in conjunction with Significant Factors 2 and 4.)

Objectives, Strategies and Priorities
Our Regional Banking line of business provides traditional banking products and services to consumer, small business, and

commercial customers located in its seven operating regions within the five states of Ohio, Michigan, West Virginia, Indiana, and

Kentucky. It provides these services through a banking network of 334 branches, over 900 ATMs, plus on-line and telephone

banking channels. Each region is further divided into Retail and Commercial Banking units. Retail products and services include

home equity loans and lines of credit, first mortgage loans, direct installment loans, small business loans, personal and business

deposit products, as well as sales of investment and insurance services. Retail Banking accounts for 60% and 79% of total

Regional Banking loans and deposits, respectively. Commercial Banking serves middle market commercial banking relationships,

which use a variety of banking products and services including, but not limited to, commercial loans, international trade, cash

management, leasing, interest rate protection products, capital market alternatives, 401(k) plans, and mezzanine investment

capabilities.

We have a business model that emphasizes the delivery of a complete set of banking products and services offered by larger

banks, but distinguished by local decision-making about the pricing and the offering of these products. Our strategy has been to

focus on building a deeper relationship with our customers by providing a ‘‘Simply the Best’’ service experience. This focus on

service required investments in state-of-the-art platform technology in our branches and award-winning retail and business web

sites for our customers, extensive development and training of associates, and internal processes that empower our local bankers

to serve our customers better. We expect the combination of local decision-making and ‘‘Simply the Best’’ service will result in a

competitive advantage and drive revenue and earnings growth.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Regional Banking contributed $290.6 million, or 71%, of our net operating earnings for 2005, up $40.2 million, or 16%, from

operating earnings last year. This improved performance primarily reflected a $104.6 million, or 11%, increase in fully taxable

equivalent revenue partially offset by a $43.4 million increase in provision for credit losses. Improved expense management

resulted in flat year-over-year expenses. Regional Banking’s ROA was 1.57%, up from 1.52% for 2004, with a ROE of 28.7%, up

from 24.2% in 2004.

Revenue growth reflected a 15% increase in net interest income resulting from strong loan growth and improved profitability of

core deposits. Higher loan and deposit balances reflected improved sales efforts. Average loans and leases increased strongly across

all regions:

Regional Banking Average Loans & Leases:

Increase
from

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004

Region

Central Ohio $ 3,220 7%

Northern Ohio 2,892 8

Southern Ohio/Kentucky 2,031 16

West Michigan 2,355 7

East Michigan 1,491 10

West Virginia 923 11

Indiana 978 22

Mortgage and equipment leasing groups 3,381 30

Total $ 17,271 13%

Average loans and leases grew in most categories compared with 2004, including residential mortgages, commercial loans, and

home equity loans and lines of credit. Residential mortgage and home equity growth rates were strong, with 2005 growth rates of

30% and 11%, respectively. Residential mortgage loans grew, as interest rates remained low, even though there was a 22% decline

in closed loan origination volume from 2004. Commercial loan growth reflected a 17% increase in average middle-market CRE
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construction loans and an 11% increase in small business loans. Both consumer and commercial loan growth slowed significantly

near the end of 2005, reflecting industry trends and an increasingly competitive environment.

Since we focus on developing relationships, we monitor the ‘‘cross-sell’’ ratio as an indicator of our sales performance. This ratio

measures success in selling multiple products to households. In Retail Banking, the 90-day cross-sell ratio improved 18% over the

prior year, and the small business cross-sell ratio increased 6%. In addition, customer bases continued to expand. Period-end

Retail Banking non-interest bearing checking account (DDA) households were 11,759, or 2%, higher than a year earlier, with the

number of small business DDA relationships up 3,141, or 6%. The DDA is viewed as the primary banking relationship account as

most additional services are cross-sold to customers after first establishing a DDA account. As a result, growth in average deposits

was also broad-based:

Regional Banking Average Deposits:

Increase
from

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004

Region

Central Ohio $ 4,520 8%

Northern Ohio 4,060 7

Southern Ohio/Kentucky 1,828 18

West Michigan 2,687 3

East Michigan 2,273 9

West Virginia 1,397 4

Indiana 728 11

Mortgage and equipment leasing groups 198 (7)

Total $ 17,691 8%

The 8% increase in average deposits reflected 7% growth in average interest bearing demand deposits, which includes money

market deposit accounts, and 22% increase in domestic time deposits. Interest-bearing and non-interest bearing deposits grew 7%

and 5%, respectively, from the year-ago period, while savings deposits declined 7%. The number of on-line consumer banking

customers at December 31, 2005, grew 16% to more than 245,000 customers, which represented a relatively high 45% penetration

of Retail Banking households, and indicated a deepening relationship with those customers. 

The growth in revenue was accomplished without significant increases in Regional Banking’s expense base. Regional Banking’s

efficiency ratio declined to 54% from 60% for 2004, reflecting strong revenue growth and a continued focus on expense

management, while still making investments in distribution and technology.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
Regional Banking contributed $250.4 million, or 64%, of our net operating earnings in 2004, up $79.2 million, or 46%, from

2003. This increase primarily reflected an $89.1 million, or 92%, reduction in provision for credit losses. The decline in the

provision for credit losses reflected significantly improved credit quality performance as represented by a 72% decline in net

charge-offs and a 6% decline in year-end NPAs. Revenue increased $63.5 million, or 7%, reflecting a 12% increase in net interest

income. Higher net interest income was driven by a 15% increase in average loans and a 2 basis point rise in net interest margin.

The ROA and ROE for Regional Banking were 1.52% and 24.2%, respectively, up from 1.16% and 16.9% in 2003.
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Table 30 — Regional Banking(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

INCOME STATEMENT (in thousands of dollars)

Net interest income $ 780,072 $ 101,784 15.0% $678,288 $ 72,977 12.1% $605,311
Provision for credit losses 51,061 43,397 N.M. 7,664 (89,071) (92.1) 96,735

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 729,011 58,387 8.7 670,624 162,048 31.9 508,576

Operating lease income 5,421 3,761 N.M. 1,660 1,660 N.M. —
Service charges on deposit accounts 165,445 (1,089) (0.7) 166,534 3,457 2.1 163,077
Brokerage and insurance income 15,939 (480) (2.9) 16,419 243 1.5 16,176
Trust services 914 (91) (9.1) 1,005 36 3.7 969
Mortgage banking 38,251 1,928 5.3 36,323 (21,206) (36.9) 57,529
Other service charges and fees 43,854 2,733 6.6 41,121 76 0.2 41,045
Other income 41,402 (4,015) (8.8) 45,417 6,442 16.5 38,975
Securities gains 18 4 28.6 14 14 N.M. —

Total non-interest income 311,244 2,751 0.9 308,493 (9,278) (2.9) 317,771

Operating lease expense 4,526 3,129 N.M. 1,397 1,397 N.M. —
Personnel costs 252,244 (3,516) (1.4) 255,760 24,418 10.6 231,342
Other expense 336,367 (337) (0.1) 336,704 5,137 1.5 331,567

Total non-interest expense 593,137 (724) (0.1) 593,861 30,952 5.5 562,909

Income before income taxes 447,118 61,862 16.1 385,256 121,818 46.2 263,438
Provision for income taxes(2) 156,491 21,650 16.1 134,841 42,638 46.2 92,203

Net income — operating(1) $ 290,627 $ 40,212 16.1% $250,415 $ 79,180 46.2% $171,235

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 780,072 $ 101,784 15.0% $678,288 $ 72,977 12.1% $605,311
Tax equivalent adjustment(2) 1,056 41 4.0 1,015 (168) (14.2) 1,183

Net interest income (FTE) 781,128 101,825 15.0 679,303 72,809 12.0 606,494
Non-interest income 311,244 2,751 0.9 308,493 (9,278) (2.9) 317,771

Total revenue (FTE) $1,092,372 $ 104,576 10.6% $987,796 $ 63,531 6.9% $924,265

SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES (in millions of dollars)

Loans:
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 3,577 $ 303 9.3% $ 3,274 $ (352) (9.7)% $ 3,626
Middle market commercial real estate

Construction 1,623 231 16.6 1,392 204 17.2 1,188
Commercial 1,634 21 1.3 1,613 99 6.5 1,514

Small business loans 2,224 221 11.0 2,003 216 12.1 1,787

Total commercial 9,058 776 9.4 8,282 167 2.1 8,115

Consumer
Auto loans — indirect 3 (1) (25.0) 4 (3) (42.9) 7
Home equity loans & lines of credit 4,314 427 11.0 3,887 703 22.1 3,184
Residential mortgage 3,510 816 30.3 2,694 1,092 68.2 1,602
Other loans 386 22 6.0 364 (3) (0.8) 367

Total consumer 8,213 1,264 18.2 6,949 1,789 34.7 5,160

Total loans & leases $ 17,271 $ 2,040 13.4% $ 15,231 $ 1,956 14.7% $ 13,275

Operating lease assets $ 21 $ 15 N.M.% $ 6 $ 6 N.M.% $ —

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits $ 3,131 $ 142 4.8% $ 2,989 $ 118 4.1% $ 2,871
Interest bearing demand deposits 6,926 449 6.9 6,477 987 18.0 5,490
Savings deposits 2,594 (188) (6.8) 2,782 32 1.2 2,750
Domestic time deposits 4,617 839 22.2 3,778 (290) (7.1) 4,068
Foreign time deposits 423 6 1.4 417 60 16.8 357

Total deposits $ 17,691 $ 1,248 7.6% $ 16,443 $ 907 5.8% $ 15,536

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
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Table 30 — Regional Banking(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

PERFORMANCE METRICS

Return on average assets 1.57% 0.05% 1.52% 0.36% 1.16%
Return on average equity 28.7 4.5 24.2 7.3 16.9
Net interest margin 4.46 0.05 4.41 0.02 4.39
Efficiency ratio 54.3 (5.8) 60.1 (0.8) 60.9

CREDIT QUALITY (in thousands of dollars)

Net charge-offs by loan type
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 9,499 $ 8,523 N.M.% $ 976 $(74,098) (98.7)% $ 75,074
Middle market commercial real estate 4,475 988 28.3 3,487 (4,278) (55.1) 7,765
Small business loans 11,951 6,385 N.M. 5,566 (6,059) (52.1) 11,625

Total commercial 25,925 15,896 N.M. 10,029 (84,435) (89.4) 94,464

Consumer
Auto loans 29 (1) (3.3) 30 14 87.5 16
Home equity loans & lines of credit 17,235 3,416 24.7 13,819 2,492 22.0 11,327
Residential mortgage 2,161 634 41.5 1,527 716 88.3 811
Other loans 5,807 (136) (2.3) 5,943 (588) (9.0) 6,531

Total consumer 25,232 3,913 18.4 21,319 2,634 14.1 18,685

Total net charge-offs $ 51,157 $ 19,809 63.2% $31,348 $(81,801) (72.3)% $113,149

Net charge-offs — annualized percentages
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial 0.27% 0.24% 0.03% (2.04)% 2.07%
Middle market commercial real estate 0.14 0.02 0.12 (0.17) 0.29
Small business loans 0.54 0.26 0.28 (0.37) 0.65

Total commercial 0.29 0.17 0.12 (1.04) 1.16

Consumer
Auto loans 0.97 0.22 0.75 0.52 0.23
Home equity loans & lines of credit 0.40 0.04 0.36 — 0.36
Residential mortgage 0.06 — 0.06 0.01 0.05
Other loans 1.50 (0.13) 1.63 (0.15) 1.78

Total consumer 0.31 — 0.31 (0.05) 0.36

Total net charge-offs 0.30% 0.09% 0.21% (0.64)% 0.85%

Non-performing assets (NPA) (in millions of dollars)

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 23 $ 1 4.5% $ 22 $ (8) (26.7)% $ 30
Middle market commercial real estate 16 14 N.M. 2 (5) (71.4) 7
Small business loans 29 14 93.3 15 1 7.1 14
Residential mortgage 18 6 50.0 12 4 50.0 8
Home equity 11 4 57.1 7 7 N.M. —

Total non-accrual loans 97 39 67.2 58 (1) (1.7) 59
Renegotiated loans — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-performing loans (NPL) 97 39 67.2 58 (1) (1.7) 59
Other real estate, net (OREO) 15 6 66.7 9 (3) (25.0) 12

Total non-performing assets $ 112 $ 45 67.2% $ 67 $ (4) (5.6)% $ 71

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 41 $ (2) (4.7)% $ 43 $ 4 10.3% $ 39
Allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) (eop) 213 (7) (3.2) 220 (11) (4.8) 231
ALLL as a % of total loans and leases 1.22% (0.11)% 1.33% (0.34)% 1.67%
ALLL as a % of NPLs 219.6 (159.7) 379.3 (12.2) 391.5
ALLL + OREO as a % of NPAs 203.6 (138.2) 341.8 (0.5) 342.3
NPLs as a % of total loans and leases 0.55 0.20 0.35 (0.08) 0.43
NPAs as a % of total loans and leases + OREO 0.64 0.24 0.40 (0.11) 0.51

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.
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Table 30 — Regional Banking(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 4,622 (138) (2.9)% 4,760 (109) (2.2)% 4,869

Retail Banking

Average loans (in millions) $ 5,245 $ 500 10.5% $ 4,745 $ 829 21.2% $ 3,916
Average deposits (in millions) 11,592 551 5.0 11,041 (5) (0.0) 11,046

# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 3,244 (152) (4.5) 3,396 (18) (0.5) 3,414
# banking offices (eop) 334 — — 334 1 0.3 333
# ATMs (eop) 944 240 34.1 704 9 1.3 695
# DDA households (eop) 514,690 11,759 2.3 502,931 12,007 2.4 490,924
# New relationships 90-day cross-sell (average) 2.80 0.43 18.1 2.37 0.42 21.4 1.95
# on-line customers (eop) 245,143 33,751 16.0 211,392 47,800 29.2 163,592
% on-line retail household penetration (eop) 45% 5% 40% 9% 31%

Small Business

Average loans (in millions) $ 2,224 $ 221 11.0% $ 2,003 $ 216 12.1% $ 1,787
Average deposits (in millions) 2,131 129 6.4 2,002 318 18.9 1,684

# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 275 5 2.0 270 7 2.7 263
# business DDA relationships (eop) 53,998 3,141 6.2 50,857 4,243 9.1 46,614
# New relationships 90-day cross-sell (average) 2.34 0.13 6.0 2.21 0.35 18.6 1.86

Commercial Banking

Average loans (in millions) $ 6,847 $ 604 9.7% $ 6,243 $ (29) (0.5)% $ 6,272
Average deposits (in millions) 3,781 558 17.3 3,223 629 24.2 2,594

# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 502 (42) (7.7) 544 (28) (4.9) 572
# customers (eop) 4,636 (877) (15.9) 5,513 (690) (11.1) 6,203

Mortgage Banking

Average loans (in millions) $ 2,955 $ 715 31.9% $ 2,240 $ 940 72.3% $ 1,300
Average deposits (in millions) 187 10 5.6 177 (35) (16.5) 212

# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 601 50 9.0 551 (69) (11.2) 620

Closed loan volume (in millions) $ 3,284 $ (909) (21.7) $ 4,193 $(1,884) (31.0) $ 6,077
Portfolio closed loan volume (in millions) 1,282 (1,277) (49.9) 2,559 532 26.2 2,027
Agency delivery volume (in millions) 1,689 45 2.7 1,644 (2,681) (62.0) 4,325
Total servicing portfolio (in millions) 11,582 827 7.7 10,755 1,694 18.7 9,061
Portfolio serviced for others (in millions) 7,276 415 6.0 6,861 467 7.3 6,394
Mortgage servicing rights (in millions) 91.3 14.2 18.4 77.1 6.0 8.4 71.1

N.M., not a meaningful value.

N/A — Not Available.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

77



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Dealer Sales

(See Significant Factors 1 and 3 and the Operating Lease Assets Section.)

Objectives, Strategies, and Priorities
Our Dealer Sales line of business provides a variety of banking products and services to more than 3,500 automotive dealerships

within our primary banking markets, as well as in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South Carolina and

Tennessee. We have been in this business for more than 50 years. Dealer Sales finances the purchase of automobiles by customers

of the automotive dealerships, purchases automobiles from dealers and simultaneously leases the automobiles to consumers under

long-term leases, finances the dealerships’ floor plan inventories, real estate, or working capital needs, and provides other banking

services to the automotive dealerships and their owners. Dealer Sales is directly impacted by general automotive sales, including

programs initiated by manufacturers to enhance and increase sales directly. Competition from the financing divisions of

automobile manufacturers and from other financial institutions is intense.

Dealer Sales’ strategy has been to focus on developing relationships with the dealership through its finance department, general

manager, and owner. An underwriter who understands each local market makes loan decisions. Maintaining pricing discipline is

a higher priority than simply increasing market share. In 2005, total vehicle sales expanded 1.5% domestically, yet the number of

vehicles we financed fell 18%, as we chose to maintain disciplined pricing. As a result, our market share fell in nearly all of our

markets, though we maintained our market rankings among our bank competitors.

In 2003, we established a goal to reduce credit exposure to automobile financing. To reduce this credit exposure, while increasing

our service levels provided to the dealerships, we sold a portion of our originated loans. As a result, at the end of 2005, only 18%

of total credit exposure was to automobile financing. To maintain this level of automobile financing exposure, we expect to

continue selling a portion of our on-going loan production.

Automobile lease accounting significantly impacts the presentation of Dealer Sales’ financial results. Automobile leases originated

prior to May 2002 are accounted for as operating leases, with leases originated since April 2002 accounted for as direct financing

leases. This accounting treatment impacts a number of Dealer Sales’ financial performance results and trends, including net

interest income, non-interest income, and non-interest expense. Residual values on leased automobiles, including the accounting

for residual value losses, are also an important factor in the overall profitability of automobile leases.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Dealer Sales contributed $67.2 million, or 16%, of our net operating earnings for 2005, up $1.5 million, or 2%, from 2004. This

primarily reflected the benefit of a $138.3 million decline in non-interest expenses and an $18.7 million reduction in the

provision for credit losses, partially offset by a $154.6 million, or 33%, decrease in fully taxable equivalent revenue. The decreases

in revenue and expenses were driven by the decline in the operating lease portfolio, as operating lease income declined

$152.4 million and operating lease expense fell $131.2 million. Dealer Sales’ ROA was 0.99%, down slightly from 1.01% in 2004,

with a ROE of 18.9%, up from 16.1% in 2004.

The $154.6 million decrease in revenues reflected a $152.4 million decline in operating lease income as that portfolio continued

to run off. The remaining $2.2 million decline in revenue reflected a $4.2 million, or 3%, decrease in net interest income,

partially offset by higher fee income. Net interest income declined primarily as a result of pricing pressure that pushed the net

interest margin down 8 basis points from 2004, as total average loans and leases declined only slightly. Though funding costs rose

steadily throughout 2005 as interest rates increased, competitive pressures resulted in the inability to pass these higher funding

costs directly to consumers in the form of higher loan and lease rates. This resulted in narrower margins on automobile loan and

lease originations in 2005 compared with 2004.

Average total loans declined $30 million from 2004, but there were significant changes in the loan mix. Specifically, average

automobile loans declined $241 million, or 11%, reflecting a 5% decline in automobile loan production, as well as the impact of

loan sales. In contrast, average automobile leases increased $230 million, or 11%, reflecting the impact of 2004 originations

carrying over into 2005, as average new automobile lease production declined 47% from the prior year. Intense competition,

especially on pricing, drove the decline in automobile loan and lease production. Average commercial loans declined 6%,

reflecting a decline in middle market C&I floor plan loans, as well as a decline in middle market CRE loans to dealers.

The $138.3 million decrease in non-interest expense reflected a $131.2 million decline in operating lease expense, as well as an

8% decline in both personnel and other expenses.

The decline in the provision for credit losses reflected Dealer Sales’ continued focus on originating high quality assets in recent

years, as net charge-offs were 0.48% of average total loans and leases, down from 0.74% in 2004.
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2004 versus 2003 Performance
Dealer Sales contributed $65.6 million, or 17%, of our net operating earnings for 2004, up $3.9 million, or 6%, from 2003. The

improved performance primarily reflected improved credit quality, as the provision for credit losses fell $11.9 million. While

revenue fell $163.2 million, or 26%, this decrease was largely caused by the run-off of the operating leases, which was also

reflected in the $158.2 million decline in operating lease expenses. Dealer Sales ROA was 1.01%, up from 0.83% in 2003 with a

ROE of 16.1%, up from 14.0% in 2003.
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Table 31 — Dealer Sales(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

INCOME STATEMENT (in thousands of dollars)

Net interest income $ 145,578 $ (4,213) (2.8)% $149,791 $ 42,568 39.7% $107,223
Provision for credit losses 26,073 (18,660) (41.7) 44,733 (11,879) (21.0) 56,612

Net interest income after provision for credit
losses 119,505 14,447 13.8 105,058 54,447 N.M. 50,611

Operating lease income 133,012 (152,419) (53.4) 285,431 (204,267) (41.7) 489,698
Service charges on deposit accounts 621 (168) (21.3) 789 (19) (2.4) 808
Brokerage and insurance income 4,026 1,384 52.4 2,642 (1,161) (30.5) 3,803
Trust services 3 3 N.M. — (13) N.M. 13
Mortgage banking (3) (3) N.M. — (3) N.M. 3
Other service charges and fees 4 3 N.M. 1 1 N.M. —
Other income 32,129 1,307 4.2 30,822 (810) (2.6) 31,632
Securities gains — (469) N.M. 469 469 N.M. —

Total non-interest income 169,792 (150,362) (47.0) 320,154 (205,803) (39.1) 525,957

Operating lease expense 103,850 (131,231) (55.8) 235,081 (158,189) (40.2) 393,270
Personnel costs 20,488 (1,865) (8.3) 22,353 2,254 11.2 20,099
Other expense 61,598 (5,197) (7.8) 66,795 (1,379) (2.0) 68,174

Total non-interest expense 185,936 (138,293) (42.7) 324,229 (157,314) (32.7) 481,543

Income before income taxes 103,361 2,378 2.4 100,983 5,958 6.3 95,025
Provision for income taxes(2) 36,177 833 2.4 35,344 2,085 6.3 33,259

Net income — operating(1) $ 67,184 $ 1,545 2.4% $ 65,639 $ 3,873 6.3% $ 61,766

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 145,578 $ (4,213) (2.8)% $149,791 $ 42,568 39.7% $107,223
Tax equivalent adjustment(2) — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Net interest income (FTE) 145,578 (4,213) (2.8) 149,791 42,568 39.7 107,223
Non-interest income 169,792 (150,362) (47.0) 320,154 (205,803) (39.1) 525,957

Total revenue (FTE) $ 315,370 $ (154,575) (32.9)% $469,945 $(163,235) (25.8)% $633,180

SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES (in millions of dollars)

Loans:
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 736 $ (22) (2.9)% $ 758 $ 110 17.0% $ 648
Middle market commercial real estate

Construction 5 — — 5 (3) (37.5) 8
Commercial 51 (25) (32.9) 76 8 11.8 68

Total commercial 792 (47) (5.6) 839 115 15.9 724

Consumer
Auto leases — indirect 2,422 230 10.5 2,192 769 54.0 1,423
Auto loans — indirect 2,040 (241) (10.6) 2,281 (972) (29.9) 3,253
Home equity loans & lines of credit — — N.M. — — N.M. —
Other loans 105 28 36.4 77 17 28.3 60

Total consumer 4,567 17 0.4 4,550 (186) (3.9) 4,736

Total loans & leases $ 5,359 $ (30) (0.6)% $ 5,389 $ (71) (1.3)% $ 5,460

Operating lease assets $ 351 $ (540) (60.6)% $ 891 $ (806) (47.5)% $ 1,697

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits $ 62 $ (4) (6.1)% $ 66 $ 8 13.8% $ 58
Interest bearing demand deposits 2 — — 2 — — 2
Foreign time deposits 4 — — 4 (2) (33.3) 6

Total deposits $ 68 $ (4) (5.6)% $ 72 $ 6 9.1% $ 66

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
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Table 31 — Dealer Sales(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

PERFORMANCE METRICS
Return on average assets 0.99% (0.02)% 1.01% 0.18% 0.83%
Return on average equity 18.9 2.8 16.1 2.1 14.0
Net interest margin 2.68 (0.08) 2.76 0.82 1.94
Efficiency ratio 59.0 (10.1) 69.1 (7.0) 76.1

CREDIT QUALITY (in thousands of dollars)

Net charge-offs by loan type
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 1,432 $ 1,461 N.M.% $ (29) $ (16) N.M.% $ (13)
Middle market commercial real estate — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total commercial 1,432 1,461 N.M. (29) (16) N.M. (13)

Consumer Auto leases 11,664 827 7.6 10,837 5,109 89.2 5,728
Auto loans 11,959 (16,585) (58.1) 28,544 (11,706) (29.1) 40,250
Home equity loans & lines of credit 18 18 N.M. — (36) N.M. 36
Other loans 871 190 27.9 681 (81) (10.6) 762

Total consumer 24,512 (15,550) (38.8) 40,062 (6,714) (14.4) 46,776

Total net charge-offs $ 25,944 $ (14,089) (35.2)% $40,033 $ (6,730) (14.4)% $46,763

Net charge-offs — annualized percentages
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial 0.19% 0.19% —% —% —%
Middle market commercial real estate — — — — —

Total commercial 0.18 0.18 — — —

Consumer
Auto leases 0.48 (0.01) 0.49 0.09 0.40
Auto loans 0.59 (0.66) 1.25 0.01 1.24
Home equity loans & lines of credit N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.
Other loans 0.83 (0.05) 0.88 (0.39) 1.27

Total consumer 0.54 (0.34) 0.88 (0.11) 0.99

Total net charge-offs 0.48% (0.26)% 0.74% (0.12)% 0.86%

Non-performing assets (NPA) (in millions of dollars)

Middle market commercial and industrial $ — $ — N.M.% $ — $ — N.M.% $ —
Middle market commercial real estate — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-accrual loans — — N.M. — — N.M. —
Renegotiated loans — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-performing loans (NPL) — — N.M. — — N.M. —
Other real estate, net (OREO) — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-performing assets $ — $ — N.M.% $ — $ — N.M.% $ —

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 10 $ 3 42.9% $ 7 $ (7) (50.0)% $ 14
Allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) (eop) 39 2 5.4 37 (30) (44.8) 67
ALLL as a % of total loans and leases 0.74% 0.05% 0.69% (0.40)% 1.09%
ALLL as a % of NPLs N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.
ALLL + OREO as a % of NPAs N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.
NPLs as a % of total loans and leases — — — — —
NPAs as a % of total loans and leases + OREO — — — — —

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.
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Table 31 — Dealer Sales(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 352 (40) (10.2)% 392 (42) (9.7)% 434

Automobile loans

Production (in millions) $ 1,502.8 $ (84) (5.3)% $1,586.9 $(1,170) (42.4)% $2,757.0
% Production new vehicles 56.2% 6.7% 49.5% (8.7)% 58.2%
Average term (in months) 65.2 0.2 65.0 0.8 64.2

Automobile leases

Production (in millions) $ 566.1 $(494) (46.6)% $1,060.2 $ (260) (19.7)% $1,319.9
% Production new vehicles 98.7% (0.5)% 99.2% 1.9% 97.3%
Average term (in months) 53.4 (0.6) 54.0 1.3 52.7
Average residual % 41.7% (0.7)% 42.4% (0.7)% 43.1%

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.
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Private Financial and Capital Markets Group

Objectives, Strategies, and Priorities

The Private Financial and Capital Markets Group (PFCMG) provides products and services designed to meet the needs of our

higher net worth customers. Revenue is derived through the sale of trust, asset management, investment advisory, brokerage,

insurance, and private banking products and services. It also focuses on financial solutions for corporate and institutional

customers that include investment banking, sales and trading of securities, mezzanine capital financing, and risk management

products. To serve our customers, a unique distribution model is used that employs a single, unified sales force to deliver

products and services mainly through Regional Banking distribution channels.

PFCMG provides investment management and custodial services to our 29 proprietary mutual funds, including ten variable

annuity funds. The Huntington Investment Company offers brokerage and investment advisory services to both Regional Banking

and PFCMG customers through more than 100 licensed investment sales representatives and nearly 700 licensed personal bankers.

PFCMG’s insurance entities provide a complete array of insurance products including individual life insurance products ranging

from basic term life insurance, to estate planning, group life and health insurance, property and casualty insurance, mortgage title

insurance, and reinsurance for payment protection products. Income and related expenses from the sale of brokerage and

insurance products is shared with the line of business that generated the sale or provided the customer referral, most notably

Regional Banking.

PFCMG’s primary goals are to consistently increase assets under management by offering innovative products and services that

are responsive to the clients’ changing financial needs and to grow the balance sheet mainly through improved cross-selling

efforts. PFCMG has been successful in introducing innovative investment management products such as offering services that

utilize enhanced option techniques. We opened two new trust offices in Florida mid-year 2005, which, by year-end, had total

trust assets of $145 million.

PFCMG has reacted to the challenge of slower annuity sales by expanding and diversifying product offerings, focusing on growing

managed assets, and by continuing to place less reliance on traditional transaction-based investment product sales.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
PFCMG contributed $47.2 million, or 11%, of our net operating earnings for 2005, up $2.6 million, or 6%, from 2004. The

improvement reflected a $12.5 million, or 6%, increase in revenue partially offset by the negative impact of a $6.8 million, or 5%,

increase in non-interest expense and a $1.5 million increase in the provision for credit losses. PFCMG’s ROA and ROE for 2005

were 2.40% and 36.3%, respectively, compared to 2.52% and 33.7%, respectively, for 2004.

The overall improvement in revenue for 2005 was largely the result of improved net interest income and continued success in the

trust and asset management business. Net interest income increased $11.1 million as a result of higher loan and lease balances.

Average loan balances increased $173 million, or 11%, with growth in both commercial and consumer loans, up 14% and 9%,

respectively. Consumer loan growth continued to be largely driven by growth in residential real estate loans. Trust services

revenue grew $10.1 million, or 15%. The growth in trust services revenue was largely the result of higher trust assets, especially

assets under management. At December 31, 2005, assets under management totaled $10.8 billion, up 10% from $9.8 billion at the

end of 2004. Total trust assets were $45.6 billion, up 7% from $42.8 billion at the end of 2004. The investment performance of

our proprietary mutual funds also contributed to PFCMG’s success in 2005. Huntington Fund assets increased to $3.5 billion at

year end, up 13% over 2004, with equity fund assets exceeding $1.3 billion, a 15% increase. In addition, four of the nine

Huntington equity funds had a Morningstar ‘‘4 Star’’ rating and one Huntington fixed income fund had a Morningstar ‘‘5 Star’’

rating for the periods ended December 31, 2005. Brokerage and insurance revenues declined 9%. A flattening yield curve

negatively impacted the sale of fixed income products, such as annuities, in 2005.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
PFCMG contributed $44.6 million, or 11%, of our net operating earnings for 2004, up $14.5 million, or 48%, from 2003. The

improvement reflected a $21.9 million increase in total revenue combined with a $8.0 million decrease in the provision for credit

losses, partially offset by the negative impact of a $7.6 million increase in non-interest expense. The ROA and ROE for 2004 were

2.52% and 33.7%, respectively, compared with 2.00% and 26.4%, respectively, for 2003.
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Table 32 — Private Financial and Capital Markets Group(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

INCOME STATEMENT (in thousands of dollars)

Net interest income $ 72,886 $ 11,123 18.0% $ 61,763 $11,096 21.9% $ 50,667
Provision for credit losses 4,165 1,500 56.3 2,665 (7,981) (75.0) 10,646

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 68,721 9,623 16.3 59,098 19,077 47.7 40,021

Service charges on deposit accounts 3,634 (317) (8.0) 3,951 37 0.9 3,914
Brokerage and insurance income 33,650 (3,442) (9.3) 37,092 (769) (2.0) 37,861
Trust services 76,488 10,083 15.2 66,405 5,738 9.5 60,667
Mortgage banking (909) (268) 41.8 (641) (1,365) N.M. 724
Other service charges and fees 490 38 8.4 452 51 12.7 401
Other income 21,679 (4,779) (18.1) 26,458 6,840 34.9 19,618
Securities gains 70 (218) (75.7) 288 254 N.M. 34

Total non-interest income 135,102 1,097 0.8 134,005 10,786 8.8 123,219

Personnel costs 75,583 1,749 2.4 73,834 6,227 9.2 67,607
Other expense 55,612 5,005 9.9 50,607 1,342 2.7 49,265

Total non-interest expense 131,195 6,754 5.4 124,441 7,569 6.5 116,872

Income before income taxes 72,628 3,966 5.8 68,662 22,294 48.1 46,368
Provision for income taxes(2) 25,420 1,388 5.8 24,032 7,803 48.1 16,229

Net income — operating(1) $ 47,208 $ 2,578 5.8% $ 44,630 $14,491 48.1% $ 30,139

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 72,886 $ 11,123 18.0% $ 61,763 $11,096 21.9% $ 50,667
Tax equivalent adjustment(2) 366 277 N.M. 89 24 36.9 65

Net interest income (FTE) 73,252 11,400 18.4 61,852 11,120 21.9 50,732
Non-interest income 135,102 1,097 0.8 134,005 10,786 8.8 123,219

Total revenue (FTE) $ 208,354 $ 12,497 6.4% $195,857 $21,906 12.6% $173,951

SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES (in millions of dollars)

Loans:
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 504 $ 80 18.9% $ 424 $ 65 18.1% $ 359
Middle market commercial real estate

Construction 50 27 N.M. 23 — — 23
Commercial 223 (10) (4.3) 233 15 6.9 218

Total commercial 777 97 14.3 680 80 13.3 600

Consumer
Home equity loans & lines of credit 322 22 7.3 300 43 16.7 257
Residential mortgage 571 53 10.2 518 94 22.2 424
Other loans 10 1 11.1 9 1 12.5 8

Total consumer 903 76 9.2 827 138 20.0 689

Total loans & leases $ 1,680 $ 173 11.5% $ 1,507 $ 218 16.9% $ 1,289

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits $ 186 $ 11 6.3% $ 175 $ 24 15.9% $ 151
Interest bearing demand deposits 730 2 0.3 728 27 3.9 701
Savings deposits 41 (6) (12.8) 47 (5) (9.6) 52
Domestic time deposits 147 41 38.7 106 10 10.4 96
Foreign time deposits 19 (4) (17.4) 23 5 27.8 18

Total deposits $ 1,123 $ 44 4.1% $ 1,079 $ 61 6.0% $ 1,018

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
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Table 32 — Private Financial and Capital Markets Group(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

PERFORMANCE METRICS
Return on average assets 2.40% (0.12)% 2.52% 0.52% 2.00%
Return on average equity 36.3 2.6 33.7 7.3 26.4
Net interest margin 4.13 0.32 3.81 0.15 3.66
Efficiency ratio 63.0 (0.6) 63.6 (3.6) 67.2

CREDIT QUALITY (in thousands of dollars)

Net charge-offs by loan type
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 2,647 $ 1,674 N.M.% $ 973 $ 231 31.1% $ 742
Middle market commercial real estate (430) (4,914) N.M. 4,484 4,302 N.M. 182

Total commercial 2,217 (3,240) (59.4) 5,457 4,533 N.M. 924

Consumer
Home equity loans & lines of credit 366 (889) (70.8) 1,255 504 67.1 751
Residential mortgage 171 (62) (26.6) 233 212 N.M. 21
Other loans 202 (7) (3.3) 209 8 4.0 201

Total consumer 739 (958) (56.5) 1,697 724 74.4 973

Total net charge-offs $ 2,956 $ (4,198) (58.7)% $7,154 $ 5,257 N.M.% $1,897

Net charge-offs — annualized percentages
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial 0.53% 0.30% 0.23% 0.02% 0.21%
Middle market commercial real estate (0.16) (1.91) 1.75 1.67 0.08

Total commercial 0.29 (0.51) 0.80 0.65 0.15

Consumer
Home equity loans & lines of credit 0.11 (0.31) 0.42 0.13 0.29
Residential mortgage 0.03 (0.01) 0.04 0.04 —
Other loans 2.02 (0.30) 2.32 (0.19) 2.51

Total consumer 0.08 (0.12) 0.20 0.06 0.14

Total net charge-offs 0.18% (0.29)% 0.47% 0.32% 0.15%

Non-performing assets (NPA) (in millions of dollars)

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 5 $ 3 N.M.% $ 2 $ (2) (50.0)% $ 4
Middle market commercial real estate — (2) N.M. 2 (9) (81.8) 11
Residential mortgage — (2) N.M. 2 1 N.M. 1
Home equity — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-accrual loans 5 (1) (16.7) 6 (10) (62.5) 16
Renegotiated loans — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-performing loans (NPL) 5 (1) (16.7) 6 (10) (62.5) 16
Other real estate, net (OREO) — (36) N.M. 36 36 N.M. —

Total non-performing assets $ 5 $ (37) (88.1)% $ 42 $ 26 N.M.% $ 16

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 5 $ 1 17.5% $ 4 $ 1 33.3% $ 3
Allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) (eop) 16 2 14.3 14 (4) (22.2) 18
ALLL as a % of total loans and leases 0.93% 0.07% 0.86% (0.41)% 1.27%
ALLL as a % of NPLs 320.0 86.7 233.3 120.8 112.5
ALLL + OREO as a % of NPAs 320.0 201.0 119.0 6.5 112.5
NPLs as a % of total loans and leases 0.29 (0.08) 0.37 (0.76) 1.13
NPAs as a % of total loans and leases = OREO 0.29 (2.22) 2.51 1.38 1.13

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

85



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Table 32 — Private Financial and Capital Markets Group(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

PRIVATE FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
# employees — full-time equivalent (eop)(2) 722 (8) (1.1)% 730 3 0.4% 727
# licensed bankers (eop) 661 (8) (1.2) 669 (26) (3.7) 695

Brokerage and Insurance Income (in thousands)

Mutual fund revenue $ 4,473 $ (749) (14.3)% $ 5,222 $ 851 19.5% $ 4,371
Annuities revenue 24,341 (2,331) (8.7) 26,672 (1,544) (5.5) 28,216
12b-1 fees 2,625 330 14.4 2,295 205 9.8 2,090
Discount brokerage commissions and other 5,522 21 0.4 5,501 1,282 30.4 4,219

Total retail investment sales 36,961 (2,729) (6.9) 39,690 794 2.0 38,896
Investment banking fees — — N.M. — — N.M. —
Insurance fees and revenue 12,059 226 1.9 11,833 (3,515) (22.9) 15,348

Total brokerage and insurance income 49,020 (2,503) (4.9) 51,523 (2,721) (5.0) 54,244
Fee sharing 15,943 808 5.3 15,135 (2,100) (12.2) 17,235

Total brokerage and insurance income (net of fee sharing) $ 33,077 $ (3,311) (9.1)% $ 36,388 $ (621) (1.7)% $ 37,009

Mutual fund sales volume (in thousands) $ 183,728 $ 14,128 8.3% $169,600 $(43,319) (20.3)% $212,919
Annuities sales volume (in thousands) 483,863 (53,809) (10.0) 537,672 (39,891) (6.9) 577,563

Trust Services Income (in thousands)

Personal trust revenue $ 36,552 $ 2,965 8.8% $ 33,587 $ 3,070 10.1% $ 30,517
Huntington funds revenue 26,508 5,030 23.4 21,478 2,278 11.9 19,200
Institutional trust revenue 10,243 1,551 17.8 8,692 962 12.4 7,730
Corporate trust revenue 4,034 466 13.1 3,568 (518) (12.7) 4,086
Other trust revenue — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total trust services income 77,337 10,012 14.9 67,325 5,792 9.4 61,533
Fee sharing 849 (71) (7.7) 920 54 6.2 866

Total trust services income (net of fee sharing) $ 76,488 $ 10,083 15.2% $ 66,405 $ 5,738 9.5% $ 60,667

Assets Under Management (eop) (in billions)

Personal trust $ 5.5 $ 0.2 3.8% $ 5.3 $ 0.4 8.2% $ 4.9
Huntington funds 3.5 0.4 12.9 3.1 0.2 6.9 2.9
Institutional trust 1.2 0.4 39.5 0.8 0.2 33.3 0.6
Corporate trust — — N.M. — — N.M. —
Haberer 0.6 — 7.0 0.6 0.1 11.1 0.5
Other — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total assets under management $ 10.8 $ 1.0 10.2% $ 9.8 $ 0.9 9.6% $ 8.9

Total Trust Assets (eop) (in billions)

Personal trust $ 9.3 $ 0.4 4.5% $ 8.9 $ 0.6 7.2% $ 8.3
Huntington funds 3.5 0.4 12.9 3.1 0.2 6.9 2.9
Institutional trust 28.1 1.0 3.7 27.1 4.0 17.3 23.1
Corporate trust 4.7 1.0 27.0 3.7 0.5 15.6 3.2

Total trust assets $ 45.6 $ 2.8 6.5% $ 42.8 $ 5.3 14.1% $ 37.5

Mutual Fund Data
# Huntington mutual funds (eop)

(3) 29 — — 29 5 — 24
Sales penetration(4) 4.9% (0.4)% 5.3% (0.9)% 6.2%
Revenue penetration (whole dollars)

(5) $ 3,160 $ (55) (1.7)% $ 3,215 $ (108) (3.3)% $ 3,323
Profit penetration (whole dollars)

(6) 1,161 158 15.8 1,003 (197) (16.4) 1,200
Average sales volume per licensed banker (whole dollars) 55,824 (12,425) (18.2) 68,249 325 0.5 67,924
Average revenue per licensed banker (whole dollars) 2,490 (1,149) (31.6) 3,639 532 17.1 3,107

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Includes Capital Markets employees.

(3) Includes variable annuity funds.

(4) Sales (dollars invested) of mutual funds and annuities divided by bank’s retail deposits.

(5) Investment program revenue per million of the bank’s retail deposits.

(6) Contribution of investment program to pretax profit per million of the bank’s retail deposits. Contribution is difference between program revenue and program expenses.
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Treasury/Other

(See Significant Factors 2, 5, 6, and 7.)

Objectives, Strategies and Priorities
The Treasury/Other line of business includes revenue and expense related to assets, liabilities, and equity not directly assigned or

allocated to one of the other three business segments. Assets in this segment include investment securities and bank owned life

insurance.

Net interest income includes the net impact of administering Huntington’s investment securities portfolios as part of overall

liquidity management. A match-funded transfer pricing system is used to attribute appropriate funding interest income and

interest expense to other business segments. As such, net interest income includes the net impact of any over or under allocations

arising from centralized management of interest rate risk. Furthermore, net interest income includes the net impact of derivatives

used to hedge interest rate sensitivity.

Non-interest income includes miscellaneous fee income not allocated to other business segments, including bank owned life

insurance income. Fee income also includes asset revaluations not allocated to other business segments including MSR temporary

impairments or recoveries, as well as any investment securities and trading assets gains or losses used to mitigate the earnings

impact of MSR valuation changes.

Non-interest expense includes certain corporate administrative and other miscellaneous expenses not allocated to other business

segments. The provision for income taxes for each of the other business segments is calculated at a statutory 35% tax rate,

though our overall effective tax rate is lower. As a result, we reflect a credit for income taxes representing the difference between

the actual effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate used to allocate income taxes to the other segments.

2005 versus 2004 Performance
Net income for Treasury/Other declined $21.2 million to $7.1 million for 2005. This comprised only 2% of our net operating

earnings, down from 7% in the prior year. The decline in net income resulted from a $61.9 million decline in income before

taxes, offset by a $40.8 million higher benefit from income taxes. Net income for 2005 benefited from a lower effective tax rate

resulting from a federal tax loss carry back in 2005, partly offset by the impact of repatriation of foreign earnings.

The decline in income before taxes was largely related to changes in net interest income and to changes in net securities gains. In

2005, Treasury/Other had net interest expense of $36.1 million compared with net interest income of $21.5 million in 2004. This

$57.7 million decline resulted from an increase, attributable to market rates, in the credit provided to other lines of business for

their non-interest bearing sources of funding and an 18% decline in average investment securities balances.

Net securities gains declined by $23.1 million, driven by a current year net securities losses of $8.1 million, primarily related to

$8.8 million of securities losses due to the fourth quarter restructuring of a part of the securities portfolio, and $15.0 million of

net securities gains in the prior year, related to the use of securities to offset changes in the temporary impairment of MSRs.

The $21.3 million decline in non-interest expense was due largely to higher SEC/regulatory-related expenses in the prior year.

Additionally, expenses of certain historical tax credit investments impacted the prior year, as we expensed these investments in the

same period that we recognized the tax benefits.

2004 versus 2003 Performance
The net operating earnings for Treasury/Other declined $65.3 million, or 70%, to $28.3 million for 2004. Treasury/Other’s net

operating earnings comprised only 7% of our total net operating earnings, down from 26% in 2003. The decline in net operating

earnings resulted from a $64.3 million decline in net interest income and a $20.6 million increase in non-interest expense,

partially offset by a $26.9 million higher benefit from income taxes. The decline in net interest income resulted from a reduction

in the funding needs of other lines of business, due to strong deposit growth and loan sales in other lines of business. Non-

interest expense increased due to SEC/regulatory-related expenses, Unizan integration expenses, and a property lease impairment.
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Table 33 — Treasury/Other(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

INCOME STATEMENT (in thousands of dollars)

Net interest income $ (36,125) $ (57,657) N.M.% $ 21,532 $(64,253) (74.9)% $ 85,785
Provision for credit losses — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Net interest income after provision for credit losses (36,125) (57,657) N.M. 21,532 (64,253) (74.9) 85,785

Service charges on deposit accounts (1,866) (1,707) N.M. (159) (200) N.M. 41
Brokerage and insurance income 4 1,358 N.M. (1,354) (1,358) N.M. 4
Mortgage banking 4,371 7,757 N.M. (3,386) (3,310) N.M. (76)
Bank owned life insurance income 40,736 (1,561) (3.7) 42,297 (731) (1.7) 43,028
Other income (18,958) (8,308) 78.0 (10,650) (11,484) N.M. 834
Securities gains (losses) (8,143) (23,135) N.M. 14,992 9,768 N.M. 5,224

Total non-interest income 16,144 (25,596) (61.3) 41,740 (7,315) (14.9) 49,055

Total non-interest expense 59,552 (21,312) (26.4) 80,864 20,613 34.2 60,251

Income before income taxes (79,533) (61,941) N.M. (17,592) (92,181) N.M. 74,589
Provision for income taxes(2) (86,605) (40,754) 88.9 (45,851) (26,855) N.M. (18,996)

Net income — operating(1) $ 7,072 $ (21,187) (75.0)% $ 28,259 $(65,326) (69.8)% $ 93,585

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ (36,125) $ (57,657) N.M.% $ 21,532 $(64,253) (74.9)% $ 85,785
Tax equivalent adjustment(3) 11,971 1,422 13.5 10,549 2,113 25.0 8,436

Net interest income (FTE) (24,154) (56,235) N.M. 32,081 (62,140) (66.0) 94,221
Non-interest income 16,144 (25,596) (61.3) 41,740 (7,315) (14.9) 49,055

Total revenue (FTE) $ (8,010) $ (81,831) N.M.% $ 73,821 $(69,455) (48.5)% $143,276

SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES (in millions of dollars)

Securities $ 4,132 $ (922) (18.2)% $ 5,054 $ 1,286 34.1% $ 3,768
Deposits:

Brokered time deposits and negotiable CDs 3,119 1,282 69.8% 1,837 418 29.5% 1,419
Foreign time deposits 11 (53) (82.8) 64 (55) (46.2) 119

Total deposits $ 3,130 $ 1,229 64.7% $ 1,901 $ 363 23.6% $ 1,538

PERFORMANCE METRICS
Return on average assets 0.13% (0.29)% 0.42% (1.34)% 1.76%
Return on average equity 0.7 (2.8) 3.5 (11.4) 14.9
Net interest margin (0.53) (1.14) 0.61 (1.79) 2.40
Efficiency ratio N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M. 40.9

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
# employees — full-time equivalent (eop) 1,906 (24) (1.2)% 1,930 (29) (1.5)% 1,959

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Reconciling difference between company’s actual effective tax rate and 35% tax rate allocated to each business segment.

(3) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
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Table 34 — Total Company(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

INCOME STATEMENT (in thousands of dollars)

Net interest income $ 962,411 $ 51,037 5.6% $ 911,374 $ 62,388 7.3% $ 848,986
Provision for credit losses 81,299 26,237 47.6 55,062 (108,931) (66.4) 163,993

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 881,112 24,800 2.9 856,312 171,319 25.0 684,993

Operating lease income 138,433 (148,658) (51.8) 287,091 (202,607) (41.4) 489,698
Service charges on deposit accounts 167,834 (3,281) (1.9) 171,115 3,275 2.0 167,840
Brokerage and insurance income 53,619 (1,180) (2.2) 54,799 (3,045) (5.3) 57,844
Trust services 77,405 9,995 14.8 67,410 5,761 9.3 61,649
Mortgage banking 41,710 9,414 29.1 32,296 (25,884) (44.5) 58,180
Bank owned life insurance income 40,736 (1,561) (3.7) 42,297 (731) (1.7) 43,028
Other service charges and fees 44,348 2,774 6.7 41,574 128 0.3 41,446
Other income 76,252 (15,795) (17.2) 92,047 988 1.1 91,059
Securities gains (8,055) (23,818) N.M. 15,763 10,505 N.M. 5,258

Total non-interest income 632,282 (172,110) (21.4) 804,392 (211,610) (20.8) 1,016,002

Operating lease expense 108,376 (128,102) (54.2) 236,478 (156,792) (39.9) 393,270
Personnel costs 481,658 (4,148) (0.9) 485,806 38,543 8.6 447,263
Other expense 379,786 (21,325) (5.3) 401,111 20,069 5.3 381,042

Total non-interest expense 969,820 (153,575) (13.7) 1,123,395 (98,180) (8.0) 1,221,575

Income before income taxes 543,574 6,265 1.2 537,309 57,889 12.1 479,420
Provision for income taxes 131,483 (16,883) (11.4) 148,366 25,671 20.9 122,695

Net income — operating(1) $ 412,091 $ 23,148 6.0% $ 388,943 $ 32,218 9.0% $ 356,725

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 962,411 $ 51,037 5.6% $ 911,374 $ 62,388 7.3% $ 848,986
Tax equivalent adjustment(2) 13,393 1,740 14.9 11,653 1,969 20.3 9,684

Net interest income (FTE) 975,804 52,777 5.7 923,027 64,357 7.5 858,670
Non-interest income 632,282 (172,110) (21.4) 804,392 (211,610) (20.8) 1,016,002

Total revenue (FTE) $1,608,086 $ (119,333) (6.9)% $1,727,419 $(147,253) (7.9)% $1,874,672

SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES (in millions of dollars)

Loans:
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 4,817 $ 361 8.1% $ 4,456 $ (177) (3.8)% $ 4,633
Middle market commercial real estate

Construction 1,678 258 18.2 1,420 201 16.5 1,219
Commercial 1,908 (14) (0.7) 1,922 122 6.8 1,800

Small business loans 2,224 221 11.0 2,003 216 12.1 1,787

Total commercial 10,627 826 8.4 9,801 362 3.8 9,439

Consumer
Auto leases — indirect 2,422 230 10.5 2,192 769 54.0 1,423
Auto loans — indirect 2,043 (242) (10.6) 2,285 (975) (29.9) 3,260
Home equity loans & lines of credit 4,636 449 10.7 4,187 746 21.7 3,441
Residential mortgage 4,081 869 27.1 3,212 1,186 58.5 2,026
Other loans 501 51 11.3 450 15 3.4 435

Total consumer 13,683 1,357 11.0 12,326 1,741 16.4 10,585

Total loans & leases $ 24,310 $ 2,183 9.9% $ 22,127 $ 2,103 10.5% $ 20,024

Operating lease assets $ 372 $ (525) (58.5)% $ 897 $ (800) (47.1)% $ 1,697

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits $ 3,379 $ 149 4.6% $ 3,230 $ 150 4.9% $ 3,080
Interest bearing demand deposits 7,658 451 6.3 7,207 1,014 16.4 6,193
Savings deposits 2,635 (194) (6.9) 2,829 27 1.0 2,802
Domestic time deposits 4,764 880 22.7 3,884 (280) (6.7) 4,164
Brokered time deposits and negotiable CDs 3,119 1,282 69.8 1,837 418 29.5 1,419
Foreign time deposits 457 (51) (10.0) 508 8 1.6 500

Total deposits $ 22,012 $ 2,517 12.9% $ 19,495 $ 1,337 7.4% $ 18,158

N.M., not a meaningful value.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.

(2) Calculated assuming a 35% tax rate.
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Table 34 — Total Company(1)

Change From 2004 Change From 2003

2005 Amount % 2004 Amount % 2003

PERFORMANCE METRICS
Return on average assets 1.26% 0.02% 1.24% 0.01% 1.23%
Return on average equity 16.0 (0.4) 16.4 0.2 16.2
Net interest margin 3.33 0.00 3.33 (0.16) 3.49
Efficiency ratio 60.0 (5.6) 65.6 0.3 65.3

CREDIT QUALITY (in thousands of dollars)

Net charge-offs by loan type
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 13,578 $ 11,658 N.M.% $ 1,920 $(73,883) (97.5)% $ 75,803
Middle market commercial real estate 4,045 (3,926) (49.3) 7,971 24 0.3 7,947
Small business loans 11,951 6,385 N.M. 5,566 (6,059) (52.1) 11,625

Total commercial 29,574 14,117 91.3 15,457 (79,918) (83.8) 95,375

Consumer
Auto leases 11,664 827 7.6 10,837 5,109 89.2 5,728
Auto loans 11,988 (16,586) (58.0) 28,574 (11,692) (29.0) 40,266
Home equity loans & lines of credit 17,619 2,545 16.9 15,074 2,960 24.4 12,114
Residential mortgage 2,332 572 32.5 1,760 928 N.M. 832
Other loans 6,880 47 0.7 6,833 (661) (8.8) 7,494

Total consumer 50,483 (12,595) (20.0) 63,078 (3,356) (5.1) 66,434

Total net charge-offs $ 80,057 $ 1,522 1.9% $78,535 $(83,274) (51.5)% $161,809

Net charge-offs — annualized percentages
Commercial

Middle market commercial and industrial 0.28% 0.24% 0.04% (1.60)% 1.64%
Middle market commercial real estate 0.11 (0.13) 0.24 (0.02) 0.26
Small business loans 0.54 0.26 0.28 (0.37) 0.65

Total commercial 0.28 0.12 0.16 (0.85) 1.01

Consumer
Auto leases 0.48 (0.01) 0.49 0.09 0.40
Auto loans 0.59 (0.66) 1.25 0.01 1.24
Home equity loans & lines of credit 0.38 0.02 0.36 0.01 0.35
Residential mortgage 0.06 0.01 0.05 0.01 0.04
Other loans 1.37 (0.15) 1.52 (0.20) 1.72

Total consumer 0.37 (0.14) 0.51 (0.12) 0.63

Total net charge-offs 0.33% (0.02)% 0.35% (0.46)% 0.81%

Non-performing assets (NPA) (in millions of dollars)

Middle market commercial and industrial $ 28 $ 4 16.7% $ 24 $ (10) (29.4)% $ 34
Middle market commercial real estate 16 12 N.M. 4 (14) (77.8) 18
Small business loans 29 14 93.3 15 1 7.1 14
Residential mortgage 18 4 28.6 14 5 55.6 9
Home equity 11 4 57.1 7 7 N.M. —

Total non-accrual loans 102 38 59.4 64 (11) (14.7) 75
Renegotiated loans — — N.M. — — N.M. —

Total non-performing loans (NPL) 102 38 59.4 64 (11) (14.7) 75
Other real estate, net (OREO) 15 (30) (66.7) 45 33 N.M. 12

Total non-performing assets $ 117 $ 8 7.3% $ 109 $ 22 25.3% $ 87

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 56 $ 2 3.7% $ 54 $ (2) (3.6)% $ 56
Allowance for loan and lease losses (ALLL) (eop) 268 (3) (1.1) 271 (29) (9.7) 300
ALLL as a % of total loans and leases 1.10% (0.05)% 1.15% (0.27)% 1.42%
ALLL as a % of NPLs 263.0 (161.0) 424.0 26.9 397.1
ALLL + OREO as a % of NPAs 241.9 (48.0) 289.9 (68.7) 358.6
NPLs as a % of total loans and leases 0.42 0.15 0.27 (0.09) 0.36
NPAs as a % of total loans and leases + OREO 0.48 0.02 0.46 0.05 0.41

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
# employees — full-time equivalent 7,602 (210) (2.7)% 7,812 (171) (2.1)% 7,983

N.M., not a meaningful value.

eop — End of Period.

(1) Operating basis, see Lines of Business section for definition.
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RESULTS FOR THE FOURTH QUARTER

Earnings Discussion

2005 fourth quarter earnings were $100.6 million, or $0.44 per common share, up 10% and 13%, respectively, from

$91.1 million, or $0.39 per common share, in the year-ago quarter. Significant items impacting 2005 fourth quarter performance

included (see table below):

– $7.0 million after-tax ($0.03 earnings per share) positive net impact related to the recognition of the effect of federal tax

refunds on income tax expense. Each quarter of 2005 reflected similar impacts, resulting from the ability to carry back

federal tax losses to prior years.

– $10.4 million pre-tax ($0.03 earnings per share) negative impact from (1) the sale of investment securities as part of a

plan to reposition a segment of the portfolio, which resulted in $8.8 million of pre-tax losses, and (2) a $1.6 million

impact of a recovery of temporary MSR impairment, net of hedge-related trading activity.

Significant Items Impacting Earnings Performance Comparisons(1):

Three Months Ended

Impact(2)

(In millions, except per share) Amount(3) EPS

December 31, 2005 — GAAP earnings(4) $ 100.6 $ 0.44

Net impact of federal tax loss carry back(4) 7.0 0.03

Securities losses plus recovery of temporary MSR impairment, net of hedge-related trading activity (10.4) (0.03)

December 31, 2004 — GAAP earnings(4) $ 91.1 $ 0.39

SEC/regulatory-related expenses (6.5) (0.03)

Property lease impairments (7.8) (0.02)

Adjustment to consolidated securitization 3.7 0.01

(1) Includes significant items with $0.01 EPS impact or greater.

(2) Favorable (unfavorable) impact on GAAP earnings.

(3) Pre-tax unless otherwise noted.

(4) After-tax.

Fully taxable equivalent net interest income increased $5.6 million, or 2%, from the year-ago quarter, primarily reflecting the

favorable impact of a $0.9 billion, or 3%, increase in average earning assets, partially offset by a 4 basis point, or an effective 1%,

decline in the net interest margin. The fully taxable equivalent net interest margin of 3.34% declined from 3.38% in the year-ago

quarter, as the net interest margin in the year-ago quarter included a 6 basis point positive impact related to a securitization

funding cost adjustment. Excluding this impact, the current quarter’s net interest margin would have increased 2 basis points

from the year-ago period, reflecting the benefit of higher-yielding loans, the unwinding of excess liquidity early in the year, and

disciplined deposit pricing.

Average total loans and leases increased $1.4 billion, or 6%, from the 2004 fourth quarter, with consumer and commercial loans

contributing equally to the growth. Average total consumer loans increased $0.7 billion, or 6%, from the year-ago quarter,

reflecting growth across all consumer loan categories. Average residential mortgages increased $0.5 billion, or 13%, and average

home equity loans increased $0.2 billion, or 4%. Though residential mortgage and home equity loan growth rates were strong

compared with the year-ago quarter, they have continued to slow.

Compared with the year-ago quarter, average total automobile loans and leases increased only 1%. Average automobile loans

increased $0.1 billion, or 5%, reflecting current automobile loan production and loan sales. Average direct financing leases

declined 2% from the year-ago quarter, reflecting declining production levels due to lower consumer demand and aggressive price

competition. Average operating lease assets declined $0.4 billion, or 62%, as this portfolio continued to run off. Total automobile

loan and lease exposure at quarter end was 18%, down from 21% a year ago.

Average total commercial loans increased $0.7 billion, or 7%, from the year-ago quarter. This reflected a $0.6 billion, or 8%,

increase in total middle market C&I and CRE loans, and 4% growth in average small business C&I and CRE loans.

Average total investment securities were $0.1 billion, or 2%, higher than in the year-ago quarter.

Average total core deposits in the 2005 fourth quarter increased $0.4 billion, or 3%, from the year-ago quarter. All of this

increase reflected growth in certificates of deposit less than $100,000, partially offset by declines in savings and other domestic
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time deposits and interest bearing demand deposits. This transfer of funds into certificates of deposit less than $100,000 and out

of other deposit accounts reflected customer preference for higher fixed rate term deposit accounts. Average certificates of deposit

less than $100,000 increased $1.0 billion, or 39%, with this increase partially offset by a 12% decline in savings and other

domestic time deposits, as well as a 2% decline in interest bearing demand deposits.

Non-interest income decreased $35.6 million, or 19%, from the year-ago quarter, mostly attributed to the $30.8 million decline in

operating lease income, reflecting the continued run-off of the operating lease portfolio. The remaining categories decreased a

total of $4.9 million with the primary drivers being:

– $10.9 million decline in securities gains as the current quarter reflected $8.8 million of securities losses related to the

repositioning of a portion of the investment securities portfolio. This contrasts with $2.1 million of securities gains in the

year-ago quarter.

Partially offset by:

– $3.1 million, or 18%, increase in trust services income, due primarily to higher mutual fund, personal trust, and

institutional trust assets under management.

– $2.1 million, or 24%, increase in mortgage banking income, primarily reflecting higher secondary marketing income.

Non-interest expense decreased $50.7 million, or 18%, from the year-ago quarter with $29.6 million of the decline reflecting the

run-off of the operating lease portfolio. Of the remaining $21.1 million decline from the year-ago quarter, the primary drivers

were:

– $8.1 million, or 31%, decline in net occupancy expense as the year-ago quarter included a $7.8 million property lease

impairment.

– $7.3 million, or 28%, decline in other expense, as the year-ago quarter included $5.5 million of SEC/regulatory-related

expenses and $1.7 million in residual value losses on automobile leases.

– $6.6 million, or 5%, decline in personnel expense, primarily reflecting lower incentive compensation and benefits expense.

– $2.1 million, or 22%, decline in professional services, due primarily to lower legal and consulting expense.

Partially offset by:

– $1.8 million, or 33%, increase in marketing expense related to increased advertising expenditures.

– $1.1 million increase in outside data processing and other services with the largest increase in debit card processing

expense, up $0.6 million.

Our effective tax rate was 22.5% in the 2005 fourth quarter, down from 29.0% in the year-ago quarter. As previously disclosed,

the effective tax rate in each quarter of 2005 included the positive impact on net income due to a federal tax loss carry back, tax

exempt income, bank owned life insurance, asset securitization activities, and general business credits from investment in low

income housing and historic property partnerships.

Credit Quality

Total net charge-offs for the 2005 fourth quarter were $17.6 million, or an annualized 0.29% of average total loans and leases.

This was down from $20.9 million, or an annualized 0.36%, in the year-ago quarter.

Total commercial net charge-offs in the fourth quarter were $3.6 million, or an annualized 0.13%, down from $5.2 million, or an

annualized 0.21%, in the year-ago quarter. This reflected net recoveries in the current quarter in middle market C&I and CRE

loans, which lowered total commercial net charge-offs by $2.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively, from the year-ago quarter.

This benefit was partially offset by a $3.1 million increase in small business loan net charge-offs, which totaled $4.5 million in the

current quarter, or an annualized 0.80% of related loans.

Total consumer net charge-offs in the fourth quarter were $14.0 million, or an annualized 0.41% of related loans. This compared

with $15.8 million, or 0.49%, in the year-ago quarter. The decline from the year-ago quarter reflected primarily lower automobile

loan and lease net charge-offs and lower home equity net charge-offs. Total automobile loan and lease net charge-offs in the 2005

fourth quarter were $6.6 million, or an annualized 0.61% of related loans and leases, down from $7.5 million, or an annualized

0.70%, in the year-ago quarter. Home equity loan net charge-offs in the current quarter were $4.5 million, or an annualized

0.39%, down from $5.3 million, or 0.48%, in the year-ago quarter.
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NPAs were $117.2 million at December 31, 2005, and represented 0.48% of related assets, up from $108.6 million, or 0.46%, at

the end of last year. Non-performing loans and leases (NPLs), which exclude OREO, were $101.9 million at December 31, 2005,

up $38.0 million from the year-earlier period. NPLs expressed as a percent of total loans and leases were 0.42% at December 31,

2005, up from 0.27% a year earlier.

The over 90-day delinquent, but still accruing, ratio was 0.23% at December 31, 2005, unchanged from the end of the year-ago

quarter.

Allowances for Credit Losses (ACL)

The December 31, 2005, ALLL was $268.3 million, down from $271.2 million a year earlier. Expressed as a percent of period-end

loans and leases, the ALLL ratio at December 31, 2005, was 1.10%, down from 1.15% a year ago, reflecting the improvement in

economic conditions. The table below shows the change in the ALLL ratio and each reserve component from the 2004 fourth

quarter.

Components of ALLL as percent of total loans and leases:

4Q05 4Q04 Change

Transaction reserve 0.89% 0.83% 0.06%
Economic reserve 0.21 0.32 (0.11)

Total ALLL 1.10% 1.15% (0.05)%

The ALLL as a percent of NPAs was 229% at December 31, 2005, down from 250% a year ago. At December 31, 2005, the AULC

was $37.0 million, up from $33.2 million at the end of the year-ago quarter. On a combined basis, the ACL as a percent of total

loans and leases was 1.25% at December 31, 2005, down from 1.29% a year earlier. The ACL as a percent of NPAs was 261% at

December 31, 2005, down from 280% a year earlier.

The provision for credit losses in the 2005 fourth quarter was $30.8 million, an $18.2 million increase from the year-ago quarter.

The increase in provision expense from the year-ago quarter reflected a combination of higher non-performing assets, as well as

the downgrades in certain commercial credits discussed above.

Capital

At December 31, 2005, the tangible equity to assets ratio was 7.19%, up slightly from 7.18% a year ago. At December 31, 2005,

the tangible equity to risk-weighted assets ratio was 7.91%, up slightly from 7.86% at the end of the year-ago quarter. The

increase in these ratios from a year ago reflected growth in retained earnings, with the improvement in the risk-weighted ratio

also reflecting the reduced overall risk profile of earning assets.

During the quarter, 5.2 million shares of common stock were repurchased in the open market, leaving 9.8 million shares

remaining under the 15 million share repurchase authorization announced October 18, 2005.

Table 35 presents quarterly income statements and Table 36 presents quarterly stock summary, key ratios and statistics, and

capital data for eight quarters.
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Table 35 — Selected Quarterly Income Statements

2005 2004

(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Interest income $ 442,476 $ 420,858 $ 402,326 $ 376,105 $359,215 $338,002 $324,167 $325,931
Interest expense 198,800 179,221 160,426 140,907 120,147 110,944 101,604 103,246

Net interest income 243,676 241,637 241,900 235,198 239,068 227,058 222,563 222,685
Provision for credit losses 30,831 17,699 12,895 19,874 12,654 11,785 5,027 25,596

Net interest income after provision for
credit losses 212,845 223,938 229,005 215,324 226,414 215,273 217,536 197,089

Service charges on deposit accounts 42,083 44,817 41,516 39,418 41,747 43,935 43,596 41,837
Trust services 20,425 19,671 19,113 18,196 17,315 17,064 16,708 16,323
Brokerage and insurance income 13,101 13,948 13,544 13,026 12,879 13,200 13,523 15,197
Other service charges and fees 11,488 11,449 11,252 10,159 10,617 10,799 10,645 9,513
Mortgage banking income (loss) 10,909 21,116 (2,376) 12,061 8,822 4,448 23,322 (4,296)
Bank owned life insurance income 10,389 10,104 10,139 10,104 10,484 10,019 11,309 10,485
Gains on sales of automobile loans 455 502 254 — — 312 4,890 9,004
Securities gains (losses) (8,770) 101 (343) 957 2,100 7,803 (9,230) 15,090
Other income 22,900 9,770 24,974 17,397 23,870 17,899 24,659 25,619

Sub-total before operating lease income 122,980 131,478 118,073 121,318 127,834 125,479 139,422 138,772
Operating lease income 24,342 29,262 38,097 46,732 55,106 64,412 78,706 88,867

Total non-interest income 147,322 160,740 156,170 168,050 182,940 189,891 218,128 227,639

Personnel costs 116,111 117,476 124,090 123,981 122,738 121,729 119,715 121,624
Outside data processing and other

services 19,693 18,062 18,113 18,770 18,563 17,527 17,563 18,462
Net occupancy 17,940 16,653 17,257 19,242 26,082 16,838 16,258 16,763
Equipment 16,093 15,531 15,637 15,863 15,733 15,295 16,228 16,086
Professional services 7,440 8,323 9,347 9,459 9,522 12,219 7,836 7,299
Marketing 7,403 6,779 7,441 6,454 5,581 5,000 8,069 7,839
Telecommunications 4,453 4,512 4,801 4,882 4,596 5,359 4,638 5,194
Printing and supplies 3,084 3,102 3,293 3,094 3,148 3,201 3,098 3,016
Amortization of intangibles 218 203 204 204 205 204 204 204
Restructuring reserve releases — — — — — (1,151) — —
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — — — — — — —
Other expense 19,194 19,588 19,074 18,380 26,526 22,317 25,981 18,457

Sub-total before operating lease expense 211,629 210,229 219,257 220,329 232,694 218,538 219,590 214,944
Operating lease expense 18,726 22,823 28,879 37,948 48,320 54,885 62,563 70,710

Total non-interest expense 230,355 233,052 248,136 258,277 281,014 273,423 282,153 285,654

Income before income taxes 129,812 151,626 137,039 125,097 128,340 131,741 153,511 139,074
Provision for income taxes 29,239 43,052 30,614 28,578 37,201 38,255 43,384 34,901

Net income $ 100,573 $ 108,574 $ 106,425 $ 96,519 $ 91,139 $ 93,486 $110,127 $104,173

Average common shares — diluted 229,718 233,456 235,671 235,053 235,502 234,348 232,659 232,915

Per common share:
Net income — diluted $ 0.44 $ 0.47 $ 0.45 $ 0.41 $ 0.39 $ 0.40 $ 0.47 $ 0.45
Cash dividends declared 0.215 0.215 0.215 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.175 0.175

Revenue — fully taxable equivalent (FTE)
Net interest income $ 243,676 $ 241,637 $ 241,900 $ 235,198 $239,068 $227,058 $222,563 $222,685
FTE adjustment 3,837 3,734 2,961 2,861 2,847 2,864 2,919 3,023

Net interest income (1) 247,513 245,371 244,861 238,059 241,915 229,922 225,482 225,708
Non-interest income 147,322 160,740 156,170 168,050 182,940 189,891 218,128 227,639

Total revenue (1) $ 394,835 $ 406,111 $ 401,031 $ 406,109 $424,855 $419,813 $443,610 $453,347

(1) On a fully taxable equivalent (FTE) basis assuming a 35% tax rate.

94



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Table 36 — Quarterly Stock Summary, Key Ratios and Statistics, and Capital Data

Quarterly common stock summary 2005 2004

(in thousands, except per share) Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Common stock price, per share
High (1) $ 24.640 $ 25.410 $ 24.750 $ 24.780 $25.380 $25.150 $23.120 $23.780
Low (1) 20.970 22.310 22.570 22.150 23.110 22.700 20.890 21.000
Close 23.750 22.470 24.140 23.900 24.740 24.910 22.980 22.030
Average closing price 23.369 24.227 23.771 23.216 24.241 24.105 22.050 22.501

Dividends, per share
Cash dividends declared on

common stock $ 0.215 $ 0.215 $ 0.215 $ 0.200 $ 0.200 $ 0.200 $ 0.175 $ 0.175

Common shares outstanding
Average — basic 226,699 229,830 232,217 231,824 231,147 229,848 229,429 229,227
Average — diluted 229,718 233,456 235,671 235,053 235,502 234,348 232,659 232,915
Ending 224,106 229,006 230,842 232,192 231,605 230,153 229,476 229,410
Book value per share $ 11.41 $ 11.45 $ 11.40 $ 11.15 $ 10.96 $ 10.69 $ 10.40 $ 10.31

Common share repurchases
Number of shares repurchased 5,175 2,598 1,818 — — — — —

Quarterly key ratios and statistics

Margin analysis-as a % of average earning assets (2)

Interest income (2) 6.01% 5.72% 5.52% 5.21% 5.05% 4.89% 4.76% 4.89%
Interest expense 2.67 2.41 2.16 1.90 1.67 1.59 1.47 1.53

Net interest margin (2) 3.34% 3.31% 3.36% 3.31% 3.38% 3.30% 3.29% 3.36%

Return on average total assets 1.22% 1.32% 1.31% 1.20% 1.13% 1.18% 1.41% 1.36%
Return on average total shareholders’

equity 15.5 16.5 16.3 15.5 14.6 15.4 19.1 18.4

Capital adequacy 2005 2004

(in millions of dollars) December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

Total risk-weighted assets $ 29,599 $ 29,352 $ 29,973 $ 30,267 $29,542 $28,679 $28,416 $28,247
Tier 1 leverage ratio 8.34% 8.50% 8.50% 8.45% 8.42% 8.36% 8.20% 8.07%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 9.13 9.42 9.18 9.04 9.08 9.10 8.98 8.74
Total risk-based capital ratio 12.42 12.70 12.39 12.33 12.48 12.53 12.56 12.13
Tangible equity/asset ratio 7.19 7.39 7.36 7.42 7.18 7.11 6.95 6.97
Tangible equity/risk-weighted assets ratio 7.91 8.19 8.05 7.84 7.86 7.83 7.64 7.60
Average equity/average assets 7.89 7.97 8.03 7.76 7.74 7.67 7.42 7.39

(1) High and low stock prices are intra-day quotes obtained from NASDAQ.

(2) Presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis assuming a 35% tax rate.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

The management of Huntington (the Company) is responsible for the financial information and representations contained in the

consolidated financial statements and other sections of this report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. In all material respects, they reflect the substance

of transactions that should be included based on informed judgments, estimates, and currently available information.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls, which includes the careful selection and training of qualified

personnel, appropriate segregation of responsibilities, communication of written policies and procedures, and a broad program of

internal audits. The costs of the controls are balanced against the expected benefits. During 2005, the audit committee of the

board of directors met regularly with Management, Huntington’s internal auditors, and the independent registered public

accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, to review the scope of the audits and to discuss the evaluation of internal accounting

controls and financial reporting matters. The independent registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors have free

access to, and meet confidentially with, the audit committee to discuss appropriate matters. Also, Huntington maintains a

disclosure review committee. This committee’s purpose is to design and maintain disclosure controls and procedures to ensure

that material information relating to the financial and operating condition of Huntington is properly reported to its chief

executive officer, chief financial officer, internal auditors, and the audit committee of the board of directors in connection with

the preparation and filing of periodic reports and the certification of those reports by the chief executive officer and the chief

financial officer.

REPORT ON MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company,

including accounting and other internal control systems that, in the opinion of Management, provide reasonable assurance that

(1) transactions are properly authorized, (2) the assets are properly safeguarded, and (3) transactions are properly recorded and

reported to permit the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States.

Huntington’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2005. In making this assessment, Management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on that assessment,

Management believes that, as of December 31, 2005, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on

those criteria. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation

report on Management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Thomas E. Hoaglin

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Donald R. Kimble

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Controller

February 14, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated

Columbus, Ohio

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report on Management’s Assessment of Internal

Control over Financial Reporting, that Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) maintained

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal

Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The

Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of

the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s

assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s

principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board

of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely

basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the

Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based

on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the

consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 of the Company and our report dated

February 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Columbus, Ohio

February 14, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated

Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and subsidiaries (the

‘‘Company’’) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’

equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The consolidated

financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated

January 16, 2004 (except for Note 25, as to which the date is January 27, 2004), expressed an unqualified opinion on those

financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph that described the adoption of new accounting guidance for variable

interest entities in 2003.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated 2005 and 2004 financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established

in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report dated February 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Columbus, Ohio

February 14, 2006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

December 31,

(in thousands, except number of shares) 2005 2004

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 966,445 $ 877,320
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 74,331 628,040
Interest bearing deposits in banks 22,391 22,398
Trading account securities 8,619 309,630
Loans held for sale 294,344 223,469
Investment securities 4,526,520 4,238,945
Loans and leases:

Commercial and industrial loans 6,809,208 5,829,685
Commercial real estate loans 4,036,171 4,473,293
Automobile loans 1,985,304 1,948,667
Automobile leases 2,289,015 2,443,455
Home equity loans 4,638,841 4,554,540
Residential mortgage loans 4,193,139 3,829,234
Other consumer loans 520,488 481,403

Loans and leases 24,472,166 23,560,277
Allowance for loan and lease losses (268,347) (271,211)

Net loans and leases 24,203,819 23,289,066

Bank owned life insurance 1,001,542 963,059
Premises and equipment 360,677 355,115
Operating lease assets 229,077 587,310
Goodwill and other intangible assets 217,486 215,807
Customers’ acceptance liability 4,536 11,299
Accrued income and other assets 855,018 844,039

Total assets $32,764,805 $32,565,497

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities

Deposits in domestic offices
Demand deposits — non-interest bearing $ 3,390,044 $ 3,392,123
Interest bearing 18,548,943 16,935,091

Deposits in foreign offices 470,688 440,947

Deposits 22,409,675 20,768,161
Short-term borrowings 1,889,260 1,207,233
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,155,647 1,271,088
Other long-term debt 2,418,419 4,016,004
Subordinated notes 1,023,371 1,039,793
Deferred income tax liability 743,655 783,628
Allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit 36,957 33,187
Bank acceptances outstanding 4,536 11,299
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 525,784 897,466

Total liabilities 30,207,304 30,027,859

Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock — authorized 6,617,808 shares; none outstanding — —
Common stock — without par value; authorized 500,000,000 shares;

issued 257,866,255 shares; outstanding 224,106,172 and 231,605,281 shares, respectively 2,491,326 2,484,204
Less 33,760,083 and 26,260,974 treasury shares, respectively (693,576) (499,259)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (22,093) (10,903)
Retained earnings 781,844 563,596

Total shareholders’ equity 2,557,501 2,537,638

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $32,764,805 $32,565,497

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Interest and fee income
Loans and leases

Taxable $1,428,371 $1,132,599 $1,096,750
Tax-exempt 1,466 1,474 1,674

Investment securities
Taxable 158,741 171,709 159,590
Tax-exempt 19,865 17,884 15,067

Other 33,322 23,649 32,675

Total interest income 1,641,765 1,347,315 1,305,756

Interest expense
Deposits 446,919 257,099 288,271
Short-term borrowings 34,334 13,053 15,698
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 34,647 33,253 24,394
Subordinated notes and other long-term debt 163,454 132,536 128,407

Total interest expense 679,354 435,941 456,770

Net interest income 962,411 911,374 848,986
Provision for credit losses 81,299 55,062 163,993

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 881,112 856,312 684,993

Service charges on deposit accounts 167,834 171,115 167,840
Operating lease income 138,433 287,091 489,698
Trust services 77,405 67,410 61,649
Brokerage and insurance income 53,619 54,799 57,844
Other service charges and fees 44,348 41,574 41,446
Mortgage banking income 41,710 32,296 58,180
Bank owned life insurance income 40,736 42,297 43,028
Gains on sales of automobile loans 1,211 14,206 40,039
Gain on sale of branch offices — — 13,112
Securities gains (losses), net (8,055) 15,763 5,258
Other income 75,041 92,047 91,059

Total non-interest income 632,282 818,598 1,069,153

Personnel costs 481,658 485,806 447,263
Operating lease expense 108,376 236,478 393,270
Outside data processing and other services 74,638 72,115 66,118
Net occupancy 71,092 75,941 62,481
Equipment 63,124 63,342 65,921
Professional services 34,569 36,876 42,448
Marketing 28,077 26,489 27,490
Telecommunications 18,648 19,787 21,979
Printing and supplies 12,573 12,463 13,009
Amortization of intangibles 829 817 816
Restructuring reserve releases — (1,151) (6,666)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — 15,250
Other expense 76,236 93,281 80,780

Total non-interest expense 969,820 1,122,244 1,230,159

Income before income taxes 543,574 552,666 523,987
Provision for income taxes 131,483 153,741 138,294

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 412,091 398,925 385,693
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax — — (13,330)

Net income $ 412,091 $ 398,925 $ 372,363

Average common shares — basic 230,142 229,913 229,401
Average common shares — diluted 233,475 233,856 231,582

Per common share
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — basic $ 1.79 $ 1.74 $ 1.68
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — diluted 1.77 1.71 1.67
Net income — basic 1.79 1.74 1.62
Net income — diluted 1.77 1.71 1.61
Cash dividends declared 0.845 0.750 0.670

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Accumulated
Other

Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Comprehensive Retained

(in thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Income (Loss) Earnings Total

Balance — January 1, 2003 — $— 257,866 $ 2,484,421 (24,987) $ (475,399) $ 62,300 $ 118,471 $ 2,189,793
Comprehensive income:
Net income 372,363 372,363
Unrealized net losses on investment

securities arising during the year, 
net of reclassification of
net realized gains (47,427) (47,427)

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedging
derivatives (11,081) (11,081)

Minimum pension liability adjustment (1,114) (1,114)

Total comprehensive income 312,741

Cash dividends declared
($0.67 per share) (153,476) (153,476)

Stock options exercised (609) 481 8,691 8,082
Treasury shares purchased (4,300) (81,061) (81,061)
Other (270) (52) (807) (1,077)

Balance — December 31, 2003 — — 257,866 2,483,542 (28,858) (548,576) 2,678 337,358 2,275,002

Comprehensive income:
Net income 398,925 398,925
Unrealized net losses on investment

securities arising during the year, 
net of reclassification of
net realized gains (22,112) (22,112)

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedging
derivatives 9,694 9,694

Minimum pension liability adjustment (1,163) (1,163)

Total comprehensive income 385,344

Cash dividends declared
($0.75 per share) (172,687) (172,687)

Stock options exercised 678 2,432 46,561 47,239
Other (16) 165 2,756 2,740

Balance — December 31, 2004 — — 257,866 2,484,204 (26,261) (499,259) (10,903) 563,596 2,537,638

Comprehensive income:
Net income 412,091 412,091
Unrealized net losses on investment 

securities arising during the year, 
net of reclassification of
net realized losses (21,333) (21,333)

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedging
derivatives 10,954 10,954

Minimum pension liability adjustment (811) (811)

Total comprehensive income 400,901

Cash dividends declared
($0.845 per share) (193,843) (193,843)

Stock options exercised 2,999 1,866 36,195 39,194
Treasury shares purchased (9,591) (231,656) (231,656)
Other 4,123 226 1,144 5,267

Balance — December 31, 2005 — $— 257,866 $2,491,326 (33,760) $ (693,576) $ (22,093) $781,844 $2,557,501

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Operating activities
Net income $ 412,091 $ 398,925 $ 372,363
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax — — 13,330
Provision for credit losses 81,299 55,062 163,993
Depreciation on operating lease assets 99,342 216,444 350,550
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights 18,359 19,019 25,966
Other depreciation and amortization 73,635 89,669 126,530
Mortgage servicing rights impairment recoveries (4,371) (1,378) (14,957)
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision (32,110) 140,962 258
Decrease (increase) in trading account securities 275,765 (302,041) (7,348)
Originations of loans held for sale (2,572,346) (1,858,262) (4,221,322)
Principal payments on and proceeds from loans held for sale 2,501,471 1,861,272 4,522,972
Losses (gains) on sales of investment securities 8,055 (15,763) (5,258)
Gains on sales/securitizations of loans (1,211) (14,206) (45,610)
Gain on sale of branch offices — — (13,112)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — 15,250
Restructuring reserve releases — (1,151) (6,666)
Increase of cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance (40,736) (42,297) (43,028)
(Decrease) increase in payable to investors in sold loans (119,352) 24,541 64,986
Other, net (25,192) (42,580) 40,373

Net cash provided by operating activities 674,699 528,216 1,339,270

Investing activities
Decrease in interest bearing deposits in banks 7 11,229 3,673
Proceeds from:

Maturities and calls of investment securities 463,001 881,305 1,585,979
Sales of investment securities 1,995,764 2,386,479 1,161,325

Purchases of investment securities (2,832,258) (2,438,158) (4,341,946)
Proceeds from sales/securitizations of loans — 1,534,395 2,576,869
Net loan and lease originations, excluding sales (1,012,345) (4,216,309) (4,506,843)
Purchases of equipment for operating lease assets (31,363) (14,666) —
Proceeds from sale of operating lease assets 280,746 451,264 572,596
Sale of branch offices — — (81,367)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 1,164 1,188 7,382
Purchases of premises and equipment (57,288) (56,531) (64,571)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate 50,614 16,388 14,083
Consolidation of cash of securitization trust — — 58,500

Net cash used for investing activities (1,141,958) (1,443,416) (3,014,320)

Financing activities
Increase in deposits 1,655,736 2,273,046 1,177,324
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 682,027 (245,071) (688,712)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes — 148,830 198,430
Maturity of subordinated notes — (100,000) (250,000)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 809,589 1,088 270,000
Maturity of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (925,030) (3,000) (10,000)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 925,000 2,075,000
Maturity of long-term debt (1,719,403) (1,455,000) (895,250)
Purchase of minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries (107,154) — —
Dividends paid on common stock (200,628) (168,075) (151,023)
Repurchases of common stock (231,656) — (81,061)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 39,194 47,239 8,082

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,675 1,424,057 1,652,790

Change in cash and cash equivalents (464,584) 508,857 (22,260)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,505,360 996,503 1,018,763

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,040,776 $ 1,505,360 $ 996,503

Supplemental disclosures:
Income taxes paid $ 230,186 $ 34,904 $ 72,128
Interest paid 640,679 422,060 469,331
Non-cash activities

Mortgage loans exchanged for mortgage-backed securities 15,058 115,929 354,200
Common stock dividends accrued, paid in subsequent year 28,877 35,662 31,113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

– NATURE OF OPERATIONS — Huntington Bancshares Incorporated (Huntington) is a multi-state diversified financial holding

company organized under Maryland law in 1966 and headquartered in Columbus, Ohio. Through its subsidiaries, Huntington

is engaged in providing full-service commercial and consumer banking services, mortgage banking services, automobile

financing, equipment leasing, investment management, trust services, and discount brokerage services, as well as reinsuring

private mortgage, credit life and disability insurance, and selling other insurance and financial products and services.

Huntington’s banking offices are located in Ohio, Michigan, West Virginia, Indiana, and Kentucky. Certain activities are also

conducted in other states including Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Nevada, New Jersey, North Carolina, Pennsylvania,

South Carolina, and Tennessee. Huntington has foreign offices in the Cayman Islands and in Hong Kong.

– BASIS OF PRESENTATION — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Huntington and its majority-owned

subsidiaries and are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). All

significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Companies in which Huntington

holds more than a 50% voting equity interest or are a variable interest entity (VIE) in which Huntington absorbs the majority

of expected losses are consolidated. VIEs in which Huntington does not absorb the majority of expected losses are not

consolidated. For consolidated entities where Huntington holds less than a 100% interest, Huntington recognizes a minority

interest liability (included in accrued expenses and other liabilities) for the equity held by others and minority interest expense

(included in other non-interest expenses) for the portion of the entity’s earnings attributable to minority interests. Investments

in companies that are not consolidated are accounted for using the equity method when Huntington has the ability to exert

significant influence. Those investments in non-marketable securities for which Huntington does not have the ability to exert

significant influence are generally accounted for using the cost method and are periodically evaluated for impairment.

Investments in private investment partnerships are carried at fair value. Investments in private investment partnerships and

investments that are accounted for under the equity method or the cost method are included in accrued income and other

assets and Huntington’s proportional interest in the investments’ earnings are included in other non-interest income.

Huntington evaluates VIEs in which it holds a beneficial interest for consolidation. VIEs, as defined by the Financial

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 46 (Revised 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, are

legal entities with insubstantial equity, whose equity investors lack the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities, or

whose equity investors do not have the right to receive the residual returns of the entity if they occur. Huntington adopted

FIN 46 (Revised 2003) on July 1, 2003 and, therefore, consolidates these VIEs when it holds a majority of VIEs’ beneficial

interests. The effect of adopting FIN 46 (Revised 2003) in 2003 resulted in a cumulative effect of change in accounting of

$13.3 million.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain prior period

amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

– SECURITIES — Securities purchased with the intention of recognizing short-term profits are classified as trading account

securities and reported at fair value. The unrealized gains or losses on trading account securities are recorded in other non-

interest income. All other securities are designated as investment securities. Investment securities include securities designated

as available for sale, non-marketable equity securities, and, prior to 2005, securities held to maturity. Unrealized gains or losses

on investment securities designated as available for sale are reported as a separate component of accumulated other

comprehensive income/loss in shareholders’ equity. Declines in the value of debt and marketable equity securities that are

considered other-than-temporary are recorded in non-interest income as a securities loss.

Securities transactions are recognized on the trade date (the date the order to buy or sell is executed). The amortized cost of

specific securities sold is used to compute realized gains and losses. Interest and dividends on securities, including amortization

of premiums and accretion of discounts using the effective interest method over the period to maturity, are included in interest

income.

Non-marketable equity securities include stock acquired for regulatory purposes, such as Federal Home Loan Bank stock and

Federal Reserve Bank stock. These securities are generally accounted for at cost and are included in investment securities.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (Statement) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 59, Accounting for Noncurrent

Marketable Equity Securities, FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary

Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, and EITF Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment

on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets, provide guidance on determining when an

investment is other-than-temporarily impaired. Investments are reviewed quarterly for indicators of other-than-temporary
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impairment. This determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, Management evaluates, among other

factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost and intent and ability to hold the

investment. Investments with an indicator are further evaluated to determine the likelihood of a significant adverse effect on

the fair value and amount of the impairment as necessary. If market or economic conditions change, future impairments may

occur.

– LOANS AND LEASES — Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net of unamortized deferred loan origination fees

and costs and net of unearned income. Direct financing leases are reported at the aggregate of lease payments receivable and

estimated residual values, net of unearned and deferred income. Interest income is accrued as earned based on unpaid

principal balances. Huntington defers the fees it receives from the origination of loans and leases, as well as the direct costs of

those activities, and amortizes these fees and costs on a level-yield basis over the estimated lives of the related loans.

Automobile loans and leases include loans secured by automobiles and leases of automobiles that qualify for the direct

financing method of accounting. Substantially all of the direct financing leases that qualify for that accounting method do so

because the present value of the lease payments and the guaranteed residual value are at least 90% of the cost of the vehicle.

Huntington records the residual values of its leases based on estimated future market values of the automobiles as published in

the Automotive Lease Guide (ALG), an authoritative industry source. Beginning in October 2000, Huntington purchased

residual value insurance for its entire automobile lease portfolio to mitigate the risk of declines in residual values. Residual

value insurance provides for the recovery of the vehicle residual value specified by the ALG at the inception of the lease. As a

result, the risk associated with market driven declines in used car values is mitigated. Currently, Huntington has three distinct

residual value insurance policies in place to address the residual risk in the portfolio. One residual value insurance policy

covers all vehicles leased between October 1, 2000 and April 30, 2002, and has an associated total payment cap of $50 million.

Any losses above the cap result in additional depreciation expense. A second policy covers all originations from May 2002

through June 2005, and does not have a cap. A third policy, similar in structure to the referenced second policy, went into

effect July 1, 2005, and covers all originations for a period of one year. Leases covered by the last two policies qualify for the

direct financing method of accounting. Leases covered by the first policy are accounted for using the operating lease method of

accounting and are recorded as operating lease assets in Huntington’s consolidated balance sheet.

Residual values on leased automobiles and equipment are evaluated periodically for impairment. Impairment of the residual

values of direct financing leases is recognized by writing the leases down to fair value with a charge to other non-interest

expense. Residual value losses arise if the market value at the end of the lease term is less than the residual value embedded in

the original lease contract. Residual value insurance covers the difference between the recorded residual value and the fair value

of the automobile at the end of the lease term as evidenced by ALG Black Book valuations. This insurance, however, does not

cover residual losses below ALG Black Book value, which may arise when the automobile has excess wear and tear and/or

excess mileage, not reimbursed by the lessee.

Commercial and industrial loans and commercial real estate loans are generally placed on non-accrual status and stop accruing

interest when principal or interest payments are 90 days or more past due or the borrower’s creditworthiness is in doubt. A

loan may remain in accruing status when it is sufficiently collateralized, which means the collateral covers the full repayment of

principal and interest, and is in the process of active collection.

Commercial and industrial and commercial real estate loans are evaluated for impairment in accordance with the provisions of

Statement No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, as amended. This Statement requires an allowance to be

established as a component of the allowance for loan and lease losses when it is probable that all amounts due pursuant to the

contractual terms of the loan or lease will not be collected and the recorded investment in the loan or lease exceeds its fair

value. Fair value is measured using either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s or lease’s

effective interest rate, the observable market price of the loan or lease, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan or lease is

collateral dependent.

Consumer loans and leases, excluding residential mortgage and home equity loans, are subject to mandatory charge-off at a

specified delinquency date and are not classified as non-performing prior to being charged off. These loans and leases are

generally charged off in full no later than when the loan or lease becomes 120 days past due. Residential mortgage loans are

placed on non-accrual status when principal payments are 180 days past due or interest payments are 210 days past due. A

charge-off on a residential mortgage loan is recorded when the loan has been foreclosed and the loan balance exceeds the fair

value of the collateral. The fair value of the collateral is then recorded as real estate owned and is reflected in other assets in

the consolidated balance sheet. (See Note 4 for further information.)
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Huntington uses the cost recovery method of accounting for cash received on non-performing loans and leases. Under this

method, cash receipts are applied entirely against principal until the loan or lease has been collected in full, after which time

any additional cash receipts are recognized as interest income. When, in management’s judgment, the borrower’s ability to

make periodic interest and principal payments resumes and collectibility is no longer in doubt, the loan or lease is returned to

accrual status. When interest accruals are suspended, accrued interest income is reversed with current year accruals charged to

earnings and prior year amounts generally charged off as a credit loss.

– SOLD LOANS — Loans that are sold are accounted for in accordance with Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and

Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. For loan sales with servicing retained, an asset is also recorded

for the right to service the loans sold, based on the relative fair value of the servicing rights.

Gains and losses on the loans sold and servicing rights associated with loan sales are determined when the related loans are

sold to the trust or third party. Fair values of the servicing rights are based on the present value of expected future cash flows

from servicing the underlying loans, net of adequate compensation to service the loans. The present value of expected future

cash flows is determined using assumptions for market interest rates, ancillary fees, and prepayment rates. Management also

uses these assumptions to assess the servicing rights for impairment periodically. The servicing rights are recorded in other

assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Servicing revenues on mortgage and automobile loans, net of the amortization of

servicing rights, are included in mortgage banking income and other non-interest income, respectively.

– ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES — The allowance for credit losses (ACL) reflects Management’s judgment as to the level of the

ACL considered appropriate to absorb probable inherent credit losses. This judgment is based on the size and current risk

characteristics of the portfolio, a review of individual loans and leases, historical and anticipated loss experience, and a review

of individual relationships where applicable. External influences such as general economic conditions, economic conditions in

the relevant geographic areas and specific industries, regulatory guidelines, and other factors are also assessed in determining

the level of the allowance.

The allowance is determined subjectively, requiring significant estimates, including the timing and amounts of expected future

cash flows on impaired loans and leases, consideration of current economic conditions, and historical loss experience

pertaining to pools of homogeneous loans and leases, all of which may be susceptible to change. The allowance is increased

through a provision that is charged to earnings, based on Management’s quarterly evaluation of the factors previously

mentioned, and is reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries, and the allowance associated with securitized or sold loans.

The ACL consists of two components, the transaction reserve, which includes a specific reserve in accordance with Statement

No. 114, and the economic reserve. Loan and lease losses related to the transaction reserve are recognized and measured

pursuant to Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, and Statement No. 114, while losses related to the economic reserve

are recognized and measured pursuant to Statement No. 5. The two components are more fully described below.

Transaction Reserve
The transaction reserve component of the ACL includes both (a) an estimate of loss based on characteristics of each

commercial and consumer loan, lease, or loan commitment in the portfolio and (b) an estimate of loss based on an

impairment review of each loan greater than $500,000 that is considered to be impaired.

For middle market commercial and industrial, middle market commercial real estate, and small business loans, the

estimate of loss is based on characteristics of each loan through the use of a standardized loan grading system, which is

applied on an individual loan level and updated on a continuous basis. The reserve factors applied to these portfolios

were developed based on internal credit migration models that track historical movements of loans between loan ratings

over time and a combination of long-term average loss experience of the Company’s own portfolio and external

industry data.

Management analyzes each middle market commercial and industrial, middle market commercial real estate, or small

business loan over $500,000 for impairment when the loan is non-performing or has a grade of substandard or lower.

The impairment tests are done in accordance with applicable accounting standards and regulations. For loans

determined to be impaired, an estimate of loss is reserved for the amount of the impairment.

In the case of more homogeneous portfolios, such as consumer loans and leases, and residential mortgage loans, the

determination of the transaction reserve is conducted at an aggregate, or pooled, level. For such portfolios, the

development of the reserve factors includes the use of forecasting models to measure inherent loss in these portfolios.
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Models and analyses are updated frequently to capture the recent behavioral characteristics of the subject portfolios, as

well as any changes in loss mitigation or credit origination strategies. Adjustments to the reserve factors are made as

needed based on observed results of the portfolio analytics.

Economic Reserve
Changes in the economic environment are a significant judgmental factor Management considers in determining the

appropriate level of the ACL. The economic reserve incorporates Management’s determination of the impact on the

portfolio of risks associated with the general economic environment. The economic reserve is designed to address

economic uncertainties and is determined based on a variety of economic factors that are correlated to the historical

performance of the loan portfolio. Because of this more quantitative approach to recognizing risks in the general

economy, the economic reserve may fluctuate from period to period.

In an effort to be as quantitative as possible in the ACL calculation, Management developed a revised methodology for

calculating the economic reserve portion of the ACL in 2004. The revised methodology is specifically tied to economic

indices that have a high correlation to the Company’s historic charge-off variability. The indices currently in the model

consists of the U.S. Index of Leading Economic Indicators, U.S. Profits Index, U.S. Unemployment Index, and the

University of Michigan Current Consumer Confidence Index. Beginning in 2004, the calculated economic reserve was

determined based upon the variability of credit losses over a credit cycle. The indices and time frame may be adjusted

as actual portfolio performance changes over time. Management has the capability to judgmentally adjust the calculated

economic reserve amount by a maximum of +/– 20% to reflect, among other factors, differences in local versus national

economic conditions. This adjustment capability is deemed necessary given the newness of the model and the

continuing uncertainty of forecasting economic environment changes.

– RESELL AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS — Securities purchased under agreements to resell and securities sold under agreements

to repurchase are generally treated as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded at the amounts at which the

securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest. The fair value of collateral either received from or provided to a third

party is continually monitored and additional collateral is obtained or is requested to be returned to Huntington as deemed

appropriate.

– GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — Under the purchase method of accounting, the net assets of entities acquired by

Huntington are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of acquisition. The excess of cost over the fair value of net

assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful

lives through 2011. Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis at September 30th of each

year.

– MORTGAGE BANKING ACTIVITIES — Loans held for sale include performing 1-to-4 family residential mortgage loans originated

for resale and are carried at the lower of cost (net of purchase discounts or premiums and effects of hedge accounting) or fair

value as determined on an aggregate basis. Fair value is determined using available secondary market prices for loans with

similar coupons, maturities, and credit quality.

Huntington recognizes the rights to service mortgage loans as separate assets, which are included in other assets in the

consolidated balance sheets, only when purchased or when servicing is contractually separated from the underlying mortgage

loans by sale or securitization of the loans with servicing rights retained. The carrying value of loans sold or securitized is

allocated between loans and servicing rights based on the relative fair values of each. Purchased mortgage servicing rights are

initially recorded at cost. All servicing rights are subsequently carried at the lower of the initial carrying value, adjusted for

amortization, or fair value, and are included in other assets.

– PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT — Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Depreciation is computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Buildings

and building improvements are depreciated over an average of 30 to 40 years and 10 to 20 years, respectively. Land

improvements and furniture and fixtures are depreciated over 10 years, while equipment is depreciated over a range of three to

seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the asset life or term of the related leases. Maintenance

and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, while improvements that extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and

depreciated over the remaining useful life.

– OPERATING LEASE ASSETS — Operating lease assets consist of automobiles leased to consumers and equipment leased to

business customers. These assets are reported at cost, including net deferred origination fees or costs, less accumulated
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depreciation. For automobile operating leases, net deferred origination fees or costs include the referral payments Huntington

makes to automobile dealers, which are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Lease payments are recorded as rental income, a component of operating lease income in non-interest income. Net deferred

origination fees or costs are amortized over the life of the lease to operating lease income. Depreciation expense is recorded on

a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leased assets are depreciated to the estimated residual value at the end of the

lease term. Depreciation expense is included in operating lease expense in the non-interest expense section of the consolidated

income statement. Impairment of residual values of operating leases is evaluated under Statement No. 144, Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Under that Statement, when the future cash flows from the operating lease,

including the expected realizable fair value of the automobile or equipment at the end of the lease, are less than the book value

of the lease, an immediate impairment write-down is recognized. Otherwise, reductions in the expected residual value result in

additional depreciation of the leased asset over the remaining term of the lease. Upon disposition, a gain or loss is recorded for

any difference between the net book value of the lease and the proceeds from the disposition of the asset, including any

insurance proceeds.

On a quarterly basis, Management evaluates the amount of residual value losses that it anticipates will result from the

estimated fair value of a leased vehicle being less than the residual value inherent in the lease. Also as part of its quarterly

analysis, Management evaluates automobile leases individually for impairment. Fair value includes estimated net proceeds from

the sale of the leased vehicle plus expected residual value insurance proceeds and amounts expected to be collected from the

lessee for excess mileage and other items that are billable under terms of the lease contract. When estimating the amount of

expected insurance proceeds, Management takes into consideration policy caps that exist in one of its residual value insurance

policies and whether it expects aggregate claims under such policies to exceed the cap. Residual value losses exceeding any

insurance policy cap are reflected in higher depreciation expense over the remaining life of the affected automobile lease.

Credit losses, included in operating lease expense, occur when a lease is terminated early because the lessee cannot make the

required lease payments. These credit-generated terminations result in Huntington taking possession of the automobile earlier

than expected. When this occurs, the market value of the automobile may be less than Huntington’s book value, resulting in a

loss upon sale. Rental income payments accrued, but not received, are written off when they reach 120 days past due and at

that time, the asset is evaluated for impairment.

– BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE — Huntington’s bank owned life insurance policies are carried at their cash surrender value.

Huntington recognizes tax-free income from the periodic increases in the cash surrender value of these policies and from death

benefits.

– DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, are accounted for in

accordance with Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended. This Statement

requires every derivative instrument to be recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at

its fair value and Huntington to formally document, designate, and assess the effectiveness of transactions for which hedge

accounting is applied. Depending on the nature of the hedge and the extent to which it is effective, the changes in fair value of

the derivative recorded through earnings will either be offset against the change in the fair value of the hedged item in

earnings, or recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently recognized in earnings in the period the hedged item

affects earnings. The portion of a hedge that is ineffective and all changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as

hedges, referred to as trading instruments, are recognized immediately in earnings. Deferred gains or losses from derivatives

that are terminated are amortized over the shorter of the original remaining term of the derivative or the remaining life of the

underlying asset or liability. Trading instruments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in other non-

interest income. Trading instruments are executed primarily with Huntington’s customers to fulfill their needs. Derivative

instruments used for trading purposes include interest rate swaps, including callable swaps, interest rate caps and floors, and

interest rate and foreign exchange futures, forwards, and options.

– ADVERTISING COSTS — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred as a marketing expense, a component of non-interest

expense.

– INCOME TAXES — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future book and tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

determined using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income at the time

of enactment of such change in tax rates.
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– TREASURY STOCK — Acquisitions of treasury stock are recorded at cost. The reissuance of shares in treasury for acquisitions,

stock option exercises, or for other corporate purposes, is recorded at weighted-average cost.

– STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION — Huntington’s stock-based compensation plans are accounted for based on the intrinsic value

method promulgated by Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related

interpretations. Compensation expense for employee stock options is generally not recognized if the exercise price of the option

equals or exceeds the fair value of the stock on the date of grant.

The following pro forma disclosures for net income and earnings per diluted common share is presented as if Huntington had

applied the fair value method of accounting of Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, in measuring

compensation costs for stock options. The fair values of the stock options granted are estimated using the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model. This model assumes that the estimated fair value of the options is amortized over the options’ vesting

periods and the compensation costs would be included in personnel costs in the consolidated income statement. The following

table also includes the weighted-average assumptions that were used in the option-pricing model for options granted in each of

the last three years:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions of dollars, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Assumptions

Risk-free interest rate 4.07% 3.78% 4.45%

Expected dividend yield 3.34 3.20 3.11

Expected volatility of Huntington’s common stock 26.3 30.9 33.8

Expected option term (years) 6.0 6.0 6.0

Pro forma results

Net income, as reported $412.1 $398.9 $372.4

Less pro forma expense related to options granted (11.9) (14.4) (10.9)

Pro forma net income $400.2 $384.5 $361.5

Net income per common share:

Basic, as reported $ 1.79 $ 1.74 $ 1.62

Basic, pro forma 1.74 1.67 1.58

Diluted, as reported 1.77 1.71 1.61

Diluted, pro forma 1.71 1.64 1.56

– SEGMENT RESULTS — Accounting policies for the lines of business are the same as those used in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements with respect to activities specifically attributable to each business line. However, the

preparation of business line results requires management to establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits,

expenses, and other financial elements to each line of business. Changes are made in these methodologies utilized for certain

balance sheet and income statement allocations performed by Huntington’s management reporting system, as appropriate. In

2005, the Capital Markets Group was removed from the Treasury/Other segment and combined with the Private Financial

Group to form the Private Financial and Capital Markets Group segment. Since the Capital Markets Group is now managed

through the Private Financial Group, combining these two segments better reflects the management accountability and decision

making structure. Prior periods reflect this change.

– STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — Cash and cash equivalents are defined as ‘‘Cash and due from banks’’ and ‘‘Federal funds sold

and securities purchased under resale agreements.’’

2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

– FASB INTERPRETATION NO. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations (FIN 47) — In March 2005, the

FASB issued FIN 47, which clarifies the term ‘‘conditional asset retirement obligation’’ as used in Statement No. 143,

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. FIN 47 refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which

the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the

entity. An entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair

value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The impact of adopting the provisions of FIN 47 in the fourth quarter of

2005 was not material.
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– FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (FASB) STATEMENT NO. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3 (Statement No. 154) — In May 2005, the FASB issued

Statement 154, which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in

Interim Financial Statements. Statement 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in

accounting principle. Statement 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning

after December 15, 2005. The impact of this new pronouncement is not expected to be material to Huntington’s financial

condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

– STATEMENT NO. 123 (REVISED 2004), Share-Based Payment (STATEMENT NO. 123R) — Statement 123R was issued in

December 2004, requiring that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the

financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. Statement

123R covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans,

performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. Statement 123R replaces Statement

No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (Statement 123), and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion

No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25). Statement 123, as originally issued in 1995, established as preferable

a fair-value-based method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees. However, that Statement

permitted entities the option of continuing to apply the guidance in APB 25, as long as the footnotes to financial statements

disclosed pro forma net income under the preferable fair-value-based method. Effective January 1, 2006, Huntington has

adopted Statement 123R. The impact of adoption to Huntington’s results of operations is similar to the pro forma disclosures

presented in Note 1. (See Note 1 for the current accounting policy on share-based payments and Note 17 for the share-based

payment disclosures).

– STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN NO. 107, Share Based Payments (SAB 107) — On March 29, 2005, the SEC issued SAB 107 to

provide public companies additional guidance in applying the provisions of Statement No. 123R. Among other things, SAB 107

describes the SEC staff’s expectations in determining the assumptions that underlie the fair value estimates and discusses the

interaction of Statement 123R with certain existing SEC guidance. Huntington has adopted the provisions of SAB 107 in

conjunction with the adoption of Statement 123R beginning January 1, 2006.

– PROPOSED INTERPRETATION OF STATEMENT NO. 109, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions — In July 2005, the FASB issued

an exposure draft of a proposed interpretation on accounting for uncertain tax positions under Statement No. 109, Accounting

for Income Taxes. The exposure draft contains proposed guidance on the recognition and measurement of uncertain tax

positions. If adopted as proposed, the Company would be required to recognize, in its financial statements, the best estimate of

the impact of a tax position, only if that tax position is probable of being sustained on audit based solely on the technical

merits of the position. The proposed effective date for the interpretation was originally scheduled for December 31, 2005, with

a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle to be recorded upon the initial adoption. In January 2006, FASB

decided to make forthcoming rules on certain tax positions effective in 2007. FASB also moved to a view that such recognition

should be changed from the tax position being ‘‘probable of being sustained on audit based solely on the technical merits of

the position’’ to a less stringent benchmark of ‘‘more likely than not’’ that the position would be sustained on audit or final

resolution through legal action or settlement. FASB expects to publish the planned rules on uncertain tax positions in March

or April of 2006. Huntington is currently evaluating the impact this proposed interpretation will have on its consolidated

financial statements.

– PROPOSED FASB AMENDMENT TO STATEMENT NO. 140, Servicing Rights — In August 2005, the FASB issued an exposure draft,

Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. This exposure draft would amend

Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, and would

require that all separately recognized servicing rights be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. For each class of

separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities, this exposure draft would permit Huntington to choose either to report

servicing assets and liabilities at fair value or at amortized cost. Under the fair value approach, servicing assets and liabilities

will be recorded at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recorded in earnings in the period in which the

changes occur. Under the amortized cost method, servicing assets and liabilities are amortized in proportion to and over the

period of estimated net servicing income or net servicing loss and are assessed for impairment based on fair value at each

reporting date. The statement would be effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006, and allows early adoption

as of the beginning of a fiscal year for which the entity has not previously issued interim financial statements.
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3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Investment securities at December 31 were as follows:

Unrealized 

(in thousands of dollars) Amortized Cost Gross Gains Gross Losses Fair Value

2005

U.S. Treasury $ 24,199 $ 131 $ (655) $ 23,675

Federal agencies

Mortgage-backed securities 1,309,598 680 (31,256) 1,279,022

Other agencies 349,385 115 (13,034) 336,466

Total Federal agencies 1,658,983 795 (44,290) 1,615,488

Asset-backed securities 1,788,694 4,990 (4,904) 1,788,780

Municipal securities 544,781 5,003 (4,934) 544,850

Private label CMO 402,959 171 (9,561) 393,569

Other securities 159,522 751 (115) 160,158

Total investment securities $4,579,138 $ 11,841 $ (64,459) $4,526,520

Unrealized 

(in thousands of dollars) Amortized Cost Gross Gains Gross Losses Fair Value

2004

U.S. Treasury $ 24,987 $ 362 $ (213) $ 25,136

Federal agencies

Mortgage-backed securities 985,846 177 (12,507) 973,516

Other agencies 986,954 1,193 (15,901) 972,246

Total Federal agencies 1,972,800 1,370 (28,408) 1,945,762

Asset-backed securities 1,198,296 2,690 (1,004) 1,199,982

Municipal securities 410,614 7,404 (1,794) 416,224

Private label CMO 462,394 866 (5,233) 458,027

Other securities 189,513 4,962 (661) 193,814

Total investment securities $4,258,604 $17,654 $(37,313) $4,238,945

There were no securities classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2005. Included in investment securities at December 31,

2004, were $2.0 million of municipal securities classified as held to maturity. These securities were accounted for at their

historical cost. In the first quarter of 2005, Huntington sold $1.5 million of the securities classified as held to maturity and

transferred the remaining securities to available for sale. At the time of the transfer, a nominal unrealized gain on the transferred

securities was recognized in other comprehensive income.

Other securities include Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock, corporate debt and marketable equity

securities.

Contractual maturities of investment securities as of December 31 were:

2005 2004

(in thousands of dollars) Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Under 1 year $ 1,765 $ 1,765 $ 8,597 $ 8,653

1-5 years 394,254 382,549 610,189 606,140

6-10 years 199,670 196,154 584,619 575,399

Over 10 years 3,838,730 3,800,751 2,964,917 2,957,796

Non-marketable equity securities 89,661 89,661 84,756 84,756

Marketable equity securities 55,058 55,640 5,526 6,201

Total investment securities $4,579,138 $4,526,520 $4,258,604 $4,238,945
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At December 31, 2005, the carrying value of investment securities pledged to secure public and trust deposits, trading account

liabilities, U.S. Treasury demand notes, and security repurchase agreements totaled $1.4 billion. There were no securities of a

single issuer, which are not governmental or government-sponsored, that exceeded 10% of shareholders’ equity at December 31,

2005.

The following table provides the gross unrealized losses and fair value of temporarily impaired securities, aggregated by

investment category and length of time the individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, at December 31, 2005.

Less than 12 Months Over 12 Months Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

U.S. Treasury $ — $ — $ 19,857 $ (655) $ 19,857 $ (655)
Federal agencies

Mortgage-backed securities 658,407 (13,536) 431,877 (17,720) 1,090,284 (31,256)
Other agencies — — 334,051 (13,034) 334,051 (13,034)

Total Federal agencies 658,407 (13,536) 765,928 (30,754) 1,424,335 (44,290)
Asset-backed securities 725,215 (4,739) 87,379 (165) 812,594 (4,904)
Municipal securities 214,634 (2,976) 51,334 (1,958) 265,968 (4,934)
Private label CMO 42,501 (750) 336,309 (8,811) 378,810 (9,561)
Other securities 3,219 (32) 2,540 (83) 5,759 (115)

Total temporarily impaired securities $1,643,976 $ (22,033) $1,263,347 $ (42,426) $2,907,323 $ (64,459)

As of December 31, 2005, Management has evaluated these investment securities with unrealized losses and all non-marketable

securities for impairment. The unrealized losses were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual terms and/or cash flows of

the investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost. Huntington has the intent

and ability to hold these investment securities until the fair value is recovered, which may be maturity, and therefore, does not

consider them to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

In 2004, Management determined that $11.0 million of equity securities, with unrealized losses of $0.9 million were other-than-

temporarily impaired. Consequently, Huntington recognized the unrealized losses in 2004 as non-interest income. There were no

other-than-temporary impairments of any securities recognized in 2005 or 2003.

Gross gains from sales of securities of $8.5 million, $34.7 million, and $14.5 million, were realized in 2005, 2004, and 2003,

respectively. Gross losses totaled $16.6 million in 2005, $19.0 million in 2004, and $9.2 million in 2003.

4. LOANS AND LEASES
At December 31, 2005, $2.4 billion of commercial and industrial loans were pledged to secure potential discount window

borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank. At this same date, $4.2 billion of real estate qualifying loans were pledged to secure

advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. Real estate qualifying loans are comprised of residential mortgage loans secured by

first and second liens.
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Huntington’s loan and lease portfolio includes lease financing receivables consisting of direct financing leases on equipment,

which are included in commercial and industrial loans, and on automobiles. Net investment in lease financing receivables by

category at December 31 were as follows:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Commercial and industrial
Lease payments receivable $ 486,488 $ 389,177
Estimated residual value of leased assets 39,570 37,704

Gross investment in commercial lease financing receivables 526,058 426,881
Deferred origination fees and costs 3,125 1,980
Unearned income (58,476) (39,414)

Total net investment in commercial lease financing receivables $ 470,707 $ 389,447

Consumer
Lease payments receivable $ 1,209,088 $1,453,909
Estimated residual value of leased assets 1,296,303 1,258,160

Gross investment in consumer lease financing receivables 2,505,391 2,712,069
Deferred origination fees and costs (565) (2,130)
Unearned income (215,811) (266,484)

Total net investment in consumer lease financing receivables $ 2,289,015 $2,443,455

The future lease rental payments due from customers on direct financing leases at December 31, 2005, totaled $1.2 billion and

were as follows: $0.5 billion in 2006; $0.4 billion in 2007; $0.2 billion in 2008; $0.1 billion in 2009, and less than $0.1 billion

thereafter. Included in the estimated residual value of leased consumer assets was a valuation reserve of $5.1 million and

$4.2 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for expected residual value impairment not covered by residual value

insurance.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Huntington has made loans to its officers, directors, and their associates. These loans were made in the ordinary course of

business under normal credit terms, including interest rate and collateralization, and do not represent more than the normal risk

of collection. These loans to related parties for the year ended December 31 are summarized as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2005

Balance, beginning of year $ 89,177
Loans made 219,728
Repayments (231,814)
Changes due to status of executive officers and directors (603)

Balance, end of year $ 76,488

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND PAST DUE LOANS

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, loans in non-accrual status and loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest, were

as follows:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Commercial and industrial $ 55,273 $ 34,692

Commercial real estate 18,309 8,670

Residential mortgage 17,613 13,545

Home equity 10,720 7,055

Total non-performing loans 101,915 63,962

Other real estate, net 15,240 44,606

Total non-performing assets $ 117,155 $108,568

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 56,138 $ 54,283
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The amount of interest that would have been recorded under the original terms for total loans classified as non-accrual or

renegotiated was $7.7 million for 2005, $3.3 million for 2004, and $6.3 million for 2003. Amounts actually collected and recorded

as interest income for these loans totaled $1.9 million, $1.9 million, and $3.0 million for 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

5. LOAN SALES AND SECURITIZATIONS
AUTOMOBILE LOANS

Huntington sold $0.4 billion, $1.5 billion and $2.1 billion of automobile loans in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Pre-tax gains

from the sales of automobile loans totaled $1.2 million, $14.2 million and $40.0 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

During 2005, Huntington used the following assumptions to measure fair value of retained servicing rights at the time of the sale:

estimated servicing income of 0.55%, requires adequate compensation for servicing of approximately 0.62%, receives other

ancillary fees of approximately 0.33%, applies a discount rate of 10% and receives an estimated return on payments prior to

remittance to investors. The servicing asset is then amortized against servicing income. Impairment, if any, is recognized when

carrying value exceeds the fair value as determined by calculating the present value of expected net future cash flows. The

primary risk characteristic for measuring servicing assets is payoff rates of the underlying loan pools. Valuation calculations rely

heavily on the predicted payoff assumption, and if actual payoff is quicker than expected, then future value would be impaired.

Other impairment concerns would be changes to the other assumptions mentioned above.

Changes in the carrying value of automobile loan servicing rights for the three years ended December 31, 2005, and the fair value

at the end of each period were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Carrying value, beginning of year $ 20,286 $17,662 $12,676

New servicing assets 2,113 16,249 25,106

Amortization (11,528) (13,625) (8,434)

Impairment charges (66) — —

Adoption of FIN 46 — — (11,686)

Carrying value, end of year $ 10,805 $20,286 $17,662

Fair value, end of year $ 11,658 $21,361 $18,501

Huntington has retained servicing responsibilities and receives annual servicing fees from 0.55% to 1.00% of the outstanding loan

balances. Servicing income, net of amortization of capitalized servicing assets, included in other non-interest income amounted to

$12.5 million in 2005, $10.1 million in 2004, and $4.3 million in 2003. The unpaid principal balance of automobile loans

serviced for third parties was $1.7 billion, $2.3 billion, and $1.8 billion at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

There were no automobile loan securitizations in 2005 or 2004. As a result of adopting FIN 46 (subsequently amended as

FIN 46R) in the third quarter of 2003, one of the securitization trusts sponsored by Huntington was consolidated. The impact of

this consolidation was to reduce the outstanding automobile loans serviced by $1.0 billion, reduce the retained interest asset by

$142.3 million, and reduce the servicing asset by $11.7 million. In the second quarter of 2004, Huntington repurchased all the

outstanding loans of an unconsolidated trust for $23.9 million, resulting in a $1.5 million pre-tax gain. There were no

impairment charges related to Huntington’s retained interest in automobile loans during 2004 and 2003.

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE LOANS

There were no sales of residential mortgage loans held for investment in 2005 and 2003. During 2004, Huntington sold

$199.8 million of residential mortgage loans held for investment, resulting in a net pre-tax gain of $0.5 million. Huntington also

exchanged for federal agency mortgage-backed securities $15.1 million, $115.9 million and $354.2 million of residential mortgage

loans in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and retained all of the resulting securities. Accordingly, these amounts were reclassified

from loans to investment securities.

A mortgage servicing right (MSR) is established only when the loans are sold or when servicing is contractually separated from

the underlying mortgage loans by sale or securitization of the loans with servicing rights retained. The initial carrying value of

the asset is established based on its relative fair value at the time of sale using assumptions that are consistent with assumptions

used at the time to estimate the fair value of the total MSR portfolio. All servicing rights are subsequently carried at the lower of

the initial carrying value, adjusted for amortization, or fair value, and are included in other assets. From time to time, loans may

be sold with recourse. This recourse may be for a limited period of time or for the life of the loan.
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The unpaid principal balance of residential mortgage loans serviced for third parties was $7.3 billion, $6.9 billion, and

$6.4 billion at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

A summary of loans serviced at December 31, 2005 and for the year ended, were as follows:

Year Ended
(in millions of dollars) At December 31, 2005 December 31, 2005

Principal Balance Average Balance

Loans serviced for others $ 7,276 $ 7,013

Loans held in portfolio and held for sale 4,306 4,227

Loans serviced $11,582 $11,240

Changes in the carrying value of mortgage servicing rights and the associated valuation allowance for the three years ended

December 31, 2005, and the fair value at the end of each period were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year $ 77,107 $ 71,087 $ 29,271

New servicing assets 28,260 23,738 52,896

Amortization (18,359) (19,019) (25,966)

Impairment recovery 4,371 1,378 14,957

Sales (120) (77) (71)

Balance, end of year $ 91,259 $ 77,107 $ 71,087

Fair value, end of year $ 109,560 $ 84,084 $ 74,684

Servicing rights are evaluated quarterly for impairment based on the fair value of those rights, using a disaggregated approach.

The fair value of the servicing rights is determined by estimating the present value of future net cash flows, taking into

consideration market loan prepayment speeds, discount rates, servicing costs, and other economic factors. Seven risk tranches are

used in the evaluation of mortgage servicing rights for impairment: three tranches for servicing rights on 30-year fixed-rate

mortgage loans (based on interest rate bands of below 6.00%; 6.00% up to 6.99%; and 7.00% and above), three tranches for

servicing rights on 15-year fixed-rate mortgage loans (based on interest rate bands of below 5.50%; 5.50% up to 6.49%; and

6.50% and above), and one tranche encompassing balloon and adjustable rate mortgages. Huntington began using the expanded

interest rate bands in the fourth quarter of 2003. Temporary impairment is recognized in a valuation allowance against the

mortgage servicing rights. Huntington also analyzes its mortgage servicing rights periodically for other-than-temporary

impairment. Other-than-temporary impairment is recognized as a direct reduction of the carrying value of the mortgage servicing

right and cannot be recovered. No other-than-temporary impairment was recognized in the three years ended December 31,

2005. Servicing rights are amortized over the period of, and in proportion to, the estimated future net servicing revenue.

Amortization is recorded as a reduction of mortgage banking income, which is reflected in non-interest income in Huntington’s

consolidated income statement.

Changes in the impairment allowance for mortgage servicing rights for the three years ended December 31, 2005, were as follows:

Year Ending December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year $ (4,775) $ (6,153) $(21,110)

Impairment charges (15,814) (18,110) (10,713)

Impairment recovery 20,185 19,488 25,670

Balance, end of year $ (404) $ (4,775) $ (6,153)
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At December 31, 2005, the fair value, assumptions and the sensitivity of the current fair value of Huntington’s mortgage servicing

rights to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in those assumptions were:

Decline in fair
value due to

10% 20%
adverse adverse

(in thousands of dollars) Actual change change

Constant pre-payment rate 12.76% $(4,900) $(9,500)

Discount rate 9.42 (3,900) (7,600)

Caution should be used when reading these sensitivities as a change in an individual assumption and its impact on fair value is

shown independent of changes in other assumptions. Economic factors are dynamic and may counteract or magnify sensitivities.

6. ALLOWANCES FOR CREDIT LOSSES (ACL)

The Company maintains two reserves, both of which are available to absorb possible credit losses: the allowance for loan and

lease losses (ALLL) and the allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit (AULC). When summed together,

these reserves constitute the total allowances for credit losses (ACL). During 2005, the economic reserve associated with unfunded

loan commitments was transferred from the ALLL to the AULC. This transfer had no impact on net income. A summary of the

transactions in the allowances for credit losses and details regarding impaired loans and leases follows for the three years ended

December 31:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Allowance for loan and leases losses, beginning of year (ALLL) $ 271,211 $299,732 $300,503

Loan and lease losses (115,848) (126,115) (201,534)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off 35,791 47,580 39,725

Net loan and lease losses (80,057) (78,535) (161,809)

Provision for loan and lease losses 83,782 57,397 164,616

Economic reserve transfer (6,253) — —

Allowance for assets sold and securitized(1) (336) (7,383) (3,578)

Allowance for loan and lease losses, end of year $ 268,347 $271,211 $299,732

Allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit, beginning of year (AULC) $ 33,187 $ 35,522 $ 36,145

Provision for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit losses (2,483) (2,335) (623)

Economic reserve transfer 6,253 — —

Allowance for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit, end of year $ 36,957 $ 33,187 $ 35,522

Total allowances for credit losses (ACL) $ 305,304 $304,398 $335,254

Recorded balance of impaired loans, at end of year(2):

With specific reserves assigned to the loan and lease balances $ 41,525 $ 51,875 $ 54,853

With no specific reserves assigned to the loan and lease balances 14,032 29,296 —

Total $ 55,557 $ 81,171 $ 54,853

Average balance of impaired loans for the year(2) $ 29,441 $ 54,445 $ 33,970

Allowance for loan and lease losses on impaired loans(2) 14,526 23,447 26,249

(1) In conjunction with the automobile loan sales and securitizations in 2005, 2004, and 2003, an allowance for loan and lease losses attributable to the associated loans sold was included as a
component of the loan’s carrying value upon their sale.

(2) Includes impaired commercial and industrial loans and commercial real estate loans with outstanding balances greater than $500,000. A loan is impaired when it is probable that Huntington
will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are included in non-performing assets. The amount of interest recognized
in 2005 and 2004 on impaired loans while they were considered impaired was less than $0.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively. There was no interest recognized in 2003 on impaired
loans while they were considered impaired.
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There is a potential for loan products to contain contractual terms that give rise to a concentration of credit risk that may

increase a lending institution’s exposure to risk of nonpayment or realization. Examples of these contractual terms include loans

that permit negative amortization, a loan-to-value of greater than 100%, and option adjustable-rate mortgages. Huntington does

not offer mortgage loan products that contain these terms. Huntington does offer a home equity loan product that is interest

only with an introductory rate that is below the market interest rate for the initial period of the loan term and increases when

that period ends. Home equity loans totaled $4.6 billion, or 19%, of total loans at December 31, 2005 and 2004. From a credit

risk perspective, 87% of the home equity loans had a loan to value ratio of less than 90% at December 31, 2005. The charge-off

policy for home equity loans is described in Note 1.

7. OPERATING LEASE ASSETS
For periods before May 2002, Huntington purchased vehicles, primarily automobiles, for lease to consumers under operating lease

arrangements. Starting in 2004, Huntington also began purchasing equipment for lease to customers under similar operating lease

arrangements. These operating lease arrangements required the lessee to make a fixed monthly rental payment over a specified

lease term, typically from 36 to 66 months. The vehicles and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, are recorded as

operating lease assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Rental income is earned by Huntington on the operating lease assets and

reported as non-interest income. The assets are depreciated over the term of the lease to the estimated fair value at the end of the

lease. The depreciation of these assets is reported as a component of non-interest expense. At the end of the lease, the asset is

either purchased by the lessee or returned to Huntington. The following is a summary of operating lease assets at December 31:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Cost of operating lease assets (including residual values of $159,070 and $406,965, respectively) $ 506,445 $1,173,616

Deferred origination fees and costs (272) (1,138)

Accumulated depreciation (277,096) (585,168)

Total $ 229,077 $ 587,310

The future lease rental payments due from customers on operating lease assets at December 31, 2005, totaled $101.5 million and

are due as follows: $63.8 million in 2006; $17.6 million in 2007; $7.4 million in 2008; $5.6 million in 2009, $3.3 million in 2010,

and $3.4 million thereafter. Depreciation expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 was

$99.3 million, $216.4 million, and $350.6 million, respectively.

8. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
At December 31, premises and equipment stated at cost were comprised of the following:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Land and land improvements $ 67,787 $ 63,406

Buildings 246,745 237,071

Leasehold improvements 149,466 142,764

Equipment 477,192 467,674

Total premises and equipment 941,190 910,915

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (580,513) (555,800)

Net premises and equipment $ 360,677 $ 355,115

Depreciation and amortization charged to expense and rental income credited to occupancy expense for the three years ended

December 31, 2005 were:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Total depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment $ 50,355 $50,097 $46,746

Rental income credited to occupancy expense 11,010 13,081 14,837
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9. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31, goodwill and other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, were comprised of:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Goodwill $ 212,530 $210,155

Other intangibles 4,956 5,652

Balance, end of period $ 217,486 $215,807

At December 31, 2005, none of Huntington’s goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of

accumulated amortization, and related activity, by segment, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

Regional Dealer Treasury/ Huntington
(in thousands of dollars) Banking Sales PFCMG Other Consolidated

Balance, January 1, 2004 $ 197,593 — $ 12,947 $ 6,469 $ 217,009

Amortization — — — (817) (817)

Adjustments — — (385) — (385)

Balance, December 31, 2004 197,593 — 12,562 5,652 215,807

Additions 2,378 — 130 — 2,508

Amortization — — (13) (816) (829)

Balance, December 31, 2005 $199,971 $ — $ 12,679 $ 4,836 $217,486

During 2005 Huntington purchased certain trust relationships for $0.1 million. Also included in 2005 is $2.4 million primarily

relating to the finalization of the settlement of a purchase price contingency of the LeaseNet acquisition in 2002.

The $0.4 million adjustment in 2004 relates to goodwill recorded as part of the Haberer Registered Investment Advisor, Inc.

acquisition in 2002. No impairment of goodwill was required in accordance with Statement No. 142 in 2005, 2004 or 2003. For

the years 2006 through 2010, amortization expense associated with the other intangibles is expected to be $0.8 million each year.

10. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

At December 31, short-term borrowings were comprised of the following:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Federal funds purchased $ 931,097 $ 30,620

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 888,985 1,093,247

Commercial paper 2,480 1,928

Other borrowings 66,698 81,438

Total short-term borrowings $1,889,260 $1,207,233

Other borrowings consist of borrowings from the U.S. Treasury, funds held as collateral from swap counterparties, and other

notes payable.

Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase for the years ended December 31 is summarized as

follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Average balance during the year $ 1,125,159 $1,410,174

Average interest rate during the year 2.17% 0.93%

Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 1,356,733 $1,500,267

Commercial paper is issued by Huntington Bancshares Financial Corporation, a non-bank subsidiary, with principal and interest

guaranteed by the parent company.
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11. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
Huntington’s long-term advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank had weighted average interest rates of 4.37% and 2.32% at

December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These advances, which predominantly had variable interest rates, were collateralized by

qualifying real estate loans. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Huntington’s maximum borrowing capacity was $1.7 billion and

$1.5 billion, respectively. The advances outstanding at December 31, 2005 of $1.2 billion mature as follows: $0.2 billion in 2006;

$0.6 billion in 2007; $0.4 billion in 2008; and less than $0.1 billion thereafter. The terms of advances include various restrictive

covenants including limitations on the acquisition of additional debt in excess of specified levels, dividend payments, and the

disposition of subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2005, Huntington was in compliance with all such covenants.

12. SUBORDINATED NOTES
At December 31, Huntington’s subordinated notes consisted of the following:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Parent company:

4.94% junior subordinated debentures due 2027(1) $ 206,186 $ 206,186

5.12% junior subordinated debentures due 2028(2) 103,093 103,093

The Huntington National Bank:

8.00% subordinated notes due 2010 158,620 160,692

4.90% subordinated notes due 2014 193,361 199,136

6.60% subordinated notes due 2018 214,277 219,505

5.375% subordinated notes due 2019 147,834 151,181

Total subordinated notes $ 1,023,371 $1,039,793

(1) Variable effective rate at December 31, 2005, based on three month LIBOR + 0.70.

(2) Variable effective rate at December 31, 2005, based on three month LIBOR + 0.625.

The weighted-average interest rate for subordinated notes was 5.84% and 5.16% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Amounts above are reported net of unamortized discounts and include values related to hedging with derivative financial

instruments. The derivative instruments, principally interest rate swaps, are used to match the funding rates on certain assets by

hedging the cash flow variability associated with certain variable-rate debt by converting the debt to fixed-rate and hedging the

fair values of certain fixed-rate debt by converting the debt to a variable rate. See Note 21 for more information regarding such

financial instruments. All principal is due upon maturity of the note as described in the table above.

13. OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, Huntington’s other long-term debt consisted of the following:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

The Huntington National Bank $ 1,576,033 $3,006,004
Parent company (matured in December 2005) — 100,000
4.69% Securitization trust note payable due 2012(1) 792,386 860,000
7.88% Class C preferred securities of REIT subsidiary, no maturity 50,000 50,000

Total other long-term debt $ 2,418,419 $4,016,004

(1) Variable effective rate at December 31, 2005, based on one month LIBOR + 0.33.

Amounts above include values related to hedging with derivative financial instruments. The derivative instruments, principally

interest rate swaps, are used to match the funding rates on certain assets by hedging the cash flow variability associated with

certain variable-rate debt by converting the debt to fixed-rate and hedging the fair values of certain fixed-rate debt by converting

the debt to a variable rate. See Note 21 for more information regarding such financial instruments.

The weighted-average interest rate for other long-term debt was 4.34% and 2.86% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, Huntington’s other long-term debt included $50 million of secured borrowings, which had a variable rate

of 4.13% based, in part, on three-month LIBOR. The secured borrowings matured in January 2006.

The securitization trust note payable is collateralized by $855 million in automobile loans held in the automobile trust. The terms

of the other long-term debt obligations contain various restrictive covenants including limitations on the acquisition of additional
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debt in excess of specified levels, dividend payments, and the disposition of subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2005, Huntington

was in compliance with all such covenants.

Other long-term debt maturities for the next five years are as follows: $0.8 billion in 2006; $0.1 billion in 2007; $0.2 billion in

2008; $0.2 billion in 2009; $0.3 billion in 2010; and $0.8 billion in 2011 and thereafter. These maturities are based upon the par

values of long-term debt.

14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of Huntington’s other comprehensive income in each of the three years ended December 31 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Unrealized losses on investment securities arising during the year:

Unrealized net losses $ (41,014) $(18,555) $(67,520)

Related tax benefit 14,445 6,689 23,511

Net (26,569) (11,866) (44,009)

Less: Reclassification of net realized losses (gains) from sales of investment securities during the year:

Realized net losses (gains) 8,055 (15,763) (5,258)

Related tax (benefit) expense (2,819) 5,517 1,840

Net 5,236 (10,246) (3,418)

Total unrealized losses on investment securities arising during the year, net of reclassification of net realized

losses (gains) (21,333) (22,112) (47,427)

Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging derivatives arising during the year:

Unrealized net gains (losses) 16,852 14,914 (17,048)

Related tax (expense) benefit (5,898) (5,220) 5,967

Net 10,954 9,694 (11,081)

Minimum pension liability adjustment:

Unrealized net loss (1,248) (1,789) (1,714)

Related tax benefit 437 626 600

Net (811) (1,163) (1,114)

Total other comprehensive loss $ (11,190) $(13,581) $(59,622)

Activity in accumulated other comprehensive income for the three years ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Unrealized gains
Unrealized gains and losses on Minimum

and losses on cash flow hedging pension
(in thousands of dollars) investment securities derivatives liability Total

Balance, January 1, 2003 $ 56,856 $ 5,639 $ (195) $ 62,300

Current period change (47,427) (11,081) (1,114) (59,622)

Balance, December 31, 2003 9,429 (5,442) (1,309) 2,678

Current period change (22,112) 9,694 (1,163) (13,581)

Balance, December 31, 2004 (12,683) 4,252 (2,472) (10,903)

Current period change (21,333) 10,954 (811) (11,190)

Balance, December 31, 2005 $ (34,016) $ 15,206 $ (3,283) $ (22,093)
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15. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Effective April 27, 2004, the board of directors authorized a new share repurchase program (the 2004 Repurchase Program) which

cancelled the prior 2003 share repurchase program and authorized Management to repurchase not more than 7.5 million shares

of Huntington common stock. On June 9, 2005, Huntington reactivated its share repurchase program upon settlement of the SEC

formal investigation.

On October 18, 2005, the Company announced that the board of directors authorized a new program for the repurchase of up to

15 million shares of our common stock (the 2005 Repurchase Program). The 2005 Repurchase Program does not have an

expiration date. The 2004 Repurchase Program, with 3.1 million shares remaining, was cancelled and replaced by the 2005

Repurchase Program. The Company expects to repurchase the shares from time to time in the open market or through privately

negotiated transactions, depending on market conditions.

Listed below is the share repurchase activity for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Total Average
Number Price

of Shares Paid Per
Repurchase Programs Purchased Share

The 2004 Repurchase Program 4,415,700 $24.58

The 2005 Repurchase Program 5,175,000 23.76

Total Shares Repurchased in 2005 9,590,700 $24.13

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is the amount of earnings for the period available to each share of common stock outstanding during

the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is the amount of earnings available to each share of common stock outstanding

during the reporting period adjusted for the potential issuance of common shares for dilutive stock options. The calculation of

basic and diluted earnings per share for each of the three years ended December 31 was as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 412,091 $398,925 $385,693

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax — — (13,330)

Net income $ 412,091 $398,925 $372,363

Average common shares outstanding 230,142 229,913 229,401

Dilutive potential common shares 3,333 3,943 2,181

Diluted average common shares outstanding 233,475 233,856 231,582

Earnings Per Share

Basic

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.79 $ 1.74 $ 1.68

Net income 1.79 1.74 1.62

Diluted

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 1.77 1.71 1.67

Net income 1.77 1.71 1.61

The average market price of Huntington’s common stock for the period was used in determining the dilutive effect of

outstanding stock options. Dilutive potential common shares include stock options and options held in deferred compensation

plans. Dilutive potential common shares are computed based on the number of shares subject to options that have an exercise

price less than the average market price of Huntington’s common stock for the period.

Approximately 5.7 million, 2.6 million, and 2.8 million options to purchase shares of common stock outstanding at the end of

2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect would

be antidilutive. The weighted average exercise price for these options was $25.68 per share, $26.96 per share, and $26.74 per share

at the end of the same respective periods.
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On January 7, 2005, Huntington released from escrow 86,118 shares of Huntington common stock, which were previously issued

in September 2002, to former shareholders of LeaseNet, Inc. A total of 373,896 common shares, previously held in escrow, was

returned to Huntington. All shares in escrow had been accounted for as treasury stock.

17. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Huntington sponsors nonqualified and incentive stock option plans. These plans provide for the granting of stock options to

officers, directors and other employees at the market price on the date of the grant. Huntington’s board of directors has approved

all of the plans. Shareholders have approved each of the plans, except for the broad-based Employee Stock Incentive Plan. Of the

26.5 million options to purchase shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the plans at December 31, 2005,

21.0 million are outstanding and 5.5 million were available for future grants. Options granted since 1997 vest ratably over three

years or when other conditions are met while those granted in 1994 through 1997 vested ratably over four years. Options granted

prior to May 2004 have a maximum term of ten years. All options granted beginning in May 2004 have a maximum term of

seven years.

The fair value of the options granted was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Huntington’s

stock option activity and related information for each of the recent three years ended December 31 was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
 Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 20,017 $20.25 19,997 $19.40 18,024 $18.93

Granted 3,645 24.32 3,200 23.05 3,659 20.38

Exercised (1,842) 17.89 (2,478) 17.05 (788) 14.40

Forfeited/expired (816) 21.70 (702) 20.02 (898) 19.32

Outstanding at end of year 21,004 $21.11 20,017 $20.25 19,997 $19.40

Exercisable at end of year 13,048 $20.13 11,984 $19.68 9,649 $19.60

Weighted-average fair value per share of options granted during the year $ 5.28 $ 5.78 $ 5.64

Additional information regarding options outstanding as of December 31, 2005, was as follows:

Options Outstanding Exercisable Options

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price

Range of Exercise Prices

$11.09 to $15.00 968 3.8 $14.84 968 $14.84

$15.01 to $20.00 8,017 5.5 18.14 6,540 17.73

$20.01 to $25.00 9,731 6.4 22.74 3,270 21.55

$25.01 to $28.35 2,288 3.1 27.22 2,270 27.24

Total 21,004 5.6 $21.11 13,048 $20.13

On August 27, 2002, common stock options were granted, with certain specified exceptions, to full- and part-time employees

under the Huntington Bancshares Incorporated Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the Incentive Plan). Under the terms of the

Incentive Plan, these options are to vest on the earlier of August 27, 2007, or at such time as the closing price for Huntington’s

common stock for five consecutive trading days reached or exceeded $27.00. As of December 31, 2005, 1.5 million shares under

option remain unvested.
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18. INCOME TAXES

The following is a summary of the provision for income taxes:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Current tax provision

Federal $ 163,383 $ 12,779 $138,036

State 210 — —

Total current tax provision 163,593 12,779 138,036

Deferred tax (benefit) provision

Federal (32,681) 140,962 258

State 571 — —

Total deferred tax (benefit) provision (32,110) 140,962 258

Provision for income taxes $ 131,483 $153,741 $138,294

The following is a reconcilement of provision for income taxes to the amount computed at the statutory rate of 35%:

2005 2004 2003

(in thousands of dollars) Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Provision for income taxes computed at the statutory rate $190,251 35.0% $193,433 35.0% $183,396 35.0%

Increases (decreases):

Tax-exempt interest income (8,741) (1.6) (7,640) (1.4) (6,381) (1.2)

Tax-exempt bank owned life insurance income (14,257) (2.6) (14,804) (2.7) (15,060) (2.9)

Asset securitization activities (6,651) (1.2) (6,278) (1.1) (5,211) (1.0)

Federal tax loss carryback (28,705) (5.3) — — — —

General business credits (6,878) (1.3) (7,768) (1.4) (11,176) (2.1)

Repatriation of foreign earnings 5,741 1.1 — — — —

Other, net 723 0.1 (3,202) (0.6) (7,274) (1.4)

Provision for income taxes $131,483 24.2% $153,741 27.8% $138,294 26.4%

The significant components of deferred assets and liabilities at December 31, were as follows:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for credit losses $ 123,934 $ 122,926

Net operating loss & other carryforwards 54,457 22,936

Fair value adjustments 14,082 6,791

Other 74,020 95,527

Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 266,493 248,180

Valuation allowance (40,955) —

Net deferred tax assets 225,538 248,180

Deferred tax liabilities:

Lease financing 830,303 861,273

Pension and other employee benefits 41,409 31,822

Mortgage servicing rights 26,375 32,947

Other 71,106 105,766

Total deferred tax liability 969,193 1,031,808

Net deferred tax liability $ 743,655 $ 783,628
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At December 31, 2005, Huntington’s deferred tax asset related to net operating loss and other credit carry-forwards was

$54.5 million. This was comprised of a charitable contribution carry-forward of $4.4 million (expires in 2009) and a net

operating loss and other carry-forwards of $9.1 million for U.S. federal tax purposes, which will begin expiring in 2023, and a

capital loss carry-forward of $41.0 million which will expire in 2010. A valuation allowance in the amount of $41.0 million has

been established for the capital loss carry-forward. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some

portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In Management’s opinion the results of future operations will generate

sufficient taxable income to realize the net operating loss and charitable contribution carry-forwards. Consequently, Management

has determined that a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets related to these carry-forwards was not required as of

December 31, 2005 or 2004.

19. BENEFIT PLANS

Huntington sponsors the Huntington Bancshares Retirement Plan (the Plan), a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan

covering substantially all employees. The Plan provides benefits based upon length of service and compensation levels. The

funding policy of Huntington is to contribute an annual amount that is at least equal to the minimum funding requirements but

not more than that deductible under the Internal Revenue Code.

In addition, Huntington has an unfunded defined benefit post-retirement plan that provides certain health care and life insurance

benefits to retired employees who have attained the age of 55 and have at least 10 years of vesting service under this plan. For

any employee retiring on or after January 1, 1993, post-retirement health-care benefits are based upon the employee’s number of

months of service and are limited to the actual cost of coverage. Life insurance benefits are a percentage of the employee’s base

salary at the time of retirement, with a maximum of $50,000 of coverage.

The following table shows the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation at December 31, 2005 and

2004, and the net periodic benefit cost for the years then ended. Huntington selected September 30, 2005 as the measurement

date for all calculations and contracted an actuary to provide measurement services.

Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2005 2004 2005 2004

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31

Discount rate 5.43% 5.81% 5.43% 5.81%

Rate of compensation increase 5.00 5.00 N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31

Discount rate 5.81% 6.00% 5.81% 6.00%

Expected return on plan assets 7.00 7.00 N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase 5.00 5.00 N/A N/A

N/A, Not Applicable

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is an assumption reflecting the average rate of earnings expected on the

funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits included in the projected benefit obligation. The expected long-term

rate of return is established at the beginning of the plan year based upon historical returns and projected returns on the

underlying mix of invested assets. The long-term rate of return assumption to determine the net periodic benefit cost will be

8.00% for the year ending December 31, 2006. The rate was raised one percentage point due to favorable historical and expected

future results.

In 2005, Huntington lowered its assumptions for the discount rate from 5.81% to 5.43%. The 5.43% assumed discount rate was

based upon the Moody’s daily long-term corporate Aa bond yield as of the Plan’s measurement date. The impact of lowering this

assumption will increase Huntington’s future pension expense.

The investment objective of the Plan is to maximize the return on Plan assets over a long time horizon, while meeting the Plan

obligations. At September 30, 2005, Plan assets were invested 71.5% in equity investments and 28.5% in bonds, with an average

duration of 3.4 years on bond investments. The estimated life of benefit obligations was 12 years. Management believes that this

mix is appropriate for the current economic environment.
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The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligation of the Plan and the post-retirement

benefit plan with the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31:

Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2005 2004

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of measurement year (September 30) $ 336,007 $299,028 $ 55,504 $ 55,490

Changes due to:

Service cost 13,936 11,819 1,377 1,302

Interest cost 19,016 17,482 2,903 3,209

Benefits paid (6,897) (6,900) (3,738) (2,986)

Settlements (9,375) (8,977) — —

Actuarial assumptions and gains and losses 65,404 23,555 (12,430) (1,511)

Total changes 82,084 36,979 (11,888) 14

Projected benefit obligation at end of measurement year (September 30) $ 418,091 $336,007 $ 43,616 $ 55,504

Changes to certain actuarial assumptions, including a lower discount rate, a decrease in the expected retirement age and the use

of an updated mortality table increased the pension benefit obligation at September 30, 2005 by $65.4 million.

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of Plan assets with the amounts recognized in

the consolidated balance sheets at the September 30 measurement date:

Pension Benefits

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of measurement year (September 30) $ 353,222 $288,569

Changes due to:

Actual return on plan assets 40,798 35,962

Employer contributions 63,600 44,667

Settlements (9,936) (9,076)

Benefits paid (6,897) (6,900)

Total changes 87,565 64,653

Fair value of plan assets at end of measurement year (September 30) $ 440,787 $353,222

Huntington’s accumulated benefit obligation under the Plan was $372 million and $294 million at September 30, 2005 and 2004,

respectively. In both years, the fair value of Huntington’s plan assets exceeded its accumulated benefit obligation.

The following table presents the funded status of the Plan and the post-retirement benefit plan with the amounts recognized in

the consolidated balance sheets at December 31:
Post-Retirement

Pension Benefits Benefits

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2005 2004

Projected benefit obligation less (greater) than plan assets $ 22,696 $ 17,215 $ (43,616) $(55,504)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) 153,308 116,744 (11,586) 718

Unrecognized prior service cost 1,788 1,789 3,476 3,856

Unrecognized transition liability, net of amortization 6 — 7,728 8,831

Prepaid (accrued) benefit costs, at measurement date 177,798 135,748 (43,998) (42,099)

Contribution made after measurement date — — 1,018 766

Prepaid (accrued) benefit costs $ 177,798 $135,748 $ (42,980) $(41,333)
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The following table shows the components of net periodic benefit cost recognized in the three years ended December 31, 2005:

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Service cost $ 14,186 $ 12,159 $ 9,817 $1,378 $1,302 $1,121

Interest cost 19,016 17,482 16,647 2,903 3,209 3,479

Expected return on plan assets (25,979) (21,530) (25,138) — — —

Amortization of transition asset (4) 1 (251) 1,104 1,104 1,104

Amortization of prior service cost 1 1 — 379 583 605

Amortization of gain — — — (126) — —

Settlements 3,642 3,151 4,354 — — —

Recognized net actuarial loss 10,689 7,936 1,774 — — —

Benefit cost $ 21,551 $ 19,200 $ 7,203 $5,638 $6,198 $6,309

Service costs presented in the above table included $0.3 million of plan expenses that were recognized in each of the three years

ended December 31, 2005. It is Huntington’s policy to recognize settlement gains and losses as incurred. Management expects net

periodic pension cost to approximate $23.9 million and net periodic post-retirement benefits cost to approximate $4.3 million for

2006.

In December 2003, a law was enacted that expands Medicare benefits, primarily adding a prescription drug benefit for Medicare-

eligible retirees beginning in 2006. The law also provides a federal subsidy to companies that sponsor post-retirement benefit

plans providing prescription drug coverage. Huntington has registered for the Medicare subsidy and a $15.5 million reduction in

the post-retirement obligation is being recognized over a 10-year period beginning October 1, 2005.

At September 30, 2005 and 2004, The Huntington National Bank, as trustee, held all Plan assets. The Plan assets consisted of

investments in a variety of Huntington mutual funds and Huntington common stock as follows:

2005 2004

(in thousands of dollars) Balance % Balance %

Cash $ — —% $ 300 —%

Huntington funds — money market 164 — 500 —

Huntington funds — equity funds 300,080 68 240,456 68

Huntington funds — fixed income funds 125,971 29 95,837 27

Huntington common stock 14,572 3 16,129 5

Fair value of plan assets (September 30) $ 440,787 100% $353,222 100%

The number of shares of Huntington common stock held by the Plan was 642,364 at December 31, 2005 and 2004. The Plan has

acquired and held Huntington common stock in compliance at all times with Section 407 of the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act of 1978.

Dividends and interest received by the Plan during 2005 and 2004 were $18.9 million and $11.0 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, the following table shows when benefit payments, which include expected future service, as appropriate,

were expected to be paid:

Pension Post-Retirement
(in thousands of dollars) Benefits Benefits

2006 $ 19,204 $ 4,088

2007 21,704 4,211

2008 23,763 4,295

2009 25,374 4,387

2010 27,593 4,500

2011 through 2015 162,219 23,802

Although not legally required, Huntington made a discretionary contribution to the Plan of $63.6 million in April 2005. There is

no expected minimum contribution for 2006 to the Plan. However, Huntington may choose to make a contribution to the Plan
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up to the maximum deductible limit in the 2006 plan year. Expected contributions for 2006 to the post-retirement benefit plan

are $3.3 million.

The assumed health-care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A one percentage point increase would

increase service and interest costs and the post-retirement benefit obligation by less than $0.1 million and $2.8 million,

respectively. A one-percentage point decrease would reduce service and interest costs by less than $0.1 million and the post-

retirement benefit obligation by $0.9 million. The 2006 health-care cost trend rate was projected to be 9.78% for pre-65

participants and 9.46% for post-65 participants compared with an estimate of 10.99% for pre-65 participants and 10.86% for

post-65 participants in 2005. These rates are assumed to decrease gradually until they reach 5.09% for pre-65 participants and

5.17% for post-65 participants in the year 2017 and remain at that level thereafter. Huntington updated the immediate health-

care cost trend rate assumption based on current market data and Huntington’s claims experience. This trend rate is expected to

decline over time to a trend level consistent with medical inflation and long-term economic assumptions.

Huntington also sponsors other retirement plans, the most significant being the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan. These plans are nonqualified plans that provide certain current and former officers and

directors of Huntington and its subsidiaries with defined pension benefits in excess of limits imposed by federal tax law. At

December 31, 2005 and 2004, the accrued pension liability for these plans totaled $26.6 million and $25.1 million, respectively.

Pension expense for the plans was $2.3 million, $2.1 million, and $1.7 million in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Huntington

recorded a $0.8 million and $1.1 million, net of tax, minimum pension liability adjustment within other comprehensive income

associated with these unfunded plans in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Huntington has a defined contribution plan that is available to eligible employees. Matching contributions by Huntington equal

100% on the first 3%, then 50% on the next 2%, of participant elective deferrals. The cost of providing this plan was

$9.6 million in 2005, $9.2 million in 2004, and $8.6 million in 2003. The number of shares of Huntington common stock held by

this plan was 7,333,165 at December 31, 2005, and 7,851,365 at the end of the prior year. The market value of these shares was

$174.2 million and $194.2 million at the same respective dates. Dividends received by the plan were $13.9 million during 2005

and $10.1 million during 2004.

20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of Huntington’s financial instruments at December 31 are presented in the

following table:

2005 2004

Carrying Carrying
(in thousands of dollars) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and short-term assets $ 1,063,167 $ 1,063,167 $ 1,527,758 $ 1,527,758

Trading account securities 8,619 8,619 309,630 309,630

Loans held for sale 294,344 294,344 223,469 223,469

Investment securities 4,526,520 4,526,520 4,238,945 4,238,945

Net loans and direct financing leases 24,203,819 24,222,819 23,289,066 23,528,066

Customers’ acceptance liability 4,536 4,536 11,299 11,299

Derivatives 30,274 30,274 41,809 41,809

Financial liabilities:

Deposits (22,409,675) (21,338,675) (20,768,161) (19,915,161)

Short-term borrowings (1,889,260) (1,889,260) (1,207,233) (1,207,233)

Bank acceptances outstanding (4,536) (4,536) (11,299) (11,299)

Federal Home Loan Bank advances (1,155,647) (1,155,647) (1,271,088) (1,271,088)

Subordinated notes (1,023,371) (1,023,371) (1,039,793) (1,039,793)

Other long-term debt (2,418,419) (2,479,419) (4,016,004) (4,094,004)

Derivatives (27,427) (27,427) (4,903) (4,903)

The short-term nature of certain assets and liabilities result in their carrying value approximating fair value. These include trading

account securities, customers’ acceptance liabilities, short-term borrowings, bank acceptances outstanding, Federal Home Loan

Bank Advances and cash and short-term assets, which include cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks, and

federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements. Loan commitments and letters of credit generally have short-

126



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

term, variable-rate features and contain clauses that limit Huntington’s exposure to changes in customer credit quality.

Accordingly, their carrying values, which are immaterial at the respective balance sheet dates, are reasonable estimates of fair

value.

Certain assets, the most significant being operating lease assets, bank owned life insurance, and premises and equipment, do not

meet the definition of a financial instrument and are excluded from this disclosure. Similarly, mortgage and non-mortgage

servicing rights, deposit base, and other customer relationship intangibles are not considered financial instruments and are not

discussed below. Accordingly, this fair value information is not intended to, and does not, represent Huntington’s underlying

value. Many of the assets and liabilities subject to the disclosure requirements are not actively traded, requiring fair values to be

estimated by management. These estimations necessarily involve the use of judgment about a wide variety of factors, including

but not limited to, relevancy of market prices of comparable instruments, expected future cash flows, and appropriate discount

rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used by Huntington to estimate the fair value of the remaining classes of financial

instruments:

– LOANS HELD FOR SALE — valued using outstanding commitments from investors.

– INVESTMENT SECURITIES — based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values

are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments. Retained interests in securitized assets are valued using a

discounted cash flow analysis. The carrying amount and fair value of securities exclude the fair value of asset/liability

management interest rate contracts designated as hedges of securities available for sale.

– LOANS AND DIRECT FINANCING LEASES — variable-rate loans that reprice frequently are based on carrying amounts, as adjusted

for estimated credit losses. The fair values for other loans and leases are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses and

employ interest rates currently being offered for loans and leases with similar terms. The rates take into account the position of

the yield curve, as well as an adjustment for prepayment risk, operating costs, and profit. This value is also reduced by an

estimate of probable losses in the loan and lease portfolio.

– DEPOSITS — demand deposits, savings accounts, and money market deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on

demand. The fair values of fixed-rate time deposits are estimated by discounting cash flows using interest rates currently being

offered on certificates with similar maturities.

– DEBT — fixed-rate, long-term debt is based upon quoted market prices or, in the absence of quoted market prices, discounted

cash flows using rates for similar debt with the same maturities. The carrying amount of variable-rate obligations approximates

fair value.

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A variety of derivative financial instruments, principally interest rate swaps, are used in asset and liability management activities

to protect against the risk of adverse price or interest rate movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on future

cash flows. These instruments provide flexibility in adjusting the Company’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates without

exposure to loss of principal and higher funding requirements. By using derivatives to manage interest rate risk, the effect is a

smaller, more efficient balance sheet, with a lower wholesale funding requirement and a higher net interest margin. All derivatives

are reflected at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet.

Market risk, which is the possibility that economic value of net assets or net interest income will be adversely affected by changes

in interest rates or other economic factors, is managed through the use of derivatives. Derivatives are also sold to meet customers’

financing needs and, like other financial instruments, contain an element of credit risk, which is the possibility that Huntington

will incur a loss because a counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. Notional values of interest rate swaps and other

off-balance sheet financial instruments significantly exceed the credit risk associated with these instruments and represent

contractual balances on which calculations of amounts to be exchanged are based. Credit exposure is limited to the sum of the

aggregate fair value of positions that have become favorable to Huntington, including any accrued interest receivable due from

counterparties. Potential credit losses are minimized through careful evaluation of counterparty credit standing, selection of

counterparties from a limited group of high quality institutions, collateral agreements, and other contract provisions.

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Derivatives that are used for asset and liability management are classified as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges and are

required to meet specific criteria. To qualify as a hedge, the hedge relationship is designated and formally documented at

inception, detailing the particular risk management objective and strategy for the hedge. This includes identifying the item and
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risk being hedged, the derivative being used, and how the effectiveness of the hedge is being assessed. A derivative must be highly

effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either changes in fair value or cash flows for the risk being hedged.

Correlation is evaluated on a retrospective and prospective basis using quantitative measures. If a hedge relationship is found to

be not effective, the derivative no longer qualifies as a hedge and any excess gains or losses attributable to ineffectiveness, as well

as subsequent changes in its fair value, are recognized in other income.

For fair value hedges, deposits, short-term borrowings, and long-term debt are effectively converted to variable-rate obligations by

entering into interest rate swap contracts whereby fixed-rate interest is received in exchange for variable-rate interest without the

exchange of the contract’s underlying notional amount. Forward contracts, used primarily in connection with mortgage banking

activities, can be settled in cash at a specified future date based on the differential between agreed interest rates applied to a

notional amount. The changes in fair value of the hedged item and the hedging instrument are reflected in current earnings. The

amounts recognized in connection with the ineffective portion of Huntington’s fair value hedging in 2005, 2004, and 2003 were

insignificant. No amounts were excluded from the assessment of effectiveness during 2005, 2004, or 2003 for derivatives

designated as fair value hedges.

For cash flow hedges, interest rate swap contracts were entered into that pay fixed-rate interest in exchange for the receipt of

variable-rate interest without the exchange of the contract’s underlying notional amount, which effectively converts a portion of

its floating-rate debt to fixed-rate. This reduces the potentially adverse impact of increases in interest rates on future interest

expense. In like fashion, certain LIBOR-based commercial and industrial loans were effectively converted to fixed-rate by entering

into contracts that swap variable-rate interest for fixed-rate interest over the life of the contracts.

To the extent these derivatives are effective in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash flows, changes in the derivatives’ fair

value will not be included in current earnings but are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in

shareholders’ equity. These changes in fair value will be included in earnings of future periods when earnings are also affected by

the changes in the hedged cash flows. To the extent these derivatives are not effective, changes in their fair values are immediately

included in earnings. During 2005, 2004, and 2003, a net loss was recognized in connection with the ineffective portion of its

cash flow hedging instruments. The amounts were classified in other non-interest income and were considered insignificant. No

amounts were excluded from the assessment of effectiveness during 2005, 2004, and 2003 for derivatives designated as cash flow

hedges.

Derivatives used to manage Huntington’s interest rate risk at December 31, 2005, are shown in the table below:

Average
Weighted-Average RateNotional Maturity Fair

(in thousands of dollars) Value (years) Value Receive Pay

Asset conversion swaps

Receive fixed — generic $ 350,000 2.3 $ (8,782) 3.41% 4.27%

Liability conversion swaps

Receive fixed — generic 1,575,250 5.4 (15,960) 4.21% 4.47%

Receive fixed — callable 665,000 7.2 (19,348) 4.39% 4.22%

Pay fixed — generic 1,301,000 2.1 28,119 4.29% 3.33%

Pay fixed — forward starting 200,000 N/A 2,100 N/A N/A

Total liability conversion swaps 3,741,250 4.5 (5,089) 4.27% 4.00%

Total swap portfolio $4,091,250 4.3 $ (13,871) 4.20% 4.03%

N/A, not applicable

At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the swap portfolio used for asset and liability management was an asset of $17.9 million.

These values must be viewed in the context of the overall financial structure of Huntington, including the aggregate net position

of all on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments.

As is the case with cash securities, the fair value of interest rate swaps is largely a function of the financial market’s expectations

regarding the future direction of interest rates. Accordingly, current market values are not necessarily indicative of the future

impact of the swaps on net interest income. This will depend, in large part, on the shape of the yield curve as well as interest

rate levels. Management made no assumptions regarding future changes in interest rates with respect to the variable-rate

information presented in the table above.

128



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HUNTINGTON BANCSHARES INCORPOR ATED

The following table represents the gross notional value of derivatives used to manage interest rate risk at December 31, 2005,

identified by the underlying interest rate-sensitive instruments. The notional amounts shown in the tables above and below

should be viewed in the context of overall interest rate risk management activities to assess the impact on the net interest margin.

Fair Value Cash Flow
(in thousands of dollars) Hedges Hedges Total

Instruments associated with:

Investment securities $ — $ 25,000 $ 25,000

Loans — 325,000 325,000

Deposits 790,250 — 790,250

Federal Home Loan Bank advances — 726,000 726,000

Subordinated notes 500,000 — 500,000

Other long-term debt 950,000 775,000 1,725,000

Total notional value at December 31, 2005 $2,240,250 $1,851,000 $4,091,250

A total of $8.4 million of the unrealized net gain on cash flow hedges is expected to be recognized in 2006.

Collateral agreements are regularly entered into as part of the underlying derivative agreements with its counterparties to mitigate

the credit risk associated with both the derivatives used for asset and liability management and used in trading activities. At

December 31, 2005 and 2004, aggregate credit risk associated with these derivatives, net of collateral that has been pledged by the

counterparty, was $26.2 million and $12.3 million, respectively. The credit risk associated with interest rate swaps is calculated

after considering master netting agreements.

These derivative financial instruments were entered into for the purpose of altering the interest rate risk embedded in assets and

liabilities. Consequently, net amounts receivable or payable on contracts hedging either interest earning assets or interest bearing

liabilities were accrued as an adjustment to either interest income or interest expense. The net amount resulted in an increase to

net interest income of $23.6 million, $24.0 million, and $51.6 million in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

DERIVATIVES USED IN MORTGAGE BANKING ACTIVITIES

Huntington also uses derivatives, principally loan sale commitments, in the hedging of its mortgage loan commitments and its

mortgage loans held for sale. For derivatives that are used in hedging mortgage loans held for sale, ineffective hedge gains and

losses are reflected in mortgage banking revenue in the income statement. Mortgage loan commitments and the related interest

rate lock commitments are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet with changes in fair value reflected in mortgage

banking revenue. The following is a summary of the derivative assets and liabilities that Huntington used in its mortgage banking

activities:

At December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

Derivative assets:

Interest rate lock agreements $ 669 $ 479

Forward trades 172 853

Total derivative assets 841 1,332

Derivative liabilities:

Interest rate lock agreements (328) (993)

Forward trades (1,947) (334)

Total derivative liabilities (2,275) (1,327)

Net derivative (liability) asset $ (1,434) $ 5

DERIVATIVES USED IN TRADING ACTIVITIES

Various derivative financial instruments are offered to enable customers to meet their financing and investing objectives and for

their risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments held in Huntington’s trading portfolio during 2005 and 2004

consisted predominantly of interest rate swaps, but also included interest rate caps, floors, and futures, as well as foreign exchange

options. Interest rate options grant the option holder the right to buy or sell an underlying financial instrument for a

predetermined price before the contract expires. Interest rate futures are commitments to either purchase or sell a financial
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instrument at a future date for a specified price or yield and may be settled in cash or through delivery of the underlying

financial instrument. Interest rate caps and floors are option-based contracts that entitle the buyer to receive cash payments based

on the difference between a designated reference rate and a strike price, applied to a notional amount. Written options, primarily

caps, expose Huntington to market risk but not credit risk. Purchased options contain both credit and market risk. They are used

to manage fluctuating interest rates as exposure to loss from interest rate contracts changes.

Supplying these derivatives to customers results in fee income. These instruments are carried at fair value in other assets with

gains and losses reflected in other non-interest income. Total trading revenue for customer accommodation was $8.3 million in

2005, $8.8 million in 2004, and $10.3 million in 2003. The total notional value of derivative financial instruments used by

Huntington on behalf of customers (for which the related interest rate risk is offset by third parties) was $4.2 billion at the end

of 2005 and $4.5 billion at the end of the prior year. Huntington’s credit risk from interest rate swaps used for trading purposes

was $44.3 million and $53.8 million at the same dates.

In connection with its securitization activities, interest rate caps were purchased with a notional value totaling $0.9 billion. These

purchased caps were assigned to the securitization trust for the benefit of the security holders. Interest rate caps were also sold

totaling $0.9 billion outside the securitization structure. Both the purchased and sold caps are marked to market through income

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT

In the ordinary course of business, Huntington makes various commitments to extend credit that are not reflected in the financial

statements. The contract amount of these financial agreements, representing the credit risk, at December 31 were:

At December 31,

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004

Commitments to extend credit

Commercial $ 3,316 $3,453

Consumer 3,046 2,779

Commercial real estate 1,567 854

Standby letters of credit 1,079 945

Commercial letters of credit 47 72

Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed expiration dates, are variable-rate, and contain clauses that permit Huntington

to terminate or otherwise renegotiate the contracts in the event of a significant deterioration in the customer’s credit quality.

These arrangements normally require the payment of a fee by the customer, the pricing of which is based on prevailing market

conditions, credit quality, probability of funding, and other relevant factors. Since many of these commitments are expected to

expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts are not necessarily indicative of future cash requirements. The interest

rate risk arising from these financial instruments is insignificant as a result of their predominantly short-term, variable-rate

nature.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. These

guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond

financing, and similar transactions. Most of these arrangements mature within two years. At December 31, 2005, approximately

48% of standby letters of credit are collateralized and most are expected to expire without being drawn upon. The carrying

amount of deferred revenue associated with these guarantees was $4.0 million and $4.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,

respectively.

Commercial letters of credit represent short-term, self-liquidating instruments that facilitate customer trade transactions and have

maturities of no longer than 90 days. The merchandise or cargo being traded normally secures these instruments.

COMMITMENTS TO SELL LOANS

Huntington enters into forward contracts relating to its mortgage banking business. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, Huntington

had commitments to sell residential real estate loans of $348.3 million and $311.3 million, respectively. These contracts mature in

less than one year.

During the 2005 second quarter, Huntington entered into a two-year agreement to sell a minimum of 50% of monthly

automobile loan production at the cost of such loans, subject to certain limitations, provided the production meets certain
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pricing, asset quality, and volume parameters. At December 31, 2005, approximately $51.6 million of automobile loans related to

this commitment were classified as held for sale.

LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, there are various legal proceedings pending against Huntington and its subsidiaries. In the

opinion of management, the aggregate liabilities, if any, arising from such proceedings are not expected to have a material adverse

effect on Huntington’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

COMMITMENTS UNDER CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

At December 31, 2005, Huntington and its subsidiaries were obligated under noncancelable leases for land, buildings, and

equipment. Many of these leases contain renewal options and certain leases provide options to purchase the leased property

during or at the expiration of the lease period at specified prices. Some leases contain escalation clauses calling for rentals to be

adjusted for increased real estate taxes and other operating expenses or proportionately adjusted for increases in the consumer or

other price indices.

The future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in

excess of one year as of December 31, 2005, were $31.5 million in 2006, $30.4 million in 2007, $28.6 million in 2008,

$27.4 million in 2009, $25.2 million in 2010, and $158.4 million thereafter. At December 31, 2005, total minimum lease payments

have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $77.8 million due in the future under noncancelable subleases. At

December 31, 2005, the future minimum sublease rental payments that Huntington expects to receive are $16.7 million in 2006;

$14.2 million in 2007; $13.1 million in 2008; $12.5 million in 2009; $9.3 million in 2010; and $12.0 million thereafter. The rental

expense for all operating leases was $34.0 million, $40.4 million, and $36.1 million for 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

Huntington had no material obligations under capital leases.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FORMAL INVESTIGATION

On June 2, 2005, Huntington filed a Form 8-K announcing that the Commission approved the settlement of its previously

announced formal investigation into certain financial accounting matters. Huntington consented to pay a penalty of $7.5 million.

This civil money penalty had no 2005 financial impact on Huntington’s results, as reserves for this amount were established and

expensed in 2004.

23. FORMAL REGULATORY SUPERVISORY AGREEMENTS AND OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS

On March 1, 2005, Huntington announced entering into a formal written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland

(FRBC), as well as the Bank entering into a formal written agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC),

providing for a comprehensive action plan designed to enhance corporate governance, internal audit, risk management,

accounting policies and procedures, and financial and regulatory reporting. The agreements called for independent third-party

reviews, as well as the submission of written plans and progress reports by Management and remain in effect until terminated by

the banking regulators.

On October 6, 2005, Huntington announced that the OCC had terminated its formal written agreement with the Bank dated

February 28, 2005, and that the FRBC written agreement remained in effect. Huntington was verbally advised that it was in full

compliance with the financial holding company and financial subsidiary requirement under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLB

Act). This notification reflected that Huntington and the Bank met both the ‘‘well-capitalized’’ and ‘‘well-managed’’ criteria under

the GLB Act. Management believes that the changes it has already made, and is in the process of making, will address the FRBC

issues fully and comprehensively.

Huntington and its bank subsidiary, The Huntington National Bank, are subject to various regulatory capital requirements

administered by federal and state banking agencies. These requirements involve qualitative judgments and quantitative measures

of assets, liabilities, capital amounts, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material

adverse effect on Huntington’s and The Huntington National Bank’s financial statements. Applicable capital adequacy guidelines

require minimum ratios of 4.00% for Tier 1 Risk-based Capital, 8.00% for Total Risk-based Capital, and 4.00% for Tier 1

Leverage Capital. To be considered ‘‘well capitalized’’ under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the ratios

must be at least 6.00%, 10.00%, and 5.00%, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2005, Huntington and The Huntington National Bank (the Bank) met all capital adequacy requirements and

had regulatory capital ratios in excess of the levels established for ‘‘well-capitalized’’ institutions. The period-end capital amounts

and capital ratios of Huntington and the Bank are as follows:

Tier 1 Total Capital Tier 1 Leverage

(in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated

Amount $ 2,701 $ 2,683 $ 3,678 $ 3,687 $ 2,701 $ 2,683

Ratio 9.13% 9.08% 12.42% 12.48% 8.34% 8.42%

The Huntington National Bank

Amount $ 1,902 $ 1,770 $ 3,087 $ 2,955 $ 1,902 $ 1,770

Ratio 6.82% 6.08% 10.55% 10.16% 6.21% 5.66%

Tier 1 Risk-based Capital consists of total equity plus qualifying capital securities and minority interest, excluding unrealized gains

and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income, and non-qualifying intangible and servicing assets. Total Risk-based

Capital is Tier 1 Risk-based Capital plus qualifying subordinated notes and allowable allowances for credit losses (limited to

1.25% of total risk-weighted assets). Tier 1 Leverage Capital is equal to Tier 1 Capital. Both Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital

ratios are derived by dividing the respective capital amounts by net risk-weighted assets, which are calculated as prescribed by

regulatory agencies. Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratio is calculated by dividing the Tier 1 capital amount by average adjusted total

assets for the fourth quarter of 2005 and 2004, less non-qualifying intangibles and other adjustments.

Huntington and its subsidiaries are also subject to various regulatory requirements that impose restrictions on cash, debt, and

dividends. The Bank is required to maintain cash reserves based on the level of certain of its deposits. This reserve requirement

may be met by holding cash in banking offices or on deposit at the Federal Reserve Bank. During 2005 and 2004, the average

balance of these deposits were $57.6 million and $70.4 million, respectively.

Under current Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited as to the amount and type of loans it may make to the parent

company and non-bank subsidiaries. At December 31, 2005, the Bank could lend $308.7 million to a single affiliate, subject to the

qualifying collateral requirements defined in the regulations.

Dividends from the Bank are one of the major sources of funds for Huntington. These funds aid the parent company in the

payment of dividends to shareholders, expenses, and other obligations. Payment of dividends to the parent company is subject to

various legal and regulatory limitations. Regulatory approval is required prior to the declaration of any dividends in excess of

available retained earnings. The amount of dividends that may be declared without regulatory approval is further limited to the

sum of net income for the current year and retained net income for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to

surplus or common stock. The Bank could declare, without regulatory approval, dividends in 2006 of approximately

$197.0 million plus an additional amount equal to its net income through the date of declaration in 2006.
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24. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The parent company condensed financial statements, which include transactions with subsidiaries, are as follows.

Balance Sheets December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 227,115 $ 630,444

Due from The Huntington National Bank 250,771 250,771

Due from non-bank subsidiaries 205,208 204,976

Investment in The Huntington National Bank 1,660,905 1,472,357

Investment in non-bank subsidiaries 574,382 595,233

Goodwill 9,877 9,877

Accrued interest receivable and other assets 128,303 141,284

Total assets $ 3,056,561 $3,304,942

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Short-term borrowings $ 3,034 $ —

Long-term borrowings 309,279 411,750

Dividends payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities 186,747 355,554

Total liabilities 499,060 767,304

Shareholders’ equity 2,557,501 2,537,638

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 3,056,561 $3,304,942

The parent company had a $25 million line of credit to one of its non-bank subsidiaries at December 31, 2005. This was reduced

from $100 million at the end of the prior year. Of the total line of credit available, $0.5 million remained outstanding at

December 31, 2005.
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Statements of Income Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Income

Dividends from

The Huntington National Bank $180,000 $400,000 $150,533

Non-bank subsidiaries 3,800 8,202 3,000

Interest from

The Huntington National Bank 35,253 13,417 20,098

Non-bank subsidiaries 8,770 7,638 7,356

Management fees from subsidiaries 30,539 34,603 34,129

Other 406 (810) 3,214

Total income 258,768 463,050 218,330

Expense

Personnel costs 25,060 32,227 18,608

Interest on borrowings 22,772 4,317 12,976

Other 24,741 36,738 27,347

Total expense 72,573 73,282 58,931

Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 186,195 389,768 159,399

Income taxes (2,499) (4,223) (5,130)

Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 188,694 393,991 164,529

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle net of tax of $1,315 — — (2,442)

Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 188,694 393,991 162,087

Increase (decrease) in undistributed net income of:

The Huntington National Bank 208,061 (9,073) 196,659

Non-bank subsidiaries 15,336 14,007 13,617

Net income $412,091 $398,925 $372,363
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Statements of Cash Flows Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 2003

Operating activities

Net income $ 412,091 $ 398,925 $ 372,363

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — 2,442

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries (223,397) (4,934) (210,275)

Depreciation and amortization 2,674 2,690 2,211

Gain on sales of securities available for sale — — (5)

Change in other, net (49,557) (13,609) (67,852)

Net cash provided by operating activities 141,811 383,072 98,884

Investing activities

Repayments from subsidiaries 154,152 117,314 27,001

Advances to subsidiaries (206,765) (80,197) (74,650)

Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale — — 46

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (52,613) 37,117 (47,603)

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term borrowings — — 100,000

Payment of borrowings (99,437) (101,541) (41,544)

Dividends paid on common stock (200,628) (168,075) (151,023)

Acquisition of treasury stock (231,656) — (81,061)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 39,194 47,239 8,082

Net cash used for financing activities (492,527) (222,377) (165,546)

Change in cash and cash equivalents (403,329) 197,812 (114,265)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 630,444 432,632 546,897

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 227,115 $ 630,444 $ 432,632

Supplemental disclosure:

Interest paid $ 22,754 $ 18,495 $ 13,157

25. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
ACQUISITIONS

On January 27, 2004, Huntington announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire Unizan Financial Corp. (Unizan), a

financial holding company based in Canton, Ohio. On November 12, 2004, Huntington and Unizan jointly announced entering

into an amendment to their January 26, 2004 merger agreement extending the term of the agreement for one year from

January 27, 2005 to January 27, 2006. On the same date, Huntington also announced that it withdrew its application with the

FRBC to acquire Unizan. On October 24, 2005, Huntington announced that after consultation with the FRBC, it had re-filed its

application to acquire Unizan. On January 26, 2006, Huntington announced that the Federal Reserve Board had approved its

merger application. The merger is scheduled to close March 1, 2006.

DIVESTITURES

During 2003, Huntington sold four banking offices located in eastern West Virginia. This sale included approximately $50 million

of loans and $130 million of deposits. Huntington’s pre-tax gain from this sale was $13.1 million in 2003 and is reflected as a

separate component of non-interest income.

26. SEGMENT REPORTING

Huntington has three distinct lines of business: Regional Banking, Dealer Sales, and the Private Financial and Capital Markets

Group (PFCMG). A fourth segment includes the Company’s Treasury function and other unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue,

and expense. Lines of business results are determined based upon the Company’s management reporting system, which assigns

balance sheet and income statement items to each of the business segments. The process is designed around Huntington’s

organizational and management structure and, accordingly, the results below are not necessarily comparable with similar
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information published by other financial institutions. During the second quarter of 2005, the Capital Markets Group was

removed from the Treasury/Other segment and combined with the Private Financial Group to form the Private Financial and

Capital Markets Group segment. Since the Capital Markets Group is now managed through the Private Financial Group,

combining these two segments better reflects the management accountability and decision making structure. Prior periods reflect

this change. An overview of this system is provided below, along with a description of each segment and discussion of financial

results.

The following provides a brief description of the four operating segments of Huntington:

Regional Banking: This segment provides traditional banking products and services to consumer, small business, and commercial

customers located in its seven operating regions within the five states of Ohio, Michigan, West Virginia, Indiana, and Kentucky. It

provides these services through a banking network of 344 branches, over 900 ATMs, plus on-line and telephone banking

channels. Each region is further divided into Retail and Commercial Banking units. Retail products and services include home

equity loans and lines of credit, first mortgage loans, direct installment loans, small business loans, personal and business deposit

products, as well as sales of investment and insurance services. Retail Banking accounts for 60% and 79% of total Regional

Banking loans and deposits, respectively. Commercial Banking serves middle market commercial banking relationships, which use

a variety of banking products and services including, but not limited to, commercial loans, international trade, cash management,

leasing, interest rate protection products, capital market alternatives, 401(k) plans, and mezzanine investment capabilities.

Dealer Sales: This segment provides a variety of banking products and services to more than 3,500 automotive dealerships within

our primary banking markets, as well as in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South Carolina and

Tennessee. We have been in this business for more than 50 years. Dealer Sales finances the purchase of automobiles by customers

of the automotive dealerships, purchases automobiles from dealers and simultaneously leases the automobiles to consumers under

long-term leases, finances the dealerships’ floor plan inventories, real estate, or working capital needs, and provides other banking

services to the automotive dealerships and their owners. Dealer Sales is directly impacted by general automotive sales, including

programs initiated by manufacturers to enhance and increase sales directly. Competition from the financing divisions of

automobile manufacturers and from other financial institutions is intense.

Private Financial and Capital Markets Group (PFCMG): This segment provides products and services designed to meet the

needs of our higher net worth customers. Revenue is derived through the sale of trust, asset management, investment advisory,

brokerage, insurance, and private banking products and services. It also focuses on financial solutions for corporate and

institutional customers that include investment banking, sales and trading of securities, mezzanine capital financing, and risk

management products. To serve our customers, a unique distribution model is used that employs a single, unified sales force to

deliver products and services mainly through Regional Banking distribution channels. PFCMG provides investment management

and custodial services to our 29 proprietary mutual funds, including ten variable annuity funds. The Huntington Investment

Company offers brokerage and investment advisory services to both Regional Banking and PFCMG customers through more than

100 licensed investment sales representatives and nearly 700 licensed personal bankers. PFCMG’s insurance entities provide a

complete array of insurance products including individual life insurance products ranging from basic term life insurance, to estate

planning, group life and health insurance, property and casualty insurance, mortgage title insurance, and reinsurance for payment

protection products. Income and related expenses from the sale of brokerage and insurance products is shared with the line of

business that generated the sale or provided the customer referral, most notably Regional Banking.

Treasury/Other: This segment includes revenue and expense related to assets, liabilities, and equity not directly assigned or

allocated to one of the other three business segments. Assets included in this segment include investment securities and bank

owned life insurance.

USE OF OPERATING EARNINGS TO MEASURE SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

Management uses earnings on an operating basis, rather than on a GAAP basis, to measure underlying performance trends for

each business segment. Operating earnings represent GAAP earnings adjusted to exclude the impact of certain items listed in the

reconciliation table below. Analyzing earnings on an operating basis is very helpful in assessing underlying performance trends, a

critical factor used to determine the success of strategies and future earnings capabilities. For the year ending December 31, 2005,

operating earnings were the same as reported GAAP earnings.
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Listed below is certain operating basis financial information reconciled to Huntington’s 2005, 2004, and 2003 reported results by

line of business:

Regional Dealer Treasury/ Huntington
INCOME STATEMENTS (in thousands of dollars) Banking Sales PFCMG Other Consolidated

2005

Net interest income $ 780,072 $ 145,578 $ 72,886 $ (36,125) $ 962,411

Provision for credit losses (51,061) (26,073) (4,165) — (81,299)

Non-interest income 311,244 169,792 135,102 16,144 632,282

Non-interest expense (593,137) (185,936) (131,195) (59,552) (969,820)

Income taxes (156,491) (36,177) (25,420) 86,605 (131,483)

Operating earnings and net income as reported $ 290,627 $ 67,184 $ 47,208 $ 7,072 $ 412,091

2004

Net interest income $ 678,288 $ 149,791 $ 61,763 $ 21,532 $ 911,374

Provision for credit losses (7,664) (44,733) (2,665) — (55,062)

Non-interest income 308,493 320,154 134,005 41,740 804,392

Non-interest expense (593,861) (324,229) (124,441) (80,864) (1,123,395)

Income taxes (134,841) (35,344) (24,032) 45,851 (148,366)

Operating earnings 250,415 65,639 44,630 28,259 388,943

Restructuring releases, net of taxes — — — 748 748

Gain on sale of automobile loans, net of taxes — 8,598 — 636 9,234

Net income $ 250,415 $ 74,237 $ 44,630 $ 29,643 $ 398,925

2003

Net interest income $ 605,311 $ 107,223 $ 50,667 $ 85,785 $ 848,986

Provision for credit losses (96,735) (56,612) (10,646) — (163,993)

Non-interest income 317,771 525,957 123,219 49,055 1,016,002

Non-interest expense (562,909) (481,543) (116,872) (60,251) (1,221,575)

Income taxes (92,203) (33,259) (16,229) 18,996 (122,695)

Operating earnings 171,235 61,766 30,139 93,585 356,725

Restructuring releases, net of tax — — — 4,333 4,333

Gain on sale of automobile loans, net of tax — 13,493 — 12,532 26,025

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax — (10,888) — (2,442) (13,330)

Gain on sale of branch offices, net of tax — — — 8,523 8,523

Long-term debt extinguishment, net of tax — — — (9,913) (9,913)

Net income $ 171,235 $ 64,371 $ 30,139 $ 106,618 $ 372,363

Assets Deposits
At December 31, At December 31,

BALANCE SHEETS (in millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Regional Banking $ 18,863 $17,864 $15,042 $ 17,968 $17,411 $15,473

Dealer Sales 5,612 6,100 7,336 65 75 77

PFCMG 2,005 1,959 1,722 1,169 1,176 1,165

Treasury/Other 6,285 6,642 6,419 3,208 2,106 1,772

Total $ 32,765 $32,565 $30,519 $ 22,410 $20,768 $18,487
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27. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

2005

(in thousands of dollars, except per share data) Fourth Third Second First

Interest income $ 442,476 $ 420,858 $ 402,326 $ 376,105

Interest expense (198,800) (179,221) (160,426) (140,907)

Net interest income 243,676 241,637 241,900 235,198

Provision for credit losses (30,831) (17,699) (12,895) (19,874)

Non-interest income 147,322 160,740 156,170 168,050

Non-interest expense (230,355) (233,052) (248,136) (258,277)

Income before income taxes 129,812 151,626 137,039 125,097

Provision for income taxes (29,239) (43,052) (30,614) (28,578)

Net income $ 100,573 $ 108,574 $ 106,425 $ 96,519

Net income per common share — Basic $0.44 $0.47 $0.46 $0.42

Net income per common share — Diluted 0.44 0.47 0.45 0.41
2004

(in thousands of dollars, except per share data) Fourth Third Second First

Interest income $ 359,215 $ 338,002 $ 324,167 $ 325,931

Interest expense (120,147) (110,944) (101,604) (103,246)

Net interest income 239,068 227,058 222,563 222,685

Provision for credit losses (12,654) (11,785) (5,027) (25,596)

Non-interest income 182,940 189,891 218,128 227,639

Non-interest expense (281,014) (273,423) (282,153) (285,654)

Income before income taxes 128,340 131,741 153,511 139,074

Provision for income taxes (37,201) (38,255) (43,384) (34,901)

Net income $ 91,139 $ 93,486 $ 110,127 $ 104,173

Net income per common share — Basic $0.39 $0.41 $0.48 $0.45

Net income per common share — Diluted 0.39 0.40 0.47 0.45
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CONTACT AND OTHER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER CONTACTS

Shareholders requesting information about share 
balances, change of name or address, lost certifi cates, 
or other shareholder account matters should contact 
the Transfer Agent/Registrar:

Computershare Investor Services
Attn:  Shareholder Services
2 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois  60602
web.queries@computershare.com
(800) 725-0674

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND COMMON 

STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Huntington offers a dividend reinvestment and com-
mon stock purchase plan which requires a minimum 
of one share to participate. Optional cash purchases, 
a feature of the plan, offer participants the opportunity 
to invest in Huntington at a minimum of $200 and a 
maximum of $10,000 per quarter. Call (800) 725-0674 
to obtain a prospectus.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS

Automatic direct deposit of quarterly dividends is of-
fered to our shareholders, at no charge, and provides 
secure and timely access to their funds. For further 
information, please call (800) 725-0674.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Common Stock:
The common stock of Huntington Bancshares 
Incorporated is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market 
under the symbol “HBAN.” The stock is listed as 
“HuntgBcshr” or “HuntBanc” in most newspapers. 
As of December 31, 2005, Huntington had 25,374 
shareholders of record.

Annual Meeting:
The 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be 
held at 2:00 p.m., Thursday, April 20, 2006 at the 
Riffe Center Capitol Theater, 77 South High Street, 
Columbus, Ohio.

Information Requests:
Copies of Huntington’s Annual Report; Forms 10-K, 
10-Q, and 8-K; Financial Code of Ethics; and quarterly 
earnings releases may be obtained, free of charge, 
by calling (888) 480-3164 or by visiting Huntington’s 
investor relations web site at: huntington.com.

ANALYST AND INVESTOR CONTACTS

Analysts and investors seeking fi nancial information 
about Huntington Bancshares should contact:

Investor Relations:
Huntington Bancshares Incorporated
Huntington Center, HC0935
41 S. High Street
Columbus, Ohio 43287
investor.relations@huntington.com
(614) 480-5676

QUARTERLY EARNINGS REPORTING

For 2006, Huntington’s quarterly earnings are antici-
pated to be announced during the third week of April, 
July, and October 2006 and January 2007.

CREDIT RATINGS(1)

Huntington Bancshares Incorporated:

 Senior
 Unsecured Subordinated
 Notes Notes Short Term Outlook

Moody’s(2) A3 Baa1 P-2 Stable
S&P(3) BBB+ BBB A-2 Stable
Fitch(4) A A- F1 Stable

The Huntington National Bank:

 Senior
 Unsecured Subordinated
 Notes Notes Short Term Outlook

Moody’s(2) A2 A3 P-1 Stable
S&P(3) A- BBB+ A-2 Stable
Fitch(4) A A- F1 Stable

(1) As of December 31, 2005
(2) Moody’s Investors Service, New York, New York
(3) Standard & Poor’s Corporation, New York, New York
(4) Fitch Ratings, New York, New York

CUSTOMER CONTACTS

Corporate Headquarters
(614) 480-8300

Customer Service Center
(800) 480-BANK (2265)

Business Direct
(800) 480-2001

Dealer Sales
(800) 445-8460

The Huntington 
Investment Company
(800) 322-4600

Mortgage Group
(800) 562-6871

Private Financial and 
Capital Markets Group
(800) 544-8347

huntington.com
(877) 932-2265

Design: Salvato, Coe + Gabor Associates
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